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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ") was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A Shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3
August 2010. The Company’s H Shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and sales
of hydraulic roof supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged, through its subsidiaries,
in the research and development, manufacturing and sale of and servicing for auto parts, as well as the trading of steel and other raw materials. The
established operating history, high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive
sales and service network of the Company and its subsidiaries are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the coal
mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board

of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
(the “2019 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

2019 is a milestone year in ZMJ’s history, as the Company received an
inspection by General Secretary Xi Jinping who delivered important instructions
on ZMJ’s development, pointed out the direction for its advancement, injected
great vitality and brought tremendous opportunities. In 2019, both leaders and
employees of the Company worked under the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought
on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and carried out
the spirit of the important issues addressed by General Secretary Xi Jinping
during his inspection of ZMJ with depth. In this way, ZMJ worked on industry
transformation and upgrade, enhanced independent innovation, developed high-
end and smart manufacturing, deepened its work on various aspects of the
state-owned enterprise reform, and strived for high-quality development, which
led to continuous improvement of various production and operation indicators.

In 2019, the revenue generated by the Company amounted to RMB25,721.42
million, representing a year-on-year decline of 1.12%. Net profit attributable to
the parent company amounted to RMB1,040.25 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 24.98%.
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1. 2019 BUSINESS REVIEW

() Strengthening Strategic Guidance and Driving
Enterprise Reform Continuously

In 2019, the Company guided itself under the development strategy
of “international strategic positioning, market-based corporate
governance, high-end industry layout and global human resources”
and the requirements of the “Reform of Hundreds of State-owned
Enterprises” (£ & 17 &h), with more intensive work on the top-level
design of reform and development as well as greater technology
and management innovation to keep driving the fast development,
transformation and upgrade of the Company.

1. Sorting out development strategies for each of the
Group’s industry segments and exploring the direction of
future development

We took the latest situation into account, to boost technical R&D
and smart upgrade for our industry segments. Specifically, we
further deepened our strategies of “intelligent, comprehensive,
international and society-oriented development” for the
coal mining machinery segment, “high-end, professional,
international and progressive development” for ASIMCO, as well
as SEG reform and electrification development. In addition, we
explored the development approaches and objectives for the
next five years, and revolved around our development strategies
to distribute and allocate resources.

2. Further improving the Group’s governance system

First, we have established and improved an overarching
management system mainly for our industry segments.
A business department has been formed for coal mining
machinery, with new companies established for commercial
factoring and software respectively, as well as efforts
to improve our functions of global internal auditing and
information management. Second, we developed such systems
and institutions that adapted to the Group’s management
requirements, with analysis and reporting systems formulated
for every aspect of the Group, so as to optimize the decision-
making mechanism and business processes.
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Building a global human resources management system

We optimized our Group’s mechanism to select, employ, nurture
and retain exceptional talents, with a view to staffing the key
posts of our headquarters with excellent international-oriented
talents. Our cross-border and inter-segment talent exchanges
also took place, in a bid to cultivate outstanding personnel that
are equipped with an international vision and the capability of
local management in China. We continued to procure different
cultures and industries to communicate and integrate with one
another, by promoting learning, communication and cultural
integration within the Company, so as to lay a solid foundation
for its long-term development.

Exploring the establishment of a mid to long-term
mechanism for incentives and restrictions

As a leader of the state-owned enterprise reform in Henan
Province, the Company continued to deepen the reform of state-
owned enterprises by exploring the implementation of a mid
to long-term super profit incentive scheme and a share option
incentive scheme. As such, a mid to long-term incentives and
restrictions mechanism has taken shape that largely adapts to
the talent market and pegs to the economic efficiency of the
Company, thus aligning the long-term interests of shareholders,
the Company and its staff.

Adhering to technology as guidance to propel industry
transformation and upgrade

Under the unified strategic layout for smart manufacturing, we
made new progress and breakthroughs in the construction of
smart factories. In respect of key components for hydraulic
roof supports, our automatic production lines have commenced
commissioning and operation successively, with system
development completed for the first phase of the MES project.
We have also finished planning the construction project of
large comprehensive key equipment for ZMJ, with project
construction taking place in an intensive and orderly manner.
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() Operation and Development of the Coal Mining
Machinery Segment

In 2019, the coal industry presented a positive picture with stable
market demand for coal mining machinery. By capturing such rare
market opportunities, the Company recorded a major uptick in its
operating results, attained important breakthroughs with its strategy
of “international strategic positioning, market-based corporate
governance, high-end industry layout and global human resources”,
and further enhanced the integrated strength of its coal mining
machinery segment.

1.

Seizing market opportunities to be more competitive
within the industry

In 2019, ZMJ continued to gravitate towards “orders that
generate profit and cash flow”, capture quality orders, work
harder on collecting receivables and optimize its market
structure. As a result, the year saw high-quality growth of orders
and receivables collection, both reaching historic new highs.

Upgrading the R&D system with continuously stronger
guidance of technology

ZMJ worked to improve the overall structure of its R&D system
by establishing the smart mining research institute, ramping
up the top-level design and system development of scientific
research, consolidating the R&D strengths of its departments
and subsidiaries, conducting scientific research on the
intelligent equipment sets and control system for comprehensive
coal mining, and expediting the R&D and promotion of intelligent
ZMJ products.

First, we made a fresh breakthrough in comprehensiveness. The
high-end coal mining machine, a proprietary product by ZMJ’s
join stock companies, has passed the appraisal by experts.
Upon successful promotion and application, ZMJ’s first wholly
proprietary set of comprehensive intelligent equipment provides
a unified software and hardware platform, communications
protocol and control strategy for the equipment control system
of comprehensive mining workface. Such an integrated control
system enables a high degree of integration between all control
subsystems and the intelligent central control system. Hence,
/MJ has become the sole enterprise in the domestic coal
industry that integrates intelligent, high-end, comprehensive
and lifetime services, with its industry clout further expanded.
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Second, we achieved new developments in being intelligent.
Our product structure has further evolved towards the intelligent
products market. Large-scale promotion has taken place for
our new-generation electrical control system, workface inertial
navigation and automatic alignment technologies. We also made
initial progress with our big data platform for workface, mine
pressure analysis and alert technology. In 2019, we promoted
more than 60 sets of intelligent workface, which accounted for
the largest domestic market share within the industry.

Third, we broke new grounds in our international drive. We
managed to enter the premium market of Australia, fully opened
up such market in the USA, consolidated our advantageous
market position in Russia, and further lifted our influence and
competitiveness in the international high-end market.

Fourth, we attained new accomplishments in technology
innovation. Our model has proven effective in developing the
regional standard frame technology, while we also succeeded
in developing hydraulic roof supports with a high magnification
ratio. Our first set of waste filling roof supports have been
developed and used in underground mines. We have passed the
60,000-time experiment for our Australian ultrahigh-end column
and commenced mass supply of it. In 2019, ZMJ was identified
as a Model Enterprise for Single-item Best Performance in the
Manufacturing Industry (%23 2 81876 F /R 10 2E) by the
Ministry for Industry and Information Technology and China
Federation of Industrial Economics.

Intensively tapping into potential for higher efficiency,
with constant enhancement of product quality

To ensure timely delivery of products and cater to customer
demands, ZMJ coordinates internal and external resources to
explore its production capacity continuously, so that it can meet
the objective of high quality and high production with safety and
environmental protection ensured. In the meantime, ZMJ has
capitalized on internet cloud service by launching an aftersales
APP “ZMJ Customer Service Manager” ZMJZRRE %), in
an effort to enhance the integration of aftersales resources,
information collection and user interaction as well as to offer
better service to users.
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() Operation and Development of the Auto Parts
Segment

2019 witnessed dwindling sales amongst the core auto markets
globally, with the sharpest declines recorded in Indian and Chinese
markets, coupled with China-US trade frictions. Affected by such
factors, the Company’s auto parts segment responded to the grim
industry landscape proactively by keeping a close eye on orders and
receivables collection externally and working on cost cutting and
efficiency enhancement internally. As a result, its individual corporate
growth surpassed industry peers.

1.

Stable operation of the ASIMCO auto parts business, with
sustained momentum in the R&D of new technologies

In 2019, amidst increasing uncertainties such as the sliding
sales among global core auto markets and China-US trade
frictions, ASIMCO operated steadily and performed better than
the average level in the auto industry, with leading businesses
recording sustained growth.

First, ASIMCO, active in leveraging the opportunities from global
industry chain adjustment, employed technology and quality
improvement to enter mid to high-end markets, and proactively
engaged in the adjustment of the international auto parts
industry chain. Second, ASIMCO drove its technology upgrade
through a range of approaches such as independent R&D,
adjustment of industry chain, upgrade of production lines, and
collaboration via joint venture. It also took the initiative to follow
the trend of upgrading the National VI emissions standard,
by tapping into the technology and processes required by the
National VI exhaust emissions standard. Third, ASIMCO actively
responded to China-US trade frictions by establishing its sales
network for Europe.
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2. Pushing forward the consolidation and reform of SEG

First, under the enhanced initiative of SEG consolidation
and reform, we kept driving the transformation of SEG
from a business segment of a major group to a medium-
sized company, with ongoing efforts to sort out its operating
system and business process to achieve lower costs and high
efficiency. A new five-year development strategy was also
formulated, which clearly set out the positioning, technological
development direction and product layout of the firm, so as
to focus on internal resources and pursue greater synergy.
Second, we actively establish our presence in products relating
to the electrification technology, with continued research and
manufacturing of the second-generation BRM products with
better energy-saving function. Furthermore, we worked to
integrate global R&D resources, accelerate the introduction
and training of R&D talents for new energy motors as well as
the development of R&D capacity, in a bid to realize synergetic
global R&D. In May 2019, SEG New Energy Automobile
Technology Co., Ltd. (R BEFALIRTERM AR A F)
was founded in Changsha, for the purpose of simultaneous
design and synergetic R&D with the R&D center of the SEG
headquarters.

(IV) Phased achievements for the development of Zhima

Street

Our wholly-owned subsidiary Zhima Street Industrial worked on
“Zhima Street 1958 Dual Innovation Park Project” (£ fif {51958 %
EIEIE H), a project mainly engaged in renovating and improving
the Company’s old factories and with “Scientific Innovation and
Cultural Innovation” as the theme to revitalize idle factory premises.
For the first phase, work has almost been completed for the
renovation and leasing of the initial development zone which covers
an area of 14,400 square meters. The zone is designed to undergo
three to five years of development to gradually attain a high degree
of concentration of the scientific innovation industry, serve as a new
domestic landmark of scientific innovation, and become a leading
entrepreneurial and cultural hub in the Central Plains of China.
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2. Industry Landscape and Trends TTERENBS

1.

Situation of the coal mining machinery industry

Based on the energy reserve status-quo of China, coal will retain its
role as the primary energy source of China within the short term.
In recent years, relevant authorities have rolled out a number of
policies for the coal industry. The focus of coal de-capacity has
gradually shifted from reduction of aggregate amount to systematic
and structural optimization. As a result, the coal industry has seen
rapid improvement in industry concentration as well as further
optimization of industry structure and landscape, which is conducive

1 REITRBER
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to the virtuous development of coal mining machinery businesses. ko HEEME - Feelh U RERERNE
Meanwhile, coal businesses have increasingly urgent demand for SRR A ) ©

automatic, intelligent and highly reliable coal machinery products,
based on the demand for safety and lower manpower costs.

In March 2020, eight authorities such as the National Development
and Reform Commission jointly issued the Guiding Opinions on
Accelerating the Development of Intelligent Coal Mines (B8 Nk
HIEE LB ENIEEEZ /), inan aim to drive the integrated
development of intelligent technology and the coal industry, enable
more intelligent coal mines and facilitate the high-quality development
of the Chinese coal industry. The document sets out three phased
objectives for developing intelligent coal mines:

— By 2021, the country will have developed a variety of intelligent
model mines under different models, with an initial system
taking shape for information-based transmission and automatic
operation technology that covers the major processes of coal
mine development design, geological assurance, production
and safety. The system will largely enable more efficient driving
workface with less manpower, fewer or no operators for the
comprehensive mining workface, and remote monitoring of
regular posts at underground and open pit mines with no
requirement for staff on duty.

— By 2025, large-scale coal mines and those suffer severe
calamities will have largely turned intelligent, with technical
specifications and standard systems established for the
intelligent development of coal mines. Such mines will be
capable of intelligent decision-making and automated synergetic
operation of development design, geological assurance,
excavation (stripping), transportation, ventilation, washing and
selection as well as logistics systems. Robots will be deployed
for key underground posts, while continuous intelligent
operation and unmanned transportation will take place at open
pit coal mines.
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— By 2035, various coal mines will largely become intelligent, with
an coal mine intelligent system in place that integrates multiple
industry chains and systems; an intelligent coal mine system
should also be in place that provides intelligent sensing and
decision-making as well as automatic execution.

The issuance of the Guiding Opinions is bound to drive the technology
upgrade of the coal mining machinery industry, presenting both huge
opportunities and formidable challenges for coal mining machinery
enterprises.

Situation of the auto industry

In connection with the auto industry, China has fully implemented the
National VI emissions standard with increasingly rigorous limits on
fuel consumption, which will help adjust the structures of traditional
auto markets and products at a faster pace. On the other hand, the
progressive withdrawal of financial subsidies and adjustment policies
such as access conditions have finally taken place, coupled with a
trading mechanism for carbon credit and new energy credit, which is
set to expedite the transformation of new energy vehicles towards a
market-driven industry.

In 2020, amidst the continuous slowdown in economic growth and
the impact of the Covid-19 epidemic, auto consumption demand
will either be delayed or suffer major declines within the short term,
exerting considerable pressure on the domestic auto market as a
whole. Nevertheless, the swift development of such new technologies
as electrification, intelligence and network connection will help
the auto industry in its further transformation and upgrade, as the
domestic auto industry opens up and expands.

As regards the international auto market, auto demand was subject
to the growing impact from the global spread of the Covid-19
epidemic, particularly in overseas areas such as some European
countries where the epidemic prevention and control is under grim
and complex conditions. In consequence, multiple overseas auto
manufacturers have declared suspension or limitation on production,
bringing shock waves throughout the global supply chain and leaving
a negative impact on the Company’s overseas auto parts production
bases.
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3. Business Plan for 2020

Under the impact of the Covid-19 epidemic, global economic development
is subject to more uncertainties and challenges in 2020. ZMJ will practice
the spirit of the important address by General Secretary Xi Jinping
during his inspection of ZMJ in an in-depth manner and revolve around
the development strategies of the Company, with priorities given to the
following aspects of work:

1. Enhance independent innovation and procure high-
quality development

m

Structural reform for the coal mining machinery industry

Grounded in independent innovation, the Company will engage
in in-depth integration of 5G, big data, the Internet of Things,
AR and other technologies, to establish an industry-leading
intelligent and comprehensive R&D system, and to propel
the coal mining machinery segment to become intelligent,
comprehensive, international and society-oriented.

First, the segment shall embrace intelligent development. ZMJ
will take hold of the opportunities from the national policy of
advancing intelligent coal mining, with continuous R&D and
promotion of comprehensive coal mining technology with
unmanned workface, to develop towards unmanned coal
mining. Efforts will also be made to develop innovative R&D
mechanisms for new technology, by improving the R&D platform
and engaging in collaborative scientific research on technology
as well as talent exchange and training with external parties.
At the same time, continuous efforts will take place on the
construction and operation of intelligent production lines.

Second, the segment shall be more comprehensive.
Comprehensive projects shall serve as a carrier to put in place
the full integration system of comprehensive mining workface,
focus on addressing the existing issues concerning the
preliminary integration of intelligent workface, enable in-depth
synergy among workface equipment, fully tap into the technical
advantages of ZMJ’s comprehensive machine units, and lead
the trend of market demand for integrated equipment sets.
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Third, the segment shall be more international. Efforts will be
made to pinpoint the changing demands of high-end markets,
work on different strategies in response, capitalize on our
own edge, and take the initiative to explore overseas high-end
markets.

Fourth, the segment shall be more society-oriented. A more
professional service system will be established that offers more
timely response and better services. Adhering to “appropriate
action”, we will build a professional supporting system that
works scientifically and reasonably, delivers good quality,
operates professionally and systematically, and responds timely,
S0 as to provide solid assurance for the timely delivery of our
products.

Faster transformation and upgrade of the auto parts
industry

First, we will capture such opportunities under the reform
and development of the global auto market, push forward the
institutional reform of SEG, respond to markets more quickly,
and invest in R&D continuously. Second, we will bring the
global leading edge of our auto motors business into full play
when it comes to hybrid system, with a view to transforming
towards energy saving and environment-friendliness and even
new energy. Third, we will sustain our R&D efforts in the field
of comfortable and light vehicles, to grasp core technologies.
Fourth, we will recalibrate the layouts of ASIMCO and SEG’s
global supply chains, explore the global presence of ASIMCO
supply chain, and keep transferring SEG’s production to low-
cost regions so as to better cater to the market at lower costs
and higher efficiency. Fifth, we are planning the development
strategies of ASIMCO for the next three to five years, which
relate to the exploration of fresh development opportunities
based on electrification, intelligence, network connection and
sharing.
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Further deepen institutional reform

Diversified industries and global operation have posed new
requirements upon the original management system of ZMJ, as the
Company’s systems of decision-making, incentives and restrictions
as well as regulation are in need of adapting to globalization and
market orientation. With that in mind, ZMJ will continue to deepen
its institutional reform by exploring the establishment of a corporate
governance structure centered on the Board and market-oriented
decision-making, further boosting its talent teams, and further
exploring the formation of a market-oriented mechanism for talent
selection and employment as well as incentives and restrictions.

Improve central management capability and
continuously enhance risk control

We will work to establish robust group management and risk control
systems that align with the Group’s international drive and multi-
industry management. First, we will continue to build information-
based systems for statement management and financial consolidation
systems, with real-time monitoring of business operation. Second,
we will enhance the development of our team of internal control
talents, to ensure that our corporate operations comply with laws and
regulations and that our assets are safe. Third, we will take further
steps to render our internal auditing more synergetic with the work
of our board of supervisors (the “Supervisor(s)”) (the “Board of
Supervisors”) and disciplinary inspection bodies, to fully amplify the
overall effect of our supervisory organs as a collective force.

Pay attention to Covid-19 epidemic prevention and
control, and strengthen emergency management
against risks

During the first quarter of 2020, a host of elements such as the
Covid-19 epidemic and crude oil caused drastic fluctuations across
global financial markets, leaving considerable uncertainties for the
world economy. This also led to a delay in the demand for the coal
mining machinery industry where the Company is present, and a
sharp decline in the demand for the auto industry, with a grim outlook
for the entire year. As of the disclosure date of this report, China
remained on a positive track of epidemic prevention and control,
with accelerated recovery of production and daily life. Nonetheless,
as overseas epidemic prevention and control were still severe, the
subsequent impact on the Company’s overseas operations requires
further observation according to the development of overseas
epidemic situation.
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Confronted by the difficulties and challenges from the Covid-19
epidemic on its production and operation, the Company will set its
eyes firmly on the annual targets by taking proactive measures.
ZMJ will respond to the epidemic shock with reform, innovation
and transformation, pick up its pace in the innovation of product
technology, business model as well as organization and management
model, to minimize the effect of the epidemic on the Company’s
operational indicators. ZMJ will also heighten its emergency
management against risks with a better system for emergency
management and risk control, and be more adaptive to the
requirements of global operation. In the meantime, the Company will
adhere to the principle that “cash is the king” with enhanced cash
flow management.

Confronted by the uncertainties of external economic conditions in 2020, the
Board will unite its leaders and staff to work with high spirits, great passion
and strong determination. ZMJ will dedicate itself to high-end equipment
manufacturing, continuously deepen its reform and innovation, and drive its
industry transformation and upgrade. The Company will employ an international
perspective to develop into a high-end equipment manufacturing group with
global influence and contribute to the better future of Chinese Central Plains in
the new era.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the entire staff, shareholders, clients and partners of the Company.

Jiao Chengyao

Chairman

27 March 2020
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB25,721.42 million, representing an decrease of 1.12% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB1,040.25 million, representing an increase of 24.98% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB0.06. As 31
December 2019, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB3,137.49 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December
2019 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
Revenue WA 25,721.42 26,011.73
Cost of sales HERA (20,923.90) (21,159.85)
Gross profit EF 4,797.52 4,851.88
Other income HAA 225.18 106.06
Other gains and losses Hleas R EiE (418.40) (174.50)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R #H X (1,020.64) (1,044.12)
Administrative expenses TR (994.63) (1,203.18)
Research and development expenses HEEEA (1,015.03) (1,030.20)
Reversal of net impairment losses on financial and EREEREERE
contract assets EEF RO 157.88 46.95
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE(RER S A RIRF(E518) 38.01 (49.64)
Share of profit of joint ventures EhEEFERN 3.72 5.91
Finance costs, net BB R A F R (243.53) (220.42)
Profit before tax BRBE AR A 1,530.08 1,288.74
Income tax expense FriSHif (390.17) (349.83)
Profit for the year FREF 1,139.91 938.91
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT FREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NE]) 1,040.25 832.35
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A 99.66 106.56
1,139.91 938.91
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Results of Operations (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-hE —TN\F
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET ARBEET
Other comprehensive income: Htt 2wk -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently TEREEEN S IEE Rz
to profit or loss: BB -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERKRENERE 4.82 (60.99)
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value AT EEREE
through other comprehensive income FTAH MR
CREEANTEZD (1.61) (17.59)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJEEER DI BB -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEELEMNENZ5E (17.44) (6.25)
Cash flow hedging WEmEE T 0.52 2.28
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of income tax  FREMEEEF X @ FIRATEH (13.71) (82.55)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEKHATE 1,126.20 856.36
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: AFATEEFEFREZEKEREE
Owners of the Company ZA/NGI) S 1,026.54 749.80
Non-controlling interests IR R 99.66 106.56
1,126.20 856.36
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —EER(ARES) 60.04 48.04
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(ARESD) 60.04 48.04
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Revenue A

Our revenue decreased by 1.12% from RMB26,011.73 million for the year AEBWABBE-ZT—N\FT+_A=T—HBIFE
ended 31 December 2018 to RMB25,721.42 million for the year ended 31 MARK2601173EETTRMI%ERE_T—NF
December 2019, mainly because of the net effect of coal mining machinery TZA=T—BLEFEMNARBL 14288 =2
segment and auto parts segment. TR IEE D 5 M TE T EM D SR E -

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and TRES| A EBIRE R REBE D HRADHT (EAL
business (in RMB millions): AREBET) :

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-2-RFt-A=t-ALFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
BUERERWN  RESESIMN #5t
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBBEET AR¥EER AREBEERT

Sales of auto parts RETEEREE - 16,041.03 16,041.03
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIER S B SHE 6,269.02 - 6,269.02
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $f#] 52 B 4th R 5 iU A 2,118.02 128.80 2,246.82
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery EEREEILED HE 856 1,002.43 - 1,002.43
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hi R EmiEeE 86.53 - 86.53
Other revenue E A 75.59 - 75.59

9,551.59 16,169.83 25,721.42

Year ended 31 December 2018
BEZZ—)\FTZA=1T—HLEE

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIRRY,  BUERETEM #aEt
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

ARBBEET ARBBEST ARBBEST

Sales of auto parts RETIMRNEE - 17,658.66 17,658.66
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS BERSHE 5,107.14 - 5,107.14
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $$8; & E-4th KL 5 B U A 2,052.72 86.29 2,139.01
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery B im B (- 80 54 & 868.33 - 868.33
Sales of other coal mining equipment HihERERENEE 136.96 - 136.96
Other revenue Hiblg A 101.63 - 101.63

8,266.78 17,744.95 26,011.73
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded a decrease in our revenue, our cost of sales decreased
by 1.12% from RMB21,159.85 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB20,923.90 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 accordingly.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit decreased by 1.12% from
RMB4,851.88 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB4,797.52
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The change in gross profit during the year primarily comprised of two parts.
The gross profit margin of the coal mining machinery segment increased from
23.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 28.7% for the year ended 31
December 2019 due to the product mix. As of 31 December 2019, the gross
profit margin of the auto parts segment of the Group decreased from 16.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to 12.7% for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group remained at 18.65% for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 112.31% from RMB106.06 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB225.18 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, mainly because of the Group gained more government grants
in2019.

Other Gains and Losses

Our other gains and losses increased from loss of RMB174.50 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to loss of RMB418.40 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, primarily as a result of the impairment of goodwill and
development costs.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by 2.25% from RMB1,044.12
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB1,020.64 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, mainly due to the decrease from auto parts
segment during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 17.33% from RMB1,203.18 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB994.63 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, mainly due to the decrease from auto parts segment
during the year.
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased slightly by 4.08% from RMB3,755.21 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB3,601.97 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses remained stable at RMB1,015.03
million in 2019.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased from RMB220.42 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB243.53 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
which was due to the increase of interests on leases.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 18.73% from RMB1,288.74 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB1,530.08 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased by 11.53% from RMB349.83 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB390.17 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, primarily as a result of the increase in taxable income. Our
effective tax rate decreased to 25.50% for the year ended 31 December 2019
from 27.15% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Total comprehensive income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year and
the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 31.51% from RMB856.36
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB1,126.20 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 24.98% from RMB832.34 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB1,040.25 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB5,836.20 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB490.80 million as compared to approximately RMB6,327.00 million as at
the end of 2018.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB7,525.40 million (31
December 2018: RMB6,968.04 million) and the current ratio was 1.59 as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: 1.60). The decrease in current ratio was
mainly attributable to the increase in borrowings and redemption liabilities.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had RMB3,863.44 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.
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2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB millions RMB millions

ARSBET AREBEHET

Net cash from operating activities RESEBNFT5IR S FEE 3,257.41 1,072.74
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTRIRES F5E (2,158.53) (1,747.63)
Net cash (used in) /from financing activities BMEES(FR),FEIRe T8 (18.63) 1,715.93
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents REe RIS EEBYILHINFERE 1,080.25 1,041.04
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERESHHF L 37.15 (40.18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year REYHEE RIESEEY 2,746.04 1,745.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year RERNIEL RIBESEEY 3,863.44 2,746.04
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Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2019 was RMB3,257.41million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB1,530.08 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB243.53 million; (i) depreciation
of property, plant and equipment of RMB804.59 million, (iii) decrease in
inventories of RMB290.90 million, (iv) increase in trade and other receivables
of RMB455.40 million, (v) decrease in trade and other payables of RMB235.72
million, (vi) increase in contract liabilities of RMB268.67million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2019 was RMB2,158.53 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB879.07 million for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment; (i) payment of RMB365.93 million for the
purchase of other intangible assets; (iii) payment of RMB1,393.00 million
for structured deposits; (iv) proceeds of RMB354.24 million from structured
deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of RMB826.87 million; (vi)
withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB853.89 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities in 2019 was RMB(18.63) million, primarily
consisting of (i) net cash inflow from borrowing of RMB2,857.49 million; (ii)
cash outflow from the repayment of borrowings in the amount of RMB2,587.83
million; and (iii) cash outflow from the payment of lease payments in the amount
of RMB161.37 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,245.01 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and leasehold land and land use rights.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2019, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB350.35 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the Directors, the risk of the default in payment of the endorsed
notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Group
that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised notes
receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

AERBAREE
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HE-Z-NF+-A=1+—8 ArEENFAERKE
ME - BERRBHDRELCTONERAEARE
350.35 A& TT °
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2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET AREBET

i yem

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse HBRENMARERZESE

LS

1,544.54 824.71
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Working Capital and Indebtedness

CEETRAE

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31 TREFEEZZS-NFTA=+—BEREERHE

December 2019 (in RMB millions):

ENBEFHBEEL  ARBBET)

2019 2018
—E-hF =T\
RMB millions RMB millions
ARWEHET NI

GURRENT ASSETS REEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion rE e e TE(REIE D) 26.08 24.96
Long-term receivables, current portion EHEWZECREEES) 239.51 131.92
Loan receivables from associates and a joint venture Ut E AR KA ENEER 10.00 9.75
Inventories =8 3,631.70 3,960.84
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 5,836.20 6,327.00
Transferred trade receivables EEEMNE Z ERGIE 158.76 242.88
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A ERTE EHEEETA
BaemEE 1,394.30 355.54
Financial assets at fair value through AT EEBEZSH:TA
other comprehensive income HiaEmEN SR EE 4,246.82 3,955.29
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMTA 13.95 4.40
Tax recoverable A U B 55 18 38.58 29.66
Contract related assets ARMBHEEE 30.46 -
Bank deposits IRITHER 858.14 884.48
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEY 3,863.43 2,746.04
20,347.93 18,672.76
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NhEAMmEMN A 8,005.54 8,130.55
Contract liabilities AaREAaE 1,699.34 1,390.87
Income tax liabilities Fisfiai 156.37 147.15
Borrowings ==Y 1,395.61 1,019.59
Lease liabilities HERE 140.14 -
Redemption liabilities BEAaE 720.00 -
Provisions Bt 543.14 738.50
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HE2ENE 5 EWRGIE
BHNEE 158.76 242.88
Derivative financial instruments TAESRIEA 3.63 35.18
12,822.53 11,704.72
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 7,525.40 6,968.04

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets of approximately HE_Z—hhF+-_A=+—"H8 KREERHEEZF
JT

RMB7,525.40 million (31 December 2018: RMB6,968.04 million) and current BB ANRET 254088
ratio of 1.59 (31 December 2018: 1.60). The decrease in current ratio was H: AR®6,968048&7T) °

(=2 N\F+ZA=+—
TB % B150( = F

primarily due to the increase in trade payables and borrowings for the year. —N\F+_A=+—H :160) - BB EXTEEEHR

RENE S BN R RAEEZ IR -
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB3,137.49 million, of which RMB1,395.61 million are current portion (31
December 2018: outstanding borrowings was RMB2,867.83 million, of which
RMB1,019.59 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2019, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB15,532 million. As of 31 December 2018,
approximately RMB4,181 million of our credit lines from various domestic and
foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the year
by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2019, our gearing ratio was 97% (31 December 2018:
106%).

gEEEREE®

HE-Z-AFE+-_A=+—8 AEEKEELE
BEAAREII7AAFET  EFRBoEARKE
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Liquidity Risk REBEER
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1 year to 2yearsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cashflows amount
it 4 REX RITH
FERE  ZHRMER  MEAEIE 155% EEE HERELE REE
RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions  RMB millions
AREBEL AREBER ARERER ARWREL AREEET AREKBER
The Group S |
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-A=1+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilties HiEsHEE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE - 117491 83063 - - 8,005.54 8,005.54
Liabilities associated with ransferred 87 2|62 S el FUE S
trade receivables ek - 9.4 119.35 - - 158.76 158.76
Borrowings EE 2.81 427119 1,063.18 834.34 914.23 3,238.94 313749
Lease liabilities HEARE 372 4388 127.88 135.73 522.23 829.72 691.85
Redemption liabiities EEERE 10 72000 - 62340 - 134340 1,287.40
Derivative financial liabiities iTEeRasE
Designated as hedging instruments 387 AR T A - 0.66 1.93 - - 2.59 259
Not designated as hedging instruments M e T A - 0.40 0.64 - - 104 1.04

- 8,406.45

214361 1,993.47 1,436.46 13,579.99 13,284.67
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loan receivable
from associates and a joint venture, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognized certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 33 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s interest risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, and receivable (collectively
“Non-Functional Currency Items”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statement
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£ 2E), aged 56, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). Mr. Jiao is a professor-level senior
engineer. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and Technology (7
TEZEE0T) (now known as China University of Mining and Technology (7
X B 3£ A 22)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture and automation
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985. He obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology
in December 2003, and obtained a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in December 2007. From July
1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production dispatcher and an
engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the manager of Zhengshen
Import Vehicles Repair Station (55 # O )T E 4 £ uk). From May 1993 to
January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and the plant manager of the
No. 1 machinery subplant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From
January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the
plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October
2002 to December 2008, he served as the Chairman and general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (ZCMM). Since December
2008, he has been the Chairman of the Company. Since July 2015, he has
been appointed as a director and the chairman of Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jia Hao (E%), aged 50, is an executive Director and the vice chairman of
the Company (the “Vice Chairman”). Mr. Jia graduated from the Department of
Mechanical Engineering of University of Shanghai for Science and Technology in
1991. He successively worked at Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific
Research Institute of China National Machinery Industry Corporation where he
was responsible for design and research, and Parker Hannifin Motion & Control
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a foreign-funded company, where he was responsible for
sales. In April 2001, he obtained a Master of Business Administration (MBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School. He then worked as
the general manager of the investment division of Salim Group (China) Company
Limited (= #2458 (R E) AR A 7)), a foreign-funded company.
In March 2006, he began to serve as the president of Shanghai Huili Group
Company Limited and a director of Shanghai Huili Company Limited (/&
P BE % {5 & PR A 7)), both of which are the subsidiaries of Salim Group.
From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general manager of
the Company. Since February 2018, he has been the Vice Chairman and the
general manager of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xiang Jiayu (/513X /), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Xiang is a senior engineer. From September 1980 to July 1984, he studied
at the Department of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining
Institute (£E {EHE 2 Z2F5), majoring in mechanization. He studied at the China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s Department (Beijing) (7 B 5%
2R EHL R 55 4 #6) from September 1988 to January 1991, majoring
in mining mechanical engineering and obtained a master’s degree. From July
1984 to August 1988, he lectured at Yima Mining Technical School (= 55 1&
& BEAR). From May 1991 to December 1992, he was a designer at the
research center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December
1992 to July 1995, he was the executive officer of the No. 2 research center
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November
1998, he was the deputy plant manager at Huanghe Electric Vehicle Plant (&

TENE ) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November
1998 to July 2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project center
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he served as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and standing deputy general manager of ZCMM. From October 2008
to December 2008, he was a director and the general manager of ZCMM. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a Director and the general manager
of the Company. From February 2015 to February 2018, he was the Vice
Chairman of the Company. Since December 2014, he has been the secretary to
the Party Committee of the Company. Since July 2015, he has been a director
of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, he has
been a Director of the Company.

Mr. Fu Zugang ({338R), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at
Wuhan Technology College (% T 225x) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (EtEIE T A22)), majoring in casting and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to November 2006, he was the chairman of the labor union of ZCMM. From
November 2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy
general manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he
was a Director and a deputy general manager of the Company. From February
2015 to February 2018, he was the general manager of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been a Director and a general manager of the Coal
Mining Machinery Segment of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wang Xinying (£ %), aged 54, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at the Department of Mining Engineering of Chongging University
(BB A2, majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July
2007, he studied at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of
Mining and Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer of
the equipment department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of machinery repair of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July 2000,
he was a deputy director of the production department of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head
of the corporate planning division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2015, he was a Director and deputy
general manager of the Company. He was appointed as a director of Luoyang
LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. with effect from 29 June 2016 and was appointed as
the chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. with effect from 30 June 2016.
Since February 2015, he has been a Director of the Company.

Mr. Wang Bin (X&), aged 60, is an executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Department of Thermal Engineering of Tsinghua University
in 1982 and later graduated with an MBA from Tsinghua University in 1998.
From 1982 to 1990, he was an engineer/executive officer of the research
institute under the State Economic and Trade Commission. From 1990 to 1997,
he was the manager of China market of the U.S.— based General Electric. From
1997 t0 2005, he was the general manager of ASIMCQ’s division of combustion
system. From 2005 to 2010, he was the general manager of Cummins (U.S.)
headquarters and of the CES division of China region. Since 2010, he has been
the president and CEO of ASIMCO Group. Since February 2018, he has been a
Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yao (2)28), aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Ms. Liu studied in Xiamen University from 1992 to 1996 and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry. From 1997 to December 1998, she
studied in the National University of Singapore and obtained a master’s degree
in chemistry. From 1999 to March 2001, Ms. Liu studied materials engineering
in Case Western Reserve University in the United States of America and obtained
a master’s degree. From 2005 to May 2007, she studied in the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania, the United States of America and obtained an
EMBA degree. From March 2001 to May 2007, Ms. Liu served as an analyst,
manager and department head for Capital One Bank. She worked in Deutsche
Bank at its corporate finance practice under the investment banking department
as a manager from July 2007 to November 2009. From December 2009 to
June 2014, she worked in the investment banking department of UBS as an
associate director, a director and an executive director. From June 2014 to May
2016, she served as a managing director of HK Griffin Reed Capital Group (3
%4 K £ [3)). She founded RJ Capital Group (158 & Z< ££[F]) and has been
the chairman since June 2016. Since June 2014, she has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Li Xudong (Z=E%), aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li is a senior accountant, Chinese certified public
accountant, Chinese certified assets valuer and Chinese certified tax agent.
From 2000 to 2003, he studied at Central University of Finance and Economics
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is currently a managing
partner (#1774 % A) of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) (RE & FTRIE 5P (KA @A) ). Mr. Li was a member
of the 13th, 14th and 15th sessions of the review committee for main board
issue of China Securities Regulatory Commission. In 1996, Mr. Li commenced
his CPA business and has focused on the partial and whole-scale listing of
corporate assets, asset restructuring, and IPO audit and consulting business for
listed companies. Mr. Li has been a chief auditor or a certified public accountant
signing the audit for listed companies and large-scale state-owned enterprises
including Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (&3 mg 2 ERND AR
‘A a)), Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (A5
HE FeBR(L TRXD B R A 7)), Zhejiang Hangxiao Steel Structure Co.,
Ltd. CH75T & & A A BR 2 &), China CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd.
(R TEB TI2A% B R A 7)), and China National Machinery Industry
Corporation (FR B # 4% T 2£ 5 [& /2 7). He has accumulated professional
experience in areas including accounting, auditing, asset appraisal, merger
and acquisition and corporate governance consulting. Since February 2015,
Mr. Li has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Li has been an independent non-executive director of Tianjin TEDA Biomedical
Engineering Company Limited (R)2ZziE £V EE TR MH AR A F)
(Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 8189) since December 2016.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Hua (I ), aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Jiang was among the first batch of securities lawyers
in China. From September 1981 to June 1985, he studied law at Renmin
University of China and obtained a bachelor’s degree. From September 1985
to June 1987, he studied civil law at Renmin University of China and obtained a
master's degree. He began to practice law in 1993. From 1993 to 1994, he was
a partner of the Beijing-based Zhong Yin Law Firm (1t S $R 12 EMEH#5
Ff7). From June 1994 to 2001, he was a partner of the Beijing-based Dacheng
Law Offices (It T KA AT E 75 F). From 2001 to 2003, he was a
partner of the Beijing-based Tongwei Law Firm (1t 5277 [R) 4 72 B S5 75 A1),
Since 2003, he has been a partner of Beijing Kangda Law Firm (3t R =
EEMEH5AT). In 2012, Mr. Jiang was hired by the Law School and the Lawyer
College of Renmin University of China as a part-time instructor for graduate
students under the Juris Master program. He has provided legal services in
various aspects, including transformation into share based corporations, issue
and listing of shares, refinancing, and merger and acquisition to more than
a hundred enterprises including Beijing Tiangiao (1t ;2 &<4%), Gu Yue Long
Shan (& #BELL), Yintai Resources (8254 J8) and so forth, contributing
his profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical experience. As a
lawyer, Mr. Jiang Hua is qualified to become an independent director of listed
companies. Mr. Jiang has been an independent director of Jonjee Hi-Tech
Industrial & Commercial Holding Co., Ltd. (R4E S EFT M E X (£F) %
2 A B2 7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600872) from 2003 to 2011, an
independent director of Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (f73/1
8 B EUR Bl RATRS 4 B BR A A1) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002415)
from 2008 to 2014, an independent director of China Zhonghua Geotechnical
Engineering Co., Ltd. (1kE+ T2 {5 B PR 22 7]) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002542) from 2009 to 2017, an independent director of Daheng
New Epoch Technology Inc. (KB 42 ST RHZ AR D B IR A 7)) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange: 600288) from 2009 to 2014, an independent director of Huafa
Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai (Bk/&%= 85 & 2 /%D B2 A A)) (Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 600325) since 2013, an independent director of China National
Complete Plant Import and Export Corporation Limited (FR g H O A% B
[R /2 &) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000151) since 2014, an independent
director of Shanxi Top Energy Company Ltd. (LI FE3BE gE)RIK D B IR A 7))
(Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600780) since 2016 and an independent director of
Huaiji Dengyun Auto-parts (Holding) Co., Ltd. (BE& /5B B IR A 7))
(Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002715) since August 2017. Since February 2015,
he has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (F22 %), aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Cheng is a professor-level senior engineer. From
1989 to 2001, Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an engineer
in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and logistics
department, head of the production planning department and head of the
product engineering department. From 2001 to June 2018, he served at
SAIC Motor as the general manager of its technology and quality department,
president of the engineering academy, as well as general manager of the
strategy and business planning department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was
also the chairman of SAIC Silicon Valley Venture Capital (/58 B @& &
/A1), Dalian Sunrise Power Company (Fuel Cell) (A EERA T (K E
1)) and DIAS Automotive Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (B85 EFH
[/~ 7)), a director of SAIC VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of
China Society of Automotive Engineers, and the president of Shanghai Society
of Automotive Engineers from 2014 to June 2018. He has been the partner
and president of AGRC since June 2018, and the chairman of Yidu Automobile
Technology (Shanghai) Company Limited (=85 RH R (E8) R A
7)) since October 2018. In addition, Mr. Cheng has been an independent non-
executive director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited (01828.HK, delisted
on 8 January 2020) since April 2018 and started to serve as an independent
director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. (/88 B BRI IRMD AR A )
(603037.SH) since August 2019. Since October 2019, Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company.
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Supervisors

Mr. Liu Qiang (258), aged 50, is a Supervisor of the Company. From
September 1986 to July 1990, Mr. Liu studied at Nankai University, majoring
in economics management and law, and obtained bachelor’s degrees in
economics and law. From September 2001 to July 2004, he studied at Wuhan
University, majoring in world economics, and obtained a master’s degree. In
July 2009, he graduated from Henan University, majoring in regional economics
and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He obtained a doctoral degree
in economics in December 2009. From July 1990 to November 2002, he
successively worked at the agriculture audit division, general office and division
of legal affairs under the Department of Audit of Henan Province, and his last
position was the department-head-level officer. From November 2002 to July
2012, he was the deputy section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee
for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government
(MEEEERAEESES) From July 2012 to November 2012, he
served as the department-head-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee
for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government.
From November 2012 to September 2014, he was a researcher of Provincially
Administered Medium and Small Enterprise Department (& B H /M2
i) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. He also served as a researcher of
Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government from
September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014, he has been the
secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited. From February 2015 to February 2018, he was a
Director of the Company. Since February 2018, he has been chairman of the
Board of Supervisors and chairman of Labor Union of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yue (£ #), aged 49, is a Supervisor of the Company. In July
1993, Mr. Wang graduated from the Department of Industrial Economics of
Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (3] & B4 4% £2F) and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics. In July 2006, he obtained an MBA degree
from Zhengzhou University (£5/1 X £2). From October 1993 to October 1998,
he was an accountant in Zhengzhou Running Water General Corporation (&5
™ B %7K 422 7). From November 1998 to March 2001, he was the deputy
head of the department of accounting and finance of Zhengzhou Dongzhou
Water Supply Company Limited (2584 717 3 /& £ 7K /5 BR 22 &). From June
2004 to December 2009, he was successively the deputy head and head of the
finance department and the financial controller of Zhengzhou Running Water
General Corporation. From December 2009 to November 2013, he was the
chief accountant of Zhengzhou Running Water Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (&5
I B ARk 35 & 122 B A BR /A 7). From November 2013 to September 2015,
he was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Development Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (BB 2% R 1% & &= B B BR 2 7). Since September 2015, he
has been the deputy general manager of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (W EAMA (1% & SR E AR A E/A 7). Since February 2018,
he has been a Supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Cui Leilei (BE &), aged 38, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Cui
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology (FF BIi& %2 A £2) in
July 2007, majoring in mechanical engineering and automation. From August
2007 to February 2012, he worked at the office, production and manufacturing
division and the plant of oil tanks of the Company successively. From February
2012 to February 2015, he was the deputy head of the capital operation division
of the Company. From February 2015 to October 2015, he was the deputy
head (person-in-charge) of the strategic development division of the Company.
From October 2015 to February 2018, he was the head of general office and
head of human resources division of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. Since February 2018, he has been a Supervisor and the head of division of
Party and masses’ affairs (the division of administration) of the Company. Since
March 2019, he has also served as the head of human resources division of the
Company.

Mr. Ni Wei ({2 &), aged 55, is a Supervisor of the Company. From 1983 to
1991, Mr. Ni studied at Tsinghua University and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in automobile engineering and a master’s degree in mechanical engineering
successively. From 1991 to 1995, he was a trainer of Mercedes-Benz (15
EEET A E 5 /A 7). From 1995 to 1998, he was a service engineer,
manufacturing and production manager of General Motors Company. From
1998 to 2001, he successively served as an export manager and deputy
general manager at Hubei Super-Elec Auto Electric Motor Co., Ltd. ($iibt$EE
JRE B PR A 7). Since September 2001, he has been the president of
ASIMCO International Inc. (55 7RI B B R A &). Since March 2004, he
has been the vice president of the ASIMCO Group. Since February 2018, he has
been a Supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Rong (/& %g), aged 48, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhou
graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering and technology
from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 1996. He graduated from
Zhengzhou University majoring in mechanical engineering and obtained a
master’s degree in engineering in June 2007. He served as the deputy plant
manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of ZCMM from April 2002 to August
2006. From August 2006 to December 2007, he was the plant manager of the
sub-plant of electroplating of ZCMM. From December 2007 to August 2009, he
was the plant manager of the sub-plant of installation of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited. From August 2009 to February 2010, he
was the deputy head of the marketing and sales division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From February 2010 to February
2011, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From February 2011 to April
2011, he was the deputy plant manager of the plant of oil tanks and the plant
manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited. From April 2011 to February 2016, he was the head
of the supply division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited. From February 2016 to February 2018, he has been an assistant to
chief financial officer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited. Since February 2015, he has been a Supervisor of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been a deputy general manager of the coal mining
machinery segment of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Yichen (38 3 ), aged 34, is a Supervisor of the Company. From
September 2005 to June 2009, Mr. Zhang studied Chinese Language and
Literature in Huazhong University of Science and Technology and obtained a
bachelor’s degree. From July 2009 to April 2014, he worked in the general
office and capital operation division of the Company successively. From May
2014 to January 2016, he served as an assistant to the head of the general
office and an assistant to the head of the strategic development division of the
Company. From February 2016 to February 2020, he has been the deputy
head (person in charge) of the strategic development division of the Company.
From August 2016 to February 2018, he also served as the deputy head of
general office of the Company. Since February 2018, he has been a Supervisor
of the Company. Since February 2020, he has been the head of the strategic
development division of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Shaochong (35 4>34), aged 38, is a Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Yuan graduated from Hebei University of Engineering majoring in mechanical
design, manufacturing and automation and obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
July 2006. From July 2006 to September 2011, he served as a technician and
planning coordinator of the sub-plant of processing, the head of production
and allocation and control room of production and manufactory division of
Zhengzhou Goal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited. From October 2011
to November 2011, he served as the deputy head of west zone production and
manufactory department. From November 2011 to January 2013, he served
as the deputy head of the production and manufactory division. From January
2013 to February 2014, he served as the deputy plant manager of the assembly
plant. From February 2014 to February 2015, he served as the plant manager
of the assembly plant. From February 2015 to February 2016, he served as the
general manager of the oil tank company. Since February 2016, he has been
the plant manager of the assembly plant. Since February 2020, he has also
served as the head of the production and manufactory division. Since February
2018, he has been a Supervisor of the Company.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), aged 50, is a general manager of the Company. Please
refer to “— Directors” of this section for his biography.

Mr. Fu Qi (133%), aged 50, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1988 to July 1992, he studied at
China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical design and
theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section member of the
first development department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December 1996,
he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first development
division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he was a section
officer and the deputy head of the planned sales department, the deputy head
of the marketing and sales division, and the deputy head of the sub-plant
of installation. From January 2006 to March 2008, he was the head of the
production and manufactory division. From April 2010 to February 2012, he
was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee of Huainan ZMJ
Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (5R3&3®), aged 38, is the secretary to the Board and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from China University
of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005.
From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general office of
ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief secretary
of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March 2010, he was
the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From March 2010 to
September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the general office of
the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he served as the deputy
head of capital operation division and representative for securities affairs of the
Company. From January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of general
office, head of capital operation division and representative for securities affairs
of the Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was also the head of
division of Party and masses’ affairs. From February 2015 to February 2018, he
was the deputy general manager and secretary to the Board of the Company.
From July 2017 to February 2018, he was also the chief financial officer of the
Company. Since February 2018, he has been the secretary to the Board of the
Company.

EX EERSREER

EREEBAE

BIERE  505%  MIEARRAIMELIE - BB ZIERE -
R —&=] -

FHHFRE - 505%  BEARFBELE - MELERS
HIIREN c —NWNANFNAE—NANLZFLA  HH
BEANBHMBFRIEREESE - — WM ZF LA
E-NAAFNA - BMEBERmFAE —ERE
—NNAFNLAE—NANAFERA - EERE—EET
BE  —AWAAFERAZE—NAAAE+=A BE—K
BER  —hWARNE+ZAZ=ZZTTREF—F ' EI#H
EHEERE - BER - MBEETRNE - RO
BME  —EZRF-—AZ-_FZE/N\F=F  EIT4LE
Bk — T SFMNAET—ZF=H ' £
HEERRT AR EIEERRESZEN —_T——F
—RAES  AARRRIBIEEIE -

OB E - 3858 RAARRABIEETEWE R QAW
E REENRZZETRAFLAZENTRHBEEAS &
SEBELEN  c _TTRFLA-ZFTTLF=H
FHMNEEEREBRMBRETRAMAEZTNE : =F
THE=ZF-—"TT)N\F+-F  EEMNEERRER
BREARGNAENERR 2T NF+ZA—=
T—TF=F  ARARMAEWERKR 2T —TF=
A—=—Z—ZFNA AARPRAEEEYE =F
—ZEFNA-ZF—ZF—F  ARAFEREZHE
R BHEEBREX ZFT——-F—REZZT—HF=
A FAREMMAZTEARENBE PR - FHEH
RE: ZT——FtRAET—hHF_F  FEEHTL
EHHE - ZE—RAF_REZT—NFZH ' F42
ARl REEEME - —T—+tFELA TN
FZA REARFUBEE - —E—N\F-_AES
ERRARESTSWE -

41



42

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EERSAREERE

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Huang Hua (Z1£), aged 51, is the chief financial officer of the Company.
Ms. Huang is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. In July
1987, she graduated from Central South University majoring in metal physics
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science. In August 1990, she obtained
a master’s degree in engineering majoring in inorganic nonmetal materials
granted by the Institution of Metal Research under Chinese Academy of
Sciences. In December 2000, she obtained a master of business administration
(MBA) degree from China Europe International Business School. From August
1990 to November 1991, she served as an assistant researcher at the
Institution of Metal Research (Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences.
From December 1991 to April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-
plant, manager of the corporate management division, chief engineer and
assistant general manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From
September 2000 to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the
capital operation division of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited (7
& (BHK) AR AR]). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served
as an investment manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd. (Z 3| &l
R E AR A 7). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the
general manager and director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company
Limited (#B5 & & ¥ KB R 2 F]). From May 2005 to December
2006, she served as the general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co.,
Ltd. From January 2007 to June 2008, she served as a project manager and
senior analyst at VALE INCO LIMITED (formerly the headquarters of Inco Ltd.
(& KEFR42 % 2 7). From July 2008 to September 2017, she served
as the treasurer and risk officer of Vale Minerals (China) Co., Ltd. (AZKJAT &
TBE P B AR AF]). From October 2017 to February 2018, she was
the consultant for the acquisition of SG Holding by Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited. Since February 2018, she has been the
chief financial officer of the Company.

Ms. Li Weiping (£ ), aged 46, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. From October 2003 to June 2005, she studied under the MBA
programme in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. From September 1994 to
August 2002, she served as the human resources commissioner/supervisor/
manager of ABB Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd. (ABB¥T& K B
475 IR /A 7). From September 2002 to September 2004, she served as the
senior human resources manager of Bosch Heating System Co., Ltd. (ftt#£
% Z 45 PR A a)). From September 2004 to September 2008, she served
as the director of human resources at Bosch Automotive Diesel Systems Co.,
Ltd. (R EE LM Z 4 AR A /). From July 2008 to December 2009,
she served as the director of Asia-Pacific human resources at the German
headquarters of Bosch Rexroth (Rohr, Germany). From January 2010 to
March 2012, she served as the director of human resources at Bosch Rexroth
Hydraulic (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (I&t ) - 44& B (b 7R) BR A R]). From
January 2012 to August 2018, she served as the director of human resources
and chief business officer of Bosch Automotive Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
(Et 5B E 1 (B N) BB 7). Since October 2018, she has been the
deputy general manager of the Company.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR#2E), aged 44, is the assistant to the company
secretary. Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 19 years of professional experience
in handling the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally
well-known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. She is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Review Period”), the
Company complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are
assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorize them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 9 meetings in total, one on each
of 26 March 2019, 29 April 2019, 17 June 2019, 26 July 2019, 28 August
2019, 09 August 2019, 30 October 2019, 04 November 2019, 27 December

2019.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as

follows:
Name of Directors
EEng
Jiao Chengyao fEAE
JiaHao B
Xiang Jiayu BES]
Fu Zugang (DRl
Wang Xinying T
Wang Bin TE
Liu Yao Bz
Li Xudong EJJES
Jiang Hua TE
Cheng Jinglei REE

(RZZE-NF+A
—t—HEZE)

(appointed on 21 October 2019)

Number

of Board
meetings
required

to be attended
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Number Number
of Board of Board Number of
meetings meetings Board
attended attended hy meetings Attendance
in person proxy not attended rate
FALHERE ERHERE HRERH HE=R
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
2 0 0 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued) 0
General Meetings &N

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of three general WMEER - ARFHEETINBREARE - LHES -
meetings, which were attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior EERAREBABHRE TRERE - L TAEEHRE
management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as BRERAEIEMR

follows:
2019 Second
Extraordinary
General Meeting
(2019 First
2019 A Shareholders
First 2018 Class Meeting,
Extraordinary Annual 2019 First
General General H Shareholders  Attendance Actual  Attendance
Meeting Meeting Class Meeting) required  attendance rate
01955 2K
BERRAE
20195 (20195 55—k
-1 W18F ARERIRRAE
Name of Directors e FE 019FE—k BB
EEpR BRRXE BRRAE HRERRRAE) ELEAE HERE HE=
Jiao Chengyao ERE y y 3 2 67%
Jia Hao Bk | | | 3 3 100%
Xiang Jiayu BEG] V | | 3 3 100%
Fu Zugang ok y y 3 2 67%
Wang Xinying T y | y 3 3 100%
Wang Bin TE V V | 3 3 100%
Liu Yao Bz= N 3 1 33%
Li Xudong EEES | 3 1 33%
Jiang Hua T y y 3 2 67%
Cheng Jinglei BEE
(appointed on 21 October 2019) (RZZF—NF+A

—+—REZH) NATER NATER NAT &R 0 0 NAMEA
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Board of Directors (continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, from 1 January 2019 to 20 October 2019, the
Board consisted of nine Directors, including six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors; and from 21 October 2019 to 31
December 2019, the Board consisted of ten Directors, comprising six executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors. More than one-third
of the members of the Board of the Company are independent non-executive
Directors.

The executive Directors possess extensive experience in coal mining machinery
and auto parts industries, and the independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications in law and accounting as well as financial
management expertise. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period and as of the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao
(Executive Director and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu
Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director) and Wang Bin
(Executive Director).

Independent Non-executive Directors: Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Li Xudong, Mr. Jiang
Hua and Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the Board
considers that all of the four independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.
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Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph C.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is
aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and
offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding the
Group’s assets.

Structure of risk management and internal control functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organizational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the management of the Company, the Audit
Department and various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance
of the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The
Audit Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and makes
recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit Department of
the Company conducts internal audit and supervision for risk management, and
is responsible to the management of the Company. As the first line of defence
in risk management and internal control, various departments of the Company
organize and carry out the daily work in risk management and accept the
organization, coordination, guidance and supervision by the management and
the Audit Department of the Company in doing their part of risk management
and internal control in their respective professional areas.

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganized and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that is
unique to the Company.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

Commencement of risk management work

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with,
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for internal audit in risk
management. By organizing and commencing the supervision and assessment
of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company continuously
monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes in risks in the
course of operation and management of each responsible department for risks,
supervises and assesses whether each department is able to commence risk
management work in accordance with the relevant regulations and the results
of the work, and makes recommendations on improving the effectiveness of
implementing risk management work.

Operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterized by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 27 March 2020. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2019 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Control (continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors of
the Company shall be elected or replaced at the general meetings and the
terms of office of all Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) shall be three years. Upon the expiry of the terms,
the Directors will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment. Subject to
the compliance with relevant laws and administrative regulations, the general
meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service term by way of an
ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation pursuant to any
contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organized by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

All the Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018, from 18 July 2018 to 17
July 2019 and from 18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, who have confirmed
their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle of
combining incentives and disciplines, and market adjustment and governmental
regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Board Committees

The Board has set up four committees, namely, the Strategy Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code. These Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference. The composition and main functions of these committees and their
work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu
Zugang and Mr. Jiang Hua.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board,; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not convene any meeting during the year.

Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprised Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Ms. Liu Yao and Mr. Jiang Hua, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work, including: (i)
proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (i) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii) coordinating the
communication between our internal Audit Department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure
of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control system and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems
and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the risk
management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with the management to ensure that
the management has performed its duty to establish such effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and the management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability to respond to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and (x) exercising other functions and duties as
authorized by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee convened four meetings, with
full attendance of the entire committee:

(1)

On 26 March 2019, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its first meeting in 2019, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on the 2018 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on 2018 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2018
Annual Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the
Company to Sign and Announce 2018 Annual Report of the Company’s H
Shares, the Proposal on the 2018 Report on Internal Control Assessment of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on the 2018 Audit Report on Internal Control of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the 2018 Report on the
Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Appointment of
External Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit Institution for 2019
and Payment for the Auditing Fees for 2018, the Proposal on the Daily
Connected Transactions of the Company in 2018 and the Expected Daily
Connected Transactions of the Company in 2019, and the Proposal on the
Provision for Impairment of Goodwill;

On 29 April 2019, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its second meeting in 2019, where it considered and approved
the Proposal on the 2019 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and the Proposal on Change of
Accounting Policies of the Company;

On 22 August 2019, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its third meeting in 2019, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on 2019 Interim Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of the
Company, the Proposal on 2019 Interim Results Announcement of H Shares
and 2019 Interim Report of H Shares of the Company, and the Proposal on
the 2019 Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of the Company;

On 30 October 2019, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the
Board convened its fourth meeting in 2019, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the 2019 Third Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman), Mr. Fu Zugang and Ms. Liu Yao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director and
is comprised of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
Directors and management personnel; (iii) search for qualified candidates of
Directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of Directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
Directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the
Board.

During the Review Period, The Nomination Committee convened one meeting
with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 28 August 2019, the Nomination Committee of the fourth session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2019, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Amendment to the Articles of Association of the
Company in relation to the Composition of the Board, and the Proposal on
the additional appointment of an independent Director of the fourth session
of the Board of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Ms. Liu Yao and
Mr. Jiang Hua, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s Directors and management personnel; (ii) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s Directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such Directors and officers;
(i) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

During the Review Period, The Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened four meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 18 April 2019, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fourth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2019, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on awarding personnel who made
special contributions to 2018 performance of ZMJ;

(2)  On 29 April 2019, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fourth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2019, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on Mid — to Long-term super profit
incentive scheme;

(3) On 26 July 2019, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fourth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2019, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on Formulating the 2019 Share
Option Incentive Scheme (Draft) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited and its abstract, and the Proposal on Formulating
the Administrative Measures for Performance Evaluation under the 2019
Share Option Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited;

(4)  On 9 August 2019, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fourth session of the Board convened its fourth meeting in 2019, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme (Revised Draft) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited and its abstract, and the Proposal on the Administrative
Measures for Performance Evaluation (Revision) under the 2019 Share
Option Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
FMAR (AR¥FT)

0-500
500-750
750-1,000
>1,000
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Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Services rendered

iR (AR 3%

2019 annual audit
Non-audit services JEEAZ RS
Total st

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organizing meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an
associate director of a corporate service provider, SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to
corporate governance, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws
and regulations which are relevant to the Company and other affairs of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.
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17,110

RAME

RARRARWERFREREE(REE])  BAKAF
BEFENE EARANESR HARRWAEEHKE

PR -

BESN - ARRERERBEELE((REL ) RARWE
BIE - DABSRIEATYIAE - WiRBREABITRIER
REWENRBELBE @ flnEHhEEe g8 HRE
BASH MEUSH AT AR RIS 3. 28 6 AR E O AR RAAE
B MAER/—PEEREHERTECXREEE
(BB)BRRARIZHMEES - SIEEEREHE  BBL
TRANUREMBERR R REMEERER LR -
BRAz & BN B]HY 2 BN A SRR AEBEER o

RELNMRLZTHERBERE - 20 EBERFITD
P15/ N o



Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.
Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zzmj.com). The means of communication between the Company
and the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or
seminars, one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media
interviews and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for 90 consecutive days shall have the
right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
S0 compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit the temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Econ-Tech Development Zone,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amended the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has been
revised twice. The amendments were considered and approved at the first
extraordinary general meeting of 2019 held on 15 May 2019 and the second
extraordinary general meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 26 March 2019 and 28 August
2019 and the circular of the Company dated 30 April 2019 and 23 September
2019 respectively for details.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Dividend Policy are as
follows:

()  Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect a reasonable investment
return to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimization principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
volume of stocks, development strategies, investment plans, profit growths
and cash flows.

(I The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.

() The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritize distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%;

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while it has
a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may be dealt with
pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution. Major investment or
significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed external investment by the
Company within the next twelve months, asset acquisition (including land use
rights) or facilities procurement with accumulated expenditure amounting to or
exceeding 10% of the latest audited net assets of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(V)

(v

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realized for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganization, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganization or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganization report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the return to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realizes profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting, and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders
and prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to
the Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through network voting system, if
necessary.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company: (Continued)

3.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
a government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) the following established dividend policy will
render if impossible for the material investment projects and material
transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board to be
implemented according to established transaction plans; (4) the
Board has reasonable grounds to believe that following the established
dividend policy will have material adverse impact on the continuing
operation and profitability of the Company.

(X) Mechanism for supervision and limiting on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of
dividend distribution policy by and shareholders’ returns plan of the
Board and the management, and the execution and decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of profit
distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

BREBER @)
(M) ATFIED B RR TR RS - ()

RAFHERE DABER AR - ()RR
EEBEEREDBEMABRTENEN Q87
BEARNKRRAEEHAZNMEAR - A7
BREEED BNBEMBESTERERAK
EFERESUIMIRE (FRITER - 2R
BUNESFS)BREITRANREBF
QIEIELE N ALK AT EHARBREAE
HEESHAENEAREER - EARZEZE
BERERSGHIRERN  WEFTEEREEH
MRERIREEE DA BRI TS A R RHEL
SRFEMENBREL TN ER o

(H)HR 2D ALE B E KR

EERRUEEFNEERBRITARDAER
FPRR AR B R SOR R FFETTEE ¢

REEEE  BRASHEL B LBERETT
REN A BETEE TN E BE L EENF
PERROER o BERAGHRENALAETSR
ETERER  ERBZEBRE(BEETRR
B HFE EFEM - FR EBEZEH
) EBEPRAF R T/ DN RETEBNR
o DR/ MR Y REEEF/)
PRER OB RRRE

ERRBNOBERT @ RREFEARMERS
ME ERRN  BEEEHRESTRERD
AMRE - ARARDANESEFARMNA
& B IFITERREE M B RN BT
TR



Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X) Mechanism for supervision and limiting on cash dividend (Continued)

4. The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.

Board of Supervisors
Composition of Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
seven members, four of whom are nominated by the shareholders and three are
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period and as of the date of this annual report,
the members of the Board of Supervisors were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue,
Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan
Shaochong.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in that section, there is no other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)
Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the finance affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
Company Law;

e proposing motions to general meetings;

e ljaising with Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the Company Law;

e in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

e reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

e exercising other duties and powers specified in the Articles of Association.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held seven meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively contributes
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis. The sections of Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
financial statements of this annual report.

The Board held a meeting on 27 March 2020, at which a relevant resolution has
been passed, which proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB1.85 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2019, totalling
approximately RMB320,507,203.45. If the proposal in relation to the profit
distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2019 annual general meeting
to be held on 15 June 2020 (the “2019 Annual General Meeting”),the final
Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or about 31 July
2020.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (2 A R LRI
P15 8)%) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax rate
of enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident enterprise
deriving from the PRC is 10%. In this regard, any H Shares registered under
the name of a non-individual enterprise, including under the name of HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees, or other organisations or entities,
shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as
defined under the “EIT Law”). The Company will distribute the final Dividend
to those non-resident enterprise shareholders subject to a deduction of 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 (87 B £ 25 [1993]0455% X {4
RE L1 B BAE A PRSTUEE M AR A) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued shares in
Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final dividend
upon such dividend payment to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose
names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the
record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation
agreements or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identification of shareholders or any disputes
over the mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile which has
entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of
lower than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of the Company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading”), the
Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of
H Shares for the Southbound Trading (7 & i HA% B% =I5 4 41 F R 2 %3
%) with China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, pursuant
to which, China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited or its
branches, as the nominal investors of H Shares for the Southbound Trading,
will receive cash dividends distributed by the Company and distribute the cash
dividends to relevant investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading through
its depositary and clearing system.

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will be
paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on the
Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect (Caishui No. [2014]81) (BEFA B BIR R T 1532 5) 5 Bk B i ikl
24 BT UL R /3R A0 (BF £ [20141815% ) and the Notice on the Tax
Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect (Caishui No. [2016]127) (BB A S 5 32 5 B Bk B i b i1
BB BT R Ay @ A0 (B R [2016]127 5% )), for dividends received
by domestic individual investors from investing in H Shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies of such H Shares shall
withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of the investors.
For dividends received by domestic securities investment funds from investing
in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable
shall be the same as that for individual investors. The companies of such H
Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise
investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering,
the use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company.

Regarding the use of proceeds raised from H Share offering of the Company
for 2019, the banking charge, deposit interest income received, bond interest
income received and foreign exchange gain amounted to RMB1,817.25,
RMB26,966.92, RMB1,479.50 and RMB915,011.69 respectively. As of
31 December 2019, the balance of proceeds raised from the H Share offering
amounted to approximately RMB41,875,488.45.

For the unused funds raised from H Share offering, it is expected that the
Company would continue to apply it to the acquisition of high-quality assets
in the auto parts industry according to the announcement on 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 50 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Share Option Incentive Scheme

In order to implement the national policies on deepening the reform of state-
owned enterprises and documents such as the Notice by the State Council of
Issuing the Plan for Reforming the State-owned Capital Authorized Operation
System (Guo Fa [2019] No.9) ((BAR EN 3 B £ B & AN IR A AL & B2 5
77 ZE 3 #0) (F 2420191955 ) and the Notice by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council on Issuing the
‘Double-Hundred” Work Plan for the Reform of State-owned Enterprises (Guo Zi
Fa Yan Jiu [2018] No.70) KBANENE B P EIE H178 | TIEH RN
3B B & 257 35 [2018]7054%), further improve the corporate governance
structure of the Company, promote the establishment and perfection of the
distribution mechanism that combines incentives and restraints, fully mobilize
the Directors, senior management, core management and core technicians
and key business personnel of the Company, effectively align the interests
of Shareholders and the Company and with the personal interests of the
management, facilitate the Company in releasing new vitality in sustainable
development as well as promote the sustainable development of the Company,
The establishment of the A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by
shareholders at the Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, the First
A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and the First H Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the Share
Option Incentive Scheme, the Company will grant a number of options to the
qualified participants who are entitled to purchase A Shares of the Company.
The number of share options proposed to be granted to the participants under
the Share Option Incentive Scheme is no more than 16,030,000, amounting to
0.93% of the total share capital of the Company (i.e. 1,732,471,370 shares) as
at the date of this report. The total number of shares of the Company granted
to any participant under the Share Option Incentive Scheme within the validity
periods of all equity incentive schemes of the Company shall in aggregate not
exceed 1% of the Company’s total share capital and 1% of the Company’s total
issued A Share capital at the date on which the scheme was approved at the
general meetings. The total number of A Shares in respect of all equity incentive
schemes of the Company in effect shall in aggregate not exceed 10% of the
Company’s total share capital and 10% of the Company’s total issued A Share
capital at the date on which the scheme was approved at the general meetings.
Under the scheme, options granted to participants are only vested if certain
performance standards are met. Participation in the scheme is at the Board’s
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the scheme
or to receive any guaranteed benefits.
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Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Company granted 16,030,000 share options to
333 participants under the Share Option Incentive Scheme. The date of grant
was 4 November 2019. The breakdown of allocation is as follows:

Name Position

#E B

Jia Hao Vice Chairman and General Manager
=V BESEK - e

Fu Zugang Executive Director

E R HWITES

Fu Qi Deputy General Manager
& Bl 4assse

Zhang Haibin Secretary to the Board
SRR e

Huang Hua Chief Financial Officer
L i HeEs

Li Weiping Deputy General Manager
xR BliaIE

Core management and core personnel of the Company’s Headquarters and
relevant business segments (327 people in total)
AR RAAAEERRZOEERAS - ROBEH(H327TA)

Total

At

The exercise price of the share options in the grant is RMB5.98 per A Share.
Exercise price of the share options shall be adjusted accordingly with reference
to the occurrence of any events to the Company such as capitalization of capital
reserves, bonus issue, share subdivision or consolidation, rights issue and
dividend distribution prior to the exercise of share options. The closing price of
the A Shares of the Company at the date of grant was RMB6.05 per A Share.

B EHA BT &l ()

MEHR - AR RIRERESEN T8 M333 B B ENEH R
B T1,6038B DRI - BT HEA2019F11 548 -
HECRAART

Percentage of the
Percentage of the total share capital
Number of share number of the  of the Company

options granted share options as at the date
(0°000) in the Grant of this report

RN AR TF R E
REHEHE REHE BHEIARATF
(B4) BE LA HBARA Y LBl

70 4.37% 0.04%

60 3.74% 0.03%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

1,333 83.16% 0.77%

1,603 100.00% 0.93%
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Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued) IR ZHARER B ST Bl ()

The validity period of the Share Option Incentive Scheme is 10 years, starting BRSBTS R A10F - AIRERS TSI ERET
from the date of approval of the scheme at the general meetings. The validity g BRE - REZTE BN THOREHEE RIS
period of the share options in the first grant under the scheme shall be no more BETERzBEE - R THIBE0MEA o REEER
than 60 months, starting from the date of registration of the grant. The vesting FELAEHENTEA ZHENKEASHE - S8
period refers to the period from the registration date for the grant of share RAER o BB SERREHERR T B m24E A
options to the first exercise date, and the vesting period shall be 24 months. If % ERITHEA A - BERARRERER SR EMNTT
the conditions of exercise stipulated under the Share Option Incentive Scheme PG - BN RIEAE AR R361E A N DRI THE - AR
are fulfilled within the exercise date after expiry of the 24-month period from the FHE BRI T TREEA I S B TR RS R R BE AN TN R P
date of grant, the participants shall exercise their share options in stages within RN

the next 36 months. The exercise period of the Share Option Incentive Scheme

and the time arrangement for each exercise period are set out in the following

table:
Exercise period Exercise time arrangement Exercisable ratio
1THERR TRERBZHE TRELLBI
First exercise period Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 24-month period from the grant 33%

registration date, and ending on the last trading day of the 36-month period from the
grant registration date

F—EfTHEER BETETLTH BR4ERAENEEZSBERTELTRZ B
BEAANZE—EZSBERLE

Second exercise period Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 36-month period from the grant 33%
registration date, and ending on the last trading day of the 48-month period from the
grant registration date

(B THERR BETELTH BRBEAENEERZSBERTELTH 2B
BEARNEE—EAXSEERAL

Third exercise period Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 48-month period from the grant 34%
registration date, and ending on the last trading day of the 60-month period from the
grant registration date

B ={E7THEER BETECLTH BR4BERAENEEZSEBERTELTR 2B
60ME A B &E— 5B EHIE

The implementation of the Share Option Incentive Scheme will not cause the REHAERT BB R - ST EEANA R RED MR
shareholding structure of the Company to be unable to comply with the listing a FmigRHESR -
requirements.

() Fair value of options granted () ERLEENRFEE
The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year REBE_Z-NFT+-A=1+—HLEFERLHD
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair value at AR BHNEHEATERERRO AR
grant date is independently determined using an adjusted form of the #50.497T ° AR H B AR A B T A AR MR
Black Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo simulation model that % H B Hf (Black Scholes) R 7Y B EE T + ZIEAVER A
takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of SR 78 (Monte Carlo)fE#E% + & FR st M EiERTT(E
dilution (where material), the share price at grant date and expected price & FH -  #ENTFE(WEEXN) RNELD A HY
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk free %18 AR R RR 19 B TR ER(EAR R I8 - TR AR Sl -
interest rate for the term of the option and the correlations and volatilities R EIRm EER T - UARFEEE A TRE

of the peer group companies. i SR g o

/3



74

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Report of the Board of Directors EE2{EE

Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued) B EHA BT &l ()
(i) Fair value of options granted (Continued) () ERLHENSD T E@®
The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31 December REBEZZE—NF+_A=1+—HLEFERHHE
2019 included: RERIE R 85 A BUR BL3E
(@ options are granted for no consideration and vest based on (@ EAEDNRTSRERL - WREAARER20(E
Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected companies EF NN EESEANBERR = FHRES
over a three year period. Vested options are exercisable for a period B EBHENGBEMFHEAR T1TE

of two years after vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.98 per share b) TIEE - SN AREES.987T
(©) grant date: 4 November 2019 © ®WEHEH: —_T—h&F+—HAWmA
() expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023, 19 December @ HHH:—TZ—_F+-A+hA - ZT==
2024 F+—A+NB  ZZE-MNE+-A+NHE
(€) share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share @ MELBEHRE RN ARE6.057T
()  expected price volatility of the company’s shares: M  RERHETEEAER KIS
30.38% First phase 30.38% F—IRER
29.93% Second phase 29.93% FRRER
40.83% Third phase 40.83% F=PEER
(@ expected dividend yield: Nil 0 TEHARRBMGE @ &
(h)  risk-free interest rate: ) ERERFE
2.8219% Two years 2.8219% I
2.9280% Three years 2.9280% =F
3.0197% Four years 3.0197% mE
The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the TE BREFR R 08 T E P L MR IR (IRIZEARE R BR T
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future FHFTE)SH - WREBEAFR S ERE R TR
volatility due to publicly available information. TEERAR R B /E L SR o

For details, please refer to the announcements dated 26 July 2019, 9 August HEB2RARRBHATE—NFLAZ+<B =

2019, 4 November 2019 and circular dated 23 September 2019 of the T-NFNANE  ZZE—NF+—AEBHNRE - B

Company and Note 38 to the financial statements. HAE—T-NFNLAZT=BMNBERAREREN T
38 °
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Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 28.68% of the
Group’s total sales, while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 13.18% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 16.59% of the Group’s total
purchases, while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.92% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
substantial shareholders who were interested in more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2019, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in notes 16 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed shares of the Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

Material Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting
standards, please refer to note 41 of this report. The Company confirms that the
related-party transactions were not categorized as the “connected transactions”
or the “continuing connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules (as the case may be), and were in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

FRHAEEREF

REBEZZ-—NF+_A=+—HILFE ' AEERK
BEPEIEHERRIE A EERHERL28.68%  MAL
BERARPRELHERRIENEBAHETEL13.18% °
REBEZE_Z-NF+_A=T—HLFE *&£EH
AR A RE ARG RNEBARBELN16.59% M
AEBRAHEREERBRENGAEERRBERAY
6.92% °
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Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:

From 1 January 2019 to 20 October 2019:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director, Vice
Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive Director),
Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director), Liu Yao
(Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong (Independent Non-executive
Director) and Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 21 October 2019 to the date of this report:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director, Vice
Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive Director),
Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director), Liu Yao
(Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong (Independent Non-executive
Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director) and Cheng Jinglei
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr.
Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan Shaochong

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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—E-hF—-A—-BE=-E-hE+A=+H:

FAZWITES EFR) BHWTES BE=S
) MEXMEAGTESR) TERGTES) TH%
(ITESF) TEMTESF)  HE=(BILFEHNTE
£) FRROBIIFATES) TECBULIFNTE
%)

ZE-NEFTAZtT-BEFRSEAH:

FAE(MITES B8R ZEWTEF  BIE=E
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Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to the
Company’s business and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially
interested in any way, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
there any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

EEREEHMH
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:

B EERESTRAERALAR
HEBEENESP 2 BRERAR

BEEMHM R-T-NAF+-A=1t—H ARAE
B BEENARFARSTHRAERARRREEME
BEE (EEREB(EFMAEERI((RERPERK
D)) R - BRI RESF A EAREGES
KB GBI EXVERET R FED FFAME AR R BB
PrevtEss RO R (BREBARB(ES LB RGO ER
XMk SRR EREIAR)  JRB(ES
K BB A5 )28 35216 ZA 8 ARZ R DI Fir ity B Re i O B 2
Yok R (BREREB(GES RBEEDNE B IFEX MR
BEIRERENREIAR) - FJRIE ETRAIANER
EFRIRME AR R LB R SOABRIAT

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

Director/ the relevant the total  Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive ~ Nature of interest  shares shares capital % shares %  Lending pool

e

B B/ BRAERIH ERAEBN R KRS
®E BETHAR &6 /#ZHE  RAER A BRESE%  BHESK% THEHNRG
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,901,964 0.19 0.17  Long position
AR - E=nBBA AR HE
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,120 0.13 0.11  Long position
R 5% E=nBBA AR HE
Fu Zugang Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.17 0.15  Long position
OE:ELE 5% E=nBBA AR HE

Interest of spouse A Share 200,000 0.01 0.01  Long position
feBe s A% HE

Wang Xinying  Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.13 0.11  Long position
T4 g% EnBEEA ARR HE
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.00 0.00  Long position
2158 = E=nBBA AR HE
Zhou Rong Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 40,000 0.00 0.00  Long position
I5ES = E=nBBA AR HE
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ EE -ESERESTHRAEREATR
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the HEBELZENESP2EEZRRE (5

Company and its Associated Corporations (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, BEXFHEEN RZE-hAF+_A=+—H" ' K
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short NAIZEE BEEYARARSTTHRABBERAAT
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any SRR EE (& R EB(ES LBEED)D) /i
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were 7 BEROSEST - BETARBEESMBEK
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to BIYEXVERSE7 R FE8 D BB E AN E] R R TR &
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or kR (BRERERAHANERIOAE) - JIRBCE
short positions which they were deemed to have): or were required, pursuant % I BRE 161 ) EE 35216 A B A A& 6151 P /) & RR i A 4
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or mIAR - SRR 22 BT L TR AR AESR RIZE A R

were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant NAEERZ TR SOA R o
to the Model Code under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
Interests in Underlying Shares HER A ER
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of the relevant the total number
Name of Directors Nature of interest Class of shares share options held class of capital % of shares %
HEERAER MR 1D A8
EEHA fERME i&vig:ball B RERR WA B D% WA B D%
Jia Hao Beneficial owner A Share 700,000 0.05 0.04
Bi% E=BEAA AR
Fu Zugang Beneficial owner A Share 600,000 0.04 0.03
(EENE EmBEAA AR
Structure and Number of Shareholders BREEGERBRREAZ
Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company RZZE-NFFT+ZA=1+—8 ' AalkRafrte
as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: HIRREREFIBIAT ¢
Holders of A Shares ABRAR R 55,935
Holders of H Shares HAZ AR B3R 83

Total number of shareholders A% B 42 81 56,018

/9
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FERRREQRFAFRS - HERS
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the ZERRAXE

Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, the following BEEMA —NF+ZA=1+—8 " THIE

shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had (B% - lm?iﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁl}\,%ﬁ?’il\)ﬁ’\zﬁ AIEEARI AR (7
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the &*B B - EERB(ES MBI )EXVIE2

Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the SHEBBANERNARIMERIOAE - HIRB(GE %‘&Hﬂ
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, ‘bﬂﬂﬁﬂ Y IIR/B AR R BMEFHE LM ks goR
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members B
kept by the Company:
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
the relevant the total  Long position/
Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Nature of interest shares shares capital % shares % Lending pool
HER
BRAERY EROBEN HR KBS
®E 5 ERME R4 85 BROEBE  HOEIE%  BOEIL% AHEENRG
State-owned Assets Supervision and Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 34.99 30.08  Long position

Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s

Government®

AHEARBITBEEEE ERBEBA AR e
gkfxrq@% g @1)

Henan Machinery Investment Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 34.99 30.08  Long position
Group Co., Ltd.®

AR ERRERE ERBEBA AR e
BRETAFN

National Council for Social Beneficial owner H Share 21,969,000 9.03 1.27  Long position
Security Fund

ZEHEREEASEES EEBEBA HR% e

Note: Mi3E

(1) Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly held 521,087,800 A Shares (1) OUEERRERESEERETA R EERH521,087,800

of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned A ARIAR - WM EREEBERETRG AT
subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission HMEARBREEELEBREELZEC2EMNBAR -
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. By virtue of the SFO, State-owned BEEFRBAERS  THEARBNEEEEEEE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s fi%ﬁ WRIERBHRTEEREEREEEBRET
Government is deemed to own 521,087,800 A Shares of the Company which were ANRIEEFA A —#£521,087,800/% A A FIAR °

in the same block directly held by Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
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Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company had maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
a total contribution of RMB1.60 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Donations

The Group was active in fulfilling social responsibilities. In 2019, our contribution
to charity activities including donations for poverty reduction, education
subsidies and benevolent donations amounted to RMB3.3541 million.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

Due to the outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19 virus) epidemic
in China (the “Epidemic”) starting from early January 2020, the operation of
the Company was temporary stopped. However, under the containment of the
virus in China, the Company quickly restored its Chinese companies’ production
under the guidance of work resumption policy. We estimate the impact of the
Epidemic for the Company is not material.
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Closure of the Register of Members

The 2019 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, 15
June 2020. In order to determine the H Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Saturday, 16 May 2020 to Monday, 15 June 2020 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H Shareholders
of the Company who wish to attend the 2019 Annual General Meeting but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2020.

If the resolution in relation to declaration of dividends is approved at the 2019
Annual General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after
the close of trading on Thursday, 9 July 2020. The Company’s register of
members will be closed from Friday, 3 July 2020 to Thursday, 9 July 2020
(both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For
the H Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the final dividend but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 July 2020.

Audit Committee

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 with the management and the external
auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
27 March 2020
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20019F EEES TERE

During 2019, in accordance with the power conferred and duties imposed by
relevant requirements of the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, and in the principle of being
accountable to the Company and all its shareholders, the Company’s Board of
Supervisors commenced its supervision according to law, diligently performed
its authority and obligations, and duly exercised their supervisory function over
the Directors and senior management of the Company, playing a positive role in
the standardized operation and development of the Company. The 2019 report
of the Board of Supervisors is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2019

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management of
the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board of the
Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the Company
Law, the Articles of Association and other relevant laws and regulations,
and operated in accordance with the laws. All major operation decisions
of the Company were rational and the decision-making process was
lawful and valid. The Company has established and enhanced its internal
management system and internal control mechanism. The Directors
and senior management of the Company conscientiously executed their
respective duties in accordance with the national laws, regulations, the
Articles of Association, and the resolutions of the general meetings and
the Board meetings. They were devoted to their duties, giving their utmost
efforts in exploration and expansion. None of the Directors or senior
management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.

Facing the complex and ever-changing internal and external environment
in 2019, ZMJ worked closely in line with its development strategies of
“international strategic positioning, market-based corporate governance,
high-end industry layout and global human resources”, to drive its industry
transformation and upgrade, strengthen independent innovation, develop
high-end and intelligent manufacturing, and continuously improve various
indicators of production and operation, striving to create a world-class
enterprise with international competitiveness.
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2019

(1)

Composition of the Board of Supervisors

Upon election at the Company’s general meeting and at the employee
representative meeting, the Company elected the fourth session
of the Board of Supervisors in February 2018, which comprised
four shareholder representative Supervisors and three employee
representative Supervisors. Among them, shareholder representative
Supervisors are Liu Qiang, Wang Yue, Cui Leilei and Ni Wei; and
employee representative Supervisors are Zhou Rong, Zhang Yichen
and Yuan Shaochong. Liu Qiang chairs the Board of Supervisors.
Employee representative Supervisors account for no less than
one third of the Board of Supervisors, which complies with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations.

Overview of the Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors Convened in 2019

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
held a total of seven meetings in which 31 resolutions were
considered and approved in accordance with the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and other relevant regulations. Details are set
out as follows:

T 2019 EEEEITHEER
(- EEE=EEAK

BNTIRERASEBEMBTRRASESE A
AIR2018F2AEAFNEESE - AH4BIRER
REEFERIEBINRRESER & - &
BRREShS: Ble TR BT 58
BIRKREESL A% KHR - b &
FRIBAEESEF - BIRREZSMNLAT

BER=n2— BEFENBRTABRRERE
FRRE e

(D)2019FEEFEERARBR

BEHA - RAEZFRR(AFE) (A7
BRONBMMATE  HERTREZESSH -

FIBIBEASR - FABRAOT

No. Time Session Proposals Gonsidered and Approved

R e gEER EREREBNER

1 26 March 2019 Seventh Meeting of the Fourth 1. The Proposal on the 2018 Work Report of the Board of Supervisors of
2019F3 A26H Session of the Board of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

Supervisors 1-

FUEEEEELREH

(RN (BN R IR MR BN AR ARI0FEESE
THRRENZER)

The Proposal on 2018 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial
Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

SRR (BB A ik 5= B A0 B BR 2 12018 4F [ AR =T

BRSNS TSRS ) IR S )

The Proposal on 2018 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary
thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

R CERN R I 52 AL ) B IR 2 BIARR 20185 F E )

ERERBINZER)

The Proposal on 2018 Annual Results Announcement on H
Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and Authorizing the Chairman of the Company to Sign
and Announce 2018 Annual Report of the Company’s H Shares

+ (RPN (BN R T i S B A% 1D B BR A A HR% 2018 F & [ 3

BREREEAREEREZLRNEAAHKR018FFE

B NHR)
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2019 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors Gonvened in 2019 (Continued)

019FEEES TERE

2019 EEEETEER @)

(Z)2019F EEEgeHARBE N @)

No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved
Fi SRR gRERX ERERBBNER
5. The Proposal on the 2018 Assurance Report on the Deposit and

10.

10 »

11.

i

12.
12~

Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

(BB R R R B AR ARI018FEEERE

SR ERBRERRS)HIHER)

The Proposal on the Special Audit Notes on the Occupation of
Funds by the Controlling Shareholders and Other Related Parties
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

SRR CEBM B RE A SR B A 10 B TR R AR AR AR IR B EL

Rl T REIERNBIRE FHFNHER)

The Proposal on the 2018 Social Responsibility Report and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

- (ERQUISFEREEEBRE - S NEARENE

=)

The Proposal on the 2018 Report on Internal Control Assessment
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

(R (BRI B AR A I 55 BB A0 B PR /2 12018 4F [Z R 2

HIFHEREHFESR)

The Proposal on the 2018 Audit Report on Internal Control of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

(R (BRI B AR A I 55 BB A0 B PR /2 12018 4F [Z R 2

HIFEEHRE )V ER)

The Proposal on Impairment Provision for Goodwill of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
(EARFHER B REEENRER)

The Proposal on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and
Internal Control Audit Institution for 2019

(RS (20195 ESMNBP I AT I - RBDIEHIZE ST IE R

EEY

The Proposal on the 2018 Profit Distribution Plan
CEER2018F EFE D BLAIES)
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2019 F EEEE 2 TR %

Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2019 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Convened in 2019 (Continued)

Z 2019 EEEETHEBR@

(D209 EEEEERAMBERL @

No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved
FH ERRE BRER ERERBANER
13. The Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the

2 29 April 2019
20199F4 A29H

Eighth Meeting of the Fourth
Session of the Board of
Supervisors

BENEEEEE/\REHE

Company in 2018 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions
of the Company in 2019

(R AFR018FEHEBAHR S5 N2019FE T H

FHBXSBERANER)

The Proposal on Maintaining Liability Insurance for Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company

(ARR/RARES  ZERSREEABRRREETRRD

EEY

The Proposal on the Use of Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth
Management Products

(ARNERNEESRESRENERNRR)

The Proposal on Amending the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

(EREBC(E MR RN EBRNDERARER) NZE

%)

The Proposal on 2019 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

C CEAR(EN R R R B AR AR2019F 5 —FE

B HHE)

The Proposal on Changes of Accounting Policies of the Company

C(BRAFRHREREORR)

The Proposal on the Mid- to Long-Term Super Profit Incentive
Scheme of the Company

- (ERARIPREENERE S RONER)



BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2019

Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2019 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Gonvened in 2019 (Continued)

019FEEES TERE

2019 EEEETEER @)

(Z)2019F EEEgeHARBE N @)

No. Time Session Proposals Gonsidered and Approved
F¥ SRR gRERX ERERBBNER
3 26 July 2019 Ninth Meeting of the Fourth The Proposal on Formulating 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme
201947 A26H Session of the Board of (Draft) and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Supervisors Group Company Limited

FUEEEEENAEH

4 9 August 2019 Tenth Meeting of the Fourth
201998 H9H Session of the Board of
Supervisors

FUESEEE TSR

SRR HIE (BN R BRI R B AR ) B IR A BI2019F IR

IR 8 (ER)) RERERZRSR)

The Proposal on Formulating the Administrative Measures for the
Implementation and Assessment of 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited

- CRERHIE (BN R BRI R B AR D B IR A BI2019F IR

SRR B E S R E IR HIERER)

The Proposal on Verifying the Subject List of 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

» (AR E (BN R R R B RO AR A B2019F KRR

ISR BB H R B E)NER)

The Proposal on 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Revised
Draft) and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited

(R CERMN IR R I SR B A0 B IR A RI2019F IR R A4

HEE B (ERETR) REHENHR)

The Proposal on the Administrative Measures for the Implementation
and Assessment of 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (Revised
Version)

(R CERMN R R I R B A0 B IR A RI2019F IR R A4

BB B EEERERINEERTIR ) NES)

The Proposal on Adjusting the Subject List of 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

© (RN B (MR R B AR A B2019F R

SRR SR H R B ENER)
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z019FEEEETEER®)

2019 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Convened in 2019 (Continued)

Session
gEER

No. Time
R e

(D209 EEEEERAMBERL @

Proposals Considered and Approved
ERERBEANER

5 28 August 2019
201998 H28H

Eleventh Meeting of the Fourth
Session of the Board of
Supervisors

FUEEESE+—RSE

6 30 October 2019 Twelfth Meeting of the Fourth

1. The Proposal on 2019 Interim Report on A Shares and Summary
thereof of the Company

1 (BIRARIAR019FFFEHRELREBENRE)

2. The Proposal on 2019 Interim Results Announcement on H Shares
and Interim Report on H Shares of the Company

2 (ERREHIR2019F R EREE N E
WERESR)

A AIHA% 20194 Fh HA

3. The Proposal on the 2019 Special Interim Report on the Deposit and
Actual Use of Proceeds of the Company

3 (ERAFROIFFFEEEELHFHEERERABERE
HBENHER)

4. The Proposal on Terminating Non-public Issue of A Shares by the
Company in 2018
4~ (HREEIERRI018F EIEAFBETARKR R FIANHESR)

The Proposal on 2019 Third Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining

2019410 430H Session of the Board of Machinery Group Company Limited
Supervisors (AR (BB E MR EE D BRARI019FHE =FEME)
FENEEEEETRNEE WER)
7 4 November 2019 Thirteenth Meeting of the Fourth The Proposal on Granting Share Options to Subjects under 2019 Share
2019411 A4H Session of the Board of Option Incentive Scheme of the Company
Supervisors (R MR FI2019F ik R B R B AT 2B £ X T AR R EAfE
FENEEEEET=RNEE HNER)
Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors strengthened its —FH - RRIESEREINREESS L8

supervision over the Board of Directors and the management,
supervised and inspected the production operation of the Company

BMEE  REEEREATAEEEER
PRATHEDEHNEE - AOAGERS

according to law, pursued standardization and enhancement BER
of the institutions of the Company, and worked diligently for its

development.
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lll. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2019

1.

Lawful operation of the Company

In 2019, the Supervisors of the Company were duly present as non-
voting delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings
and general meetings, with rigorous supervision carried out over
the Company’s decision-making procedures as well as and the
performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior
management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board of
the Company has complied with relevant requirements stipulated
in the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors, with regulated operations as well
as lawful and valid decision-making procedures. The Company has
established and improved its internal control system, under which
the Directors and senior management of the Company discharged
their duties conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association or prejudice to the
Company’s interests.

Inspection of financial status of the Company

Having reviewed the financial status of the Company, the Board
of Supervisors considers that the financial report of the Company
reflects the actual state of its financial position and operation results,
and that the audit report is truthful and reasonable and enables
shareholders to correctly understand the financial and operational
status of the Company. The 2019 Annual Report prepared by the
Board of the Company reflects the Company’s position in a truthful,
lawful and complete manner, without any false record, misleading
statement or material omissions.

Inspection of the utilization of proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of proceeds.
The Company, with a system established to manage its proceeds,
was proper in utilizing its proceeds and executing its management
procedures, with no breach of regulations found in respect of the
proceeds.

Inspection of the establishment of the mid- to
long-term mechanism for incentives and restrictions

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the implementation of the
mid- to long-term super profit incentive scheme and 2019 share
option incentive scheme of the Company, and considers that the
performance assessment indicators in the incentive proposal stand in
line with the development of the Company and its list of participants is
fair and reasonable with an incentive mechanism that complies with
the market-oriented and systematic principles, which can effectively
enhance the employees’ initiative and the enterprise’s innovative
strength.
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lll. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the = EESH019FEAREREENE
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2019 (continued) R

5. Acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company 5 AEIMEE - HEBEBNR

There was no material acquisition or disposal of assets by the
Company in 2019. Nor was there any prejudice to shareholders’
interests or dissipation of the Company’s assets.

Connected transactions of the Company

The connected transactions of the Company in 2019 took place in
strict compliance with the Articles of Association and the relevant
connected transaction agreements, and the transactions were fair
and reasonable. Such connected transactions were conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with the statutory approval process performed
and no act prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Internal control of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2019 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board as
well as the establishment and operation of the Company’s internal
control system, and considers that the Company has established a
robust internal control system capable of effective execution. The
self-assessment report on the Company’s internal control reflects
the establishment and operation of such system in the Company in a
truthful and objective manner.

019FEAREEAYRE - HEBETR R
BRLBERRERIERN AR EERKNE

C RAEBR BN

RARNIFEHE LM R FBERET(RA]
BENRE  BRRREEBHIZREELE
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)

Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the review 8 EEEFHANFI209FFEREN
of the 2019 Annual Report of the Company EZER

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2019 Annual Report of
the Company and its summary, and considers that the preparation
and review procedures of the 2019 Annual Report of the Company
comply with relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association, as well as the requirements under the internal control
system of the Company; that the content and format thereof are in
line with all the relevant requirements of China Securities Regulatory
Commission and relevant requirements of Shanghai Stock Exchange,
including the Notice Concerning the Proper Disclosure Made in the
2019 Annual Report of Listed Companies; and that the information
contained therein gives a true, accurate and complete view of the
actual situation of the Company in various aspects and does not
give rise to any detriment to the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. No staff engaged in the preparation, review or information
disclosure of the 2019 Annual Report of the Company was found to
have violated the confidentiality requirement during the course of his/
her work.
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IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2020

In 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to strictly
comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles of
Association and the relevant laws, regulations and policies of the country,
perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated operations of
the Company.

(1)

Comply with laws and regulations and discharge
duties conscientiously

In 2020, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of Association,
supervise the Board and the management in implementing the
developmental strategies of the Company in accordance with
law, and procure the Company to further dedicate itself to the
manufacturing sector by enhancing independent innovation and
high-quality development. In addition, the Board of Supervisors also
supervised the Company’s efforts of deepening the reform, and found
the Company with a further improved corporate governance structure
and higher governance standards.

Strengthen supervision and inspection to avert
operational risks

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on financial supervision,
and monitor the financial position of the Company according to law.

Secondly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain communication
and liaison with the internal auditors and external accounting firms,
to make full use of internal and external audit information to keep
abreast of relevant situations.

Thirdly, the Board of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high
risk areas of the Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects
such as major investments, proceeds management, connected
transactions and external guarantees.

Bolster professional capabilities through greater
self-improvement

To further protect the interests of the Company and its shareholders,
members of the Board of Supervisors will constantly broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities by
receiving more training in finance, law, auditing and securities, so as
to enhance the supervisory role, actively explore innovative ways of
supervision, and better perform the supervisory function of the Board
of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

27 March 2020
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To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery

Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 101 to 255, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

e |mpairment assessment of goodwill

B
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
EEE S ENRENSERE

Refer to notes 2, 3, 4 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables were RMB4,640 million for which a loss allowance of RMB612
million was provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated based
on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit losses, which
is determined by taking into account: a) the customers’ repayment history,
ageing profile of their overdue balances, their current financial positions and
other relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the estimation of expected credit loss is inherently
subjective and requires significant management judgements and estimates.

BAREFESER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANETT AR ERRETSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
assessment when determining the loss allowance for trade receivables:

e \We obtained an understanding and evaluated management’s
design and tested the key controls which management adopted for
the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables;

e e assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management to
form such judgements and estimates, including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by checking the
settlement evidence of the trade receivables to cash receipts
and testing the ageing profile of trade receivables to sales
invoices and other relevant documents, on a sample basis;

i) On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in identifying
customers having a higher risk of default;

e (Obtained and reviewed those customers’ background
information and their current financial position provided
by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers and their
respective collection patterns in the past, and discussed
with management to understand the circumstances
applicable to relevant customers; and

iii)  Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information by making reference to market data.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement and
estimates adopted by management in determining the determination of
loss allowance for trade receivables are supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BmEREENE

Refer to notes 2, 4, and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the Group held goodwill amounted to RMB677
million, against which a provision of RMB174 million was made to
certain cash generating units (“CGUs”).

Goodwill was being allocated to different CGUs for the goodwill
impairment assessment. Management has engaged an external valuer to
assist with the annual impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs were determined based on the value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections, which involved using key assumptions such
as annual revenue growth rate, gross profit rate and discount rate.

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the carrying amount
of goodwill; and (b) the complexity, significant judgements and estimates
involved in the goodwill impairment assessment process.

BRREETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETTNMEEBRENSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of goodwill:

e For those goodwill assessments that management has engaged an
external valuer to assist with the annual impairment assessment,
we obtained and reviewed the valuation reports, and evaluated
the external valuer’s independence, competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

e We involved our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation approaches adopted;

e e evaluated management’s key assumptions used, with the
involvement of our internal valuation experts and performed the
following procedures:

i) Compared the annual revenue growth rate and gross profit
rate with the Group’s historical results and the Group’s
approved business plan, taking into consideration of market
trends;

i) Assessed the discount rates used by benchmarking the
discount rates against external market data;

i) Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions used, to ascertain the extent to which adverse
changes would result in goodwill being impaired;

e We tested the accuracy of the calculations applied in the valuation
models for the calculation of impairment provisions.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that management’s
judgement in the impairment assessments was supported by available
evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the chairman’s
statement (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board of
Directors, Report of the Board of Supervisors, and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which are expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board
of Directors, Report of the Board of Supervisors, and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAsS, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e  (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEaRkHEMEZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE—Z— N F+=-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARET T AREEFTT
Revenue WA 5 25,721,417 26,011,730
Cost of sales SHE A 11 (20,923,902) (21,159,849)
Gross profit ER 4,797,515 4,851,881
Other income E g A 7 225,180 106,060
Other gains and losses HbUezss R EsiE 8 (418,404) (174,503)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R X 11 (1,020,635) (1,044,119)
Administrative expenses THAX 11 (994,626) (1,203,184)
Research and development expenses s A 11 (1,015,026) (1,030,195)
Reversal of net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets SRR AREEREREFEED 157,875 46,947
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE(REt NS R(E1E) 21 38,013 (49,642)
Share of profit of joint ventures Eh—EEELERF 22 3,716 5,908
Finance costs, net BYERAFEE 9 (243,532) (220,415)
Profit before tax BRB AR R 1,530,076 1,288,738
Income tax expense FriSHifs 10 (390,166) (349,830)
Profit for the year FREF 1,139,910 938,908
Profit for the year attributable to: LA AT FERER]
Owners of the Company ZIN/NET ) 1,040,253 832,344
Non-controlling interests AR R 99,657 106,564
1,139,910 938,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E N\
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARETT AREETIT
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2 mEKE -
Items that will not be reclassified TERREESEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EamhEE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit B ERKENET
obligations 4,818 (60,990)
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair JA 2 E(EEH2 B H S EHET A EH A
value through other comprehensive income TERENEREE
NEEEE) (1,606) (17,585)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:  RIEEEFT P 4B EEas a1 H -

Exchange differences arising on translation BMEEAMEN =58 (17,440) (6,249)
Cash flow hedging e RELHH 514 2,279
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEERASY -

net of income tax HBRATIS L (13,714) (82,545)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2HEUKZEAEE 1,126,196 856,363
Total comprehensive income for the year UTALTEEFRZER B

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ZIN/NG] S 1,026,539 749,799

Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 99,657 106,564

1,126,196 856,363

EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER

— Basic (RMB cents) —HAR(ARESD) 15 60.04 48.04

— Diluted (RMB cents) —HE(ARKES) 15 60.04 48.04
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BT ARR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE—Z— N F+=-A=+—HIFE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-AhfF —E—N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR%T T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 16 4,841,820 4,865,313
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ Ko+ P4 = 440,964
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 1,171,066 -
Investment properties REYE 18 175,335 193,820
Goodwill e 19 677,221 853,808
Intangible assets B EE 20 1,505,901 1,578,613
Investments in associates REE N R E 21 285,453 393,472
Investments in joint ventures RELLENTE 22 71,722 40,006
Financial assets at fair value through other AT ETE B EE ST AEM
comprehensive income EHWENSMEE 23 29,934 31,540
Deferred tax assets IREF A E &= 24 419,390 442,322
Finance lease receivables & TH & e EOE 25 23,348 28,508
Long-term receivables RHEEW B 26 263,231 422,235
Contract related assets ARAREE 27 = 35,410
Loans receivable from associates and fEUE N E A S ERN
a joint venture B 28 6,500 10,000
9,470,921 9,336,011
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion RETHEREIWEIE - REED 25 26,084 24,958
Long-term receivables, current portion EHIEW TS - REED 26 239,513 131,926
Loans receivable from associates and a joint RUERE AT R —EEEER
venture B 28 10,000 9,750
Inventories FE 29 3,631,699 3,960,844
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWIE 30 5,836,197 6,326,997
Transferred trade receivables DEENE 5 EkE 35 158,762 242,879
Financial assets at fair value through LA ET 2 B EE & ABED
profit or loss CREE 23 1,394,296 355,539
Financial assets at fair value through AT ETE B EEEHT AEM
other comprehensive income FHRENESHEE 23 4,246,819 3,955,287
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA 23 13,946 4,401
Tax recoverable AR [E1 5 TE 38,581 29,661
Contract related assets EREBEE 27 30,457 -
Bank deposits RITIER 31 858,141 884,480
Cash and cash equivalents R RIS EEY 31 3,863,435 2,746,038
20,347,930 18,672,760
Total assets BMEE 29,818,851 28,008,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —E—HE+ - A=+—HILEE

As at 31 December

Wn+=—A=+-—8~
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T R AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Borrowings 3= 33 1,741,881 1,848,242
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 551,705 -
Deferred tax liabilities FERIES F 24 292,778 341,611
Contract liabilities ARAE 27 - 39,790
Redemption liabilities fEOAafE 43 567,404 1,177,921
Provisions B 34 197,740 228,810
Employee benefit obligations EERFEMR 36 378,430 280,903
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE 124,138 95,934
3,854,076 4,013,211
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M ENIE 32 8,005,539 8,130,550
Contract liabilities aRBE 27 1,699,335 1,390,874
Income tax liabilities SR a’E 156,371 147,150
Borrowings BE 33 1,395,606 1,019,585
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 140,143 -
Redemption liabilities EEENER 43 720,000 -
Provisions B 34 543,141 738,499
Liabilities associated with transferred HEEEME S ENFIEEENE
trade receivables & 35 158,762 242,879
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTA 23 3,632 35,179
12,822,529 11,704,716
Total liabilities BmEeF 16,676,605 15,717,927




BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T ARETTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARF#E
Share capital f& 7 37 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium f& 10 m B 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves & 6,307,839 5,525,318
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN S g 12,239,731 11,457,210
Non-controlling interests FEIEASRE RS 39 902,515 833,634
Total equity ERan 13,142,246 12,290,844
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 29,818,851 28,008,771

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 255 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao
DIRECTOR
3

FHINEI01E2WANGAPBREN T _TF
ZAZ LR ERSIERRETIE - WH TS

ATHREREE

Jia Hao
=0
DIRECTOR
3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARFRAE
Statutory ~ Currency  Cash flow Non-
Share Share  Revaluaion ~ surplus  Translaion ~ edging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium TeServe eServe TGSV MESENVES  resemves earnings Totl interests equity
BefE
Rex  BEEE  EfGE TTRORE SHENRE HARE  EEGRE  RERY Bt FEREE  BEER
RVBOO0 ~ RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB'OOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RWBOD0  RWBOO0  RMB'O0
ARBT ARETT ARET ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note ) (Note ) (Note.)
(Hiska) (Wsm) (M)
At 31 Daoember 2018 and RZ2-N\FTA=T-A
at 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A-H 17411 419941 (08749 633784 (8.460) 2219 o781 4858081 11457210 833634 12,200,844
Proftor the year EREF - - - - - - - 104023 1040293 967 1139910
Ottercompehiensiiencome. A 2ENE(ER)
(expense) for the year - - 322 - (17440 H14 - - (13714) - (13714)
Totcompehenshie neome. ARG ENE(FR) 48
(evpense) for the year - - 3212 - (17440 o4 - 104023 1026539 967 112619
Transfer (Note &) R (i) - - - 150 - - - (187.210) - - -
Share-based payment IRHBERRT - - - - - - - 1601 1601 - 1,601
Transacton with assocatss HERFORS - - - - - - - 6,080 6,080 - 6,080
Transacton with minorty inerest~ EERRERRIRS - - - - - - - (91) )] (1987) 418
Dividends (Note 14) T8 (M) - - - - - - - (1208 (291,208 (28769 (279997)
At 31 December 2019 REE-NETZA=T-B 17471 4199421 (05931 790994 (5900 219 98 547606 12239731 902515 13,142,246
At 1 January 2018 RZE-/\E-F-H 178241 4199421 19832 569,775 21 - o8 4183041 10,600.206 7m0 1576307
Proftor the year Efg - - - - - - - M 832,344 106,564 936,908
Other comprehensheincome. AR HAEUE(RR)
(expense) for the year - - (18575) - (6,249 2219 - - (82,545) - (82,549)
Totacompetensiie meome. SRR ENE(FR)EE
(evpense) for the year - - (78575) - (6,249 2219 - M 149799 106,564 856,363
Transfer (Note 8 R (i) - - - 64,009 - - - (64009 - - -
Transaction with minorty inerest D ERRERN LS - - - - - - - 6,172) 6,172) 6172 -
Dividends (Note 14) Hx% (Mt14) - - - - - - - (86,623) (86,629) (4209 (140826
131 December 2018 RoE-NETZR=t-B 17471 4199421 (08749 633704 (8.460) 2219 o78mr 488981 11457210 833034 12,290,844
Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association FfsFa 7@&)%42 B &1E A N AR A &) N H B A A R B Ak Sz A
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and TE’jA Tai& F RNRAIRZEWBR AT EGR
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the ﬁ&;ﬁﬂﬁstﬂm%ig TRHGHE  AEHEDES
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. MEAR50%A1E - HiaEREETERVBERER
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity A ADIRRERHETT © /fmgﬁﬁtﬁﬁTﬁﬁﬁééﬁﬁ%ﬁM
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ BIFEMNEE ERREGLEEARAR NZEN
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the BATIMEEINE -
Company and these subsidiaries.
Note b: The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains MizEh : IR mEL HEEEE Tjgi,a cnE 30 H _La'jg,q: IE
and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into A EZEEE Kam REE R AR D
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in BenesfnfEmR LR Er TANA ${E
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under BEA N RiTINES &Jgﬂa@ﬁg,mé ERZ S Eis
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the FeEHOBEEER - ET A MEEIRIEE W
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non- pANE
financial hedged item.
Note ¢: The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State-owned fiitc : Hu@EHE EEAQRNSREG T TEE ARRE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s BHELEEEERHEEeNHE  WHERAKRATR
Government, the ultimate controlling party of the Company, and is recognised as LRI R HE

contribution from the ultimate controlling party of the Company.
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
sl ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit before tax R 8 B o A 1,530,076 1,288,738
Adjustments for: Rk
Finance costs BB R 243,532 220,415
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term BITER - REEUZELRBERE
receivables and finance lease receivables FEUGRIE R FILBUA (68,221) (93,928)
Share of (profit)/loss associates JERER 2 AR CHF]) /518 (38,013) 49,642
Share of profit of joint ventures JEEE SRR (3,716) (5,908)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERRENEE, (IR
equipment =) 2,192 (1,978)
Gain on disposal of associates HEB LA RIS (16,257) -
Dividend from financial assets at fair value AT EEBEEEET ALMEE
through other comprehensive income Kt REEMBRE (2,897) -
Gain on disposal of financial asset at fair value HENRAFEFEBEES)T ABR
through profit or loss MEmEERS = (3,041)
Net fair value loss of derivative financial instruments #7448 T A AV (EE1BF5E 55,998 25,948
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMRIETE 804,589 796,019
Depreciation of investment properties "EYETE 7,061 1,589
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEgH 188,398 175,048
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 152,494 -
Release of leasehold land and land use rights FAE + 0 K + b s A RERS T = 12,728
Reversal of net impairment losses on financial SRR ERBERBESIEFREER
and contract assets (157,875) (46,947)
Impairment of goodwill [EESERE 174,086 109,125
Impairment of development costs FERARIE 246,731 -
Share-based payment LARGAD AR FR 1,601 -
Accrual/(reversal) of inventory provision fEsT,(BE)FEEE 38,248 (11,164)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXFEHHTE (41,896) 40,473
Operating cash flows before movements HEASFHINEERENE
in working capital 3,116,131 2,596,759
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAD,(3n) 290,897 (696,742)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 N E A e EIE R > 455,403 2,113,138
Increase in notes receivable FEU SRR AN (291,532) (3,245,513)
Decrease/(increase) in long-term receivables REiEWZIE KRV AR E WA
and finance lease receivables B () 60,404 (208,972)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables B 5 REMENZTIBCRS), 1 (235,721) 841,392
Increase in contract liabilities AREBEEN 268,671 74,272
Cash generated from operations BEEBMER® 3,664,253 1,474,334
Income tax paid [=ERIEST (406,847) (401,592)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING e BB RSFEE
ACTIVITIES 3,257,406 1,072,742
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—z—nr I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%Tr NS

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REEWRIELERE

receivables and finance lease receivables FEUGRIERF S U A 68,221 53,928
Government grants related to assets received BB EUE A BT B 52,800 10,408
Dividends received from associates BB R R B 10,200 7,686
Dividends from financial assets at fair value WA E 2 AT AL MEE

through comprehensive income War e mEERRE 2,897 -
Proceeds on disposal of associates B R RIFTSRR 123,512 -
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets at fair value B & A XN FEFEBHEB BTN

through profit or loss SRVEEMSHIA = 3,041
Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments & 474 & b T A TS 208 514 15,913
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « ME MR ESIE 45,299 60,661
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEMK (879,074) (843,924)
Payments for leasehold land and land use rights FAE 10 K + i A RERI TR = (6,224)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEAMEREE (365,931) (410,655)
Payments for structured deposits TR (1,393,000) (354,243)
Proceeds from structured deposits HERMEE RS E 354,243 62,000
Payments for loans receivable from a joint venture R —FEEEtEERONH (6,500) -
Repayment of loans receivable from a jointventure  FEIN—RI& B2 EHHIER 9,750 10,000
Payments for business combination, net of cash ERESOONT - NBFrkEERS

acquired (Note 45) (Pg7E45) (50,834) (426,950)
Payments for establishment of an associate B2 —FE & R R 3R (29,400) -
Payments for establishment of a joint venture R — A S ENK (28,000) -
Transaction with minority interests HAOBR RSN S (2,478) -
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity GFRIREIE =18 A A E®IRITER

over three months (31,270) (30,590)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity IREVR BB H A =& B LA EMIRTTIE K

over three months 30,590 86,410
Payment of pledged bank deposits TREEMRITER (826,871) (2,719,582)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits BB FRITER 853,890 2,733,487
Net fair value loss of derivative financial instruments ~ $744 gt T A A FEEIBF5E (97,090) -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHFTABRSTE (2,158,532) (1,747,634)
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BESEE
Proceeds received from the equipment leasing B R ETHE A R TS RUE (F5E35)
companies (Note 35) 257,329 124,445
Proceeds from new borrowings raised e EEIE 2,857,487 2,041,589
Repayment of borrowings EEER (2,587,827) (206,000)
Interests paid BAFIE (104,267) (103,278)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders SRR NG (251,208) (86,623)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B FEER SR S (28,789) (54,203
Principal elements of lease payments MEFIEN A D (161,356) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM BEEE (FTH) 3RS FH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 44) (Fffsta4) (18,631) 1,715,930
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BHE&RIRSEEYHRINFEE 1,080,243 1,041,038
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES [EREFHNTE 37,154 (40,177)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BWESRELEEY 2,746,038 1,745177
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER A+ —HA=+—HBWEBEELRRLZEY
represented by cash and cash equivalents (Note 31) (£ FEIR& RIS =E W (H:E31) 3,863,435 2,746,038

109



110

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

1

General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On October 28 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of the Company is Henan
Machinery Investment Group and its ultimate controlling party is Henan
SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 ordinary shares
to ASIMCO (China) Limited. On 22 March 2017, the Company issued
18,129,032 ordinary shares to Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited — the first phase of ESOP, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd., Jinxiu
Zhonghe (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd. — Jinxiu Tianyou No. 106
Private Investment Fund, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— HANG TANG WEALTH, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— No. 2 Wealth Management Plan of Tianhong Dashu Dingzengbao and
Anhui Railway Development Funds Co., Ltd.. After the issuance, Henan
Machinery Investment Group hold 30.08% of the Company’s total issued
share capital.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

—REH

HINEEEREERDBERAR([ARR)RFE
ARFMBE (T E DEA XS EENERS
REFTARSEAR  RETEARER_ZTNF
TZAZTNA\BEPBEKIARNARIRF - R=
T-AFTAZTN\R > AEEARBAEEE
EEREERZEe(TREEEZ DIFENALRH
EHITIRAAREN14%E R T TREREZNE
BEMBEAREAREFERERE - ARREER
0 ERMEETRR - ARRIE AR SR
KERESE  AxKENTETERFE TR
MEREE -

RZE—+tF=ANA - AREAEHEH R RE)E
BEAR A AEE1793,220,338 A L@ - R -F—+
F=ZAZ+=8 - NAF] AN RSB AR D
BRAB-FIHETIHRTE - BWmETLERE
FRAR] - BERMALR)EAEERERAT — 8455
KE1GSRAEREESD « RoAES —BRIRTT—
BREE « RoAES —BRIRIT — RoAES K
FREFEETETIRLBEERERESR
DB MR A FEE1718,129,0320% L i@AL - RITAL 31T
& EEAEERESERARARI D EITRA
4AEERY30.08% °

R=ZZ—ZF\A=H K275 140,000,0000%
ARTE ESESFR ZITE IR AREEN E(BRHR
§7601717.SS) e AR BN _E——F+-_ARHHBE
ERBAERIBRAB([BRM])ER MK
D55 : 00564) °

AR AABREE M B il I B 2 R IR
[RAER—EEE - AAREEMEAR (AW
[AEE DR ERBEER S TETHHRERKE
o,

TEEBERE

BEUGEUMBRERMEAN I ESHEEAIINT
X o BREFRIGERSN - R EBREBEMRN 25
BFE - BBBRAAEE(BRARALENE
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 HRBIEAE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSS”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance
Cap. 622. The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

e  certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at fair
value.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4 below.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
that are relevant to the Group for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

IFRS 16 Leases

—  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation —
Amendments to IFRS 9

—  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
Amendments to IAS 28

— Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
Cycle

— Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to IAS 19

— IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Except for IFRS 16, other changes to accounting standards do
not have significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

AR B TSR TOIR IR B B 75 i 22 ) (T B
B RE AR R ) R E6228 FIB L AN
BRERE - WBBRIVIRELRKAEER
S METHIERSN -

« ETSMAERAMBEITETA) &
AVEHE R

o RERMENKRESFE —FEEERAFE

HE o

BIRBFR YR E R B RE R B IRRARE
RETEXREHER - RFERERELEM
REEN G BERBREPITEEHE - PR
2 1 A8 1M A 0 B sl EL R S (et
BB IRARBEANBER T XM FARE

SETBURE
(a) AEBIRMEHTRAIETER

AEFECDR - NF—H—RARBRNSE
E3RE B E R ER T LA KB/
A RIEFTA

— BIRMBmEERE165%HE ]

— EABMENRSEISE - BRM
B EERIESRIEFT A

— REERRARAELENRAEE -
Bl & F ERIE285RE T A

— BERPBHREEN T -HhFE"F
—HEEEBNFERE

— FHENER] - MRS E - BRREHE
AIE1955ERT A
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)
2.2 B BURE
(b) I ARBRABHETER R 2R
REENBIERRMNE TERMER-Z

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 —NEFE+ - A=+ BREPEEREH
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the E?&E’J%ﬁﬂéﬁ”ﬁﬁﬂ&iﬁ% ZEAERITE
Group. These standards are not expected to have a material TR E RIS R RS AR B
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods TEJK?K OELEERTE -

and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 2.3 FRANBIFR B 75 5 22 RI S5 1655

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on B EE AR T BR AN B R B s R 5 YR Rl 221655k
the Group’s financial statements and discloses the new accounting Wﬁii\JﬁT$E.ﬁ7H%#&§m$§; WHET B
policies that have been applied from 1 January 2019, where they are —NEF—A—BREANNSTBURET
different to those applied in prior periods. Eﬁﬁﬁf FAEtERm=LE -

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019, but has not
restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted

REER-ZE—NF—HA— AIRNERRE 53R
EERIF165E - BIRZER R ERIE IR

under the specific transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.61%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases the entity
recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability
immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right of
use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application. The
measurement principles of IFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

R WER T - N\FRERREMRERE
B Bt 2EMEERASIBNERSER
AER_Z-NF-A-—BNFVEERER
PR o

RERANBIRR B 75 5 R 16571 - AR
REME (EARBER g R 175 AE ]
J?ﬁlJ"*E#ﬂ%«%*%EEJ)EF%E’]TE‘E\Q{ ° #&
FRERF THEFRNREE - WRAA
BABE-—Z-NF—A—HNFMEEEMNX
R - MR- ZE—NF—A—H  AEAERR
HER BN IFIEEEF K R3.61% °

RERMNDEAREHENHENS - EE@H—}%
EEREMEERENEE R BNRAERR
REXERAREREEENHEERR E’]BEE
1B - BRI HmEERIE165E M 2R ANZ
BERITEEA -



2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

(@) Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

2 FESTHEHSE )

2.3 ERAN BRI BR B 75 a5 42 BI 551655 ()
(a) HEEBEWE

2019
—E-hEF

RMB’000
ARETT

Ko \F+=A=+—BREY

31 December 2018 4e BT BRI 1,003,510
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing LAEIRFER B B A AT EE
rate of at the date of initial application FIRALIR 801,930
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at R \F+-A=+—BHERR
31 December 2018 mEHEAE 2,521
(Less): short-term leases and low-value leases recognised (&) : IR E AR AFER AR NEHHE N
on a straight-line basis as expense KEEHE (20,480)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF—A—AERANHEERRE 783,97
Of which are: Hep
Current lease liabilities mEHERE 155,982
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEAE 627,989

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

EHEEENZ

EREEENRHERERARNSENE &R
E-\Ft+A=t—REEREBERTEREZE
HERBNETMENREHEEFRSERAE - 1
BRERBH  SIEAHEREEEFHHENER
HHEEAR -
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2

(Continued)
2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

(b) The recogised right-of-use assets relate to the following types

FESHBEBE )

2.3 ERAN BRI R B 7 w5 42 BI 551655 (&)
b) DEREREEER T EEBNER -

of assets:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hF —ZT-NF
+=B=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Buildings gt 602,633 702,176
Land use rights + i PR A 487,214 440,964
Office and operating equipment WAEREBERA 1,262 1,929
Machines JiSEN 6,062 112
Others Hih 73,895 79,970
Total right-of-use assets FRAEEEEE 1,171,066 1,225,151

(c) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1
January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in
the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

Leasehold land and land use rights FRE i K+ Hb 5 A
Property, plant and equipment Y - HE M RE
Right-of-use assets EREEE

Lease liabilities, non-current portion HEABECGERBHY)
Lease liabilities, current portion HEaE(rEH)
Other non-current liabilities Hib3Emena &

Trade and other payables B 5 NEAEMAFIE

() REB-NF-A-HEEERERARE
RHAE

BHBEEDY SN2 NF—A—H
tEER BT TIIER

31 December Adoption of 1 January

2018 IFRS 16 2019
—E-N\F R AN BB

+=A FiEmRE —Z—NF

=t+—HB  EBRIFE165% —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETET ARETET

440,964 (440,964) -
4,865,313 (2737) 4862576
~ 1225151 1,225,151

- 627,989 627,989
- 155,982 155,982
95,934 (1,386) 94,548

8,130,550 (1,135) 8,129,415
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

(d)

()

Impact on segment disclosures and earnings per share

Adjusted net profit, segment assets and segment liabilities for
31 December 2019 all increased as a result of the change in
accounting policy. Lease liabilities are now included in segment
liabilities, whereas finance lease liabilities were previously
excluded from segment liabilities. The following segments were
affected by the change in policy:

Right-of-use assets (excluding (FREEE(LHfE AR
land use rights) BrAN)

2.3 %

(@)

A BB B S S #E B 55165 ()
HOBRERSRKSNES

B EHRAEE T NE+A
=+—BMEREAT  HBEERHH
& (B ERE N - AEE RS BES 5
B MRAHEEE L TREES
WA D - THSBERERHYE -

Coal mining machinery Auto parts
BRI, BT EMF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE B8E BE BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT
38,717 38,876 645,134 652,972

Basic earnings per share decreased by RMB0.88 cents per
share for the year end 31 December 2019 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 16.

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

e reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous as an alternative to performing an impairment
review — there were no onerous contracts as at 1 January
2019

e the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as
short-term leases

e the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of
the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

e the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease

(e

AR B BR A TS s B S 165% - H R
“E-NF+-A=+—HILFENESR
EARBF G AREE0.885 °

PR T{TEER &

RERERBEIRM GRS ERIE 16578
AEECRAEERIFFATNA TR THERE
JIE

. HEABARIBBMNEEEARN
BBk

o (KRELABENEERBEEF ARG
ERETTRERNERITEA R
E-NF-RA-RIERTER
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

(€)

U]

(9

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a
result of the adoption of IFRS 16.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

Until the 2018 financial year, leases of property, plant and
equipment were classified as either finance or operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

(e)
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

(9)

(h)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and
e restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-
equipment and small items of office furniture.

Variable lease payments

There is one factory lease of SEG Automotive Components Brazil
Ltda. contains variable payment terms. This contract is based
on an index and can contain variable payments.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property and equipment leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group
and not by the respective lessor.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)
2.3 Adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued) 2.3 BRI BIFR B 75 o 5 22 R 551657 ()
(i) Residual value guarantees () FerEEER

To optimise lease costs during the contract period, the Group
sometimes provides residual value guarantees in relation to
equipment leases.

Estimating the amount payable under residual value guarantees

The Group initially estimates and recognises amounts expected
to be payable under residual value guarantees as part of the
lease liability. The amounts are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. At the end
of reporting period, no material amount was expected to be
payable under residual value guarantees as part of lease
liabilities.
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2.4 The principal accounting policies
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@ Subsidiaries @ MERE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (Note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

)

©

@

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note
2.4,
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)
24 TE@ETHR @)
EHRARERENERE(E)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

(€)  Changes in ownership interests € HERERZ

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e iabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss. Amounts classified as equity is not re-measured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognized in
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM"). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

@

()

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the historical financial information of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains and losses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or l0ss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) SR E ()
(c)  Group companies ©) EENE]

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into profit or
loss, as part of “other gain and losses.”

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEHEK @)

Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%
Other equipment 18.00%-19.00%

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognized in “Other gains and losses”
in the profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking
into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%
Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

Intangible assets
@  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes at the operating segments.

(b)  Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

2 FESTHEHSE )

2.4 TESBOR (#)
BEmE

REMEDFEEERERSWES - BIA3kEH
AEBER - REMEZKA(BERBRS
AR (WER) EERA)ETVLTE - 1
VIFHERIL - WEMERRFRRINE R
R ERTIRSIAR -

REMEETT RERERZERENE - F
GRS TN

+ b {5 AR 2%
EF 2.71%ZE3.17%

BILEE
@ BE

WHEMB AR MELNEENMBEES
RE - BB EF IR R SRR
EA SRR RIS 77 AR A i s e B
HIRFEMNANBEMEER BRI EES
ERAFENRD - WEHBARNEER
REEVEEN - WETTHIE  HEF
EITRERR  REAFHLRIUERE
BRI BE IR R E R E 1T ESRRRUE A
A WA RETREE R - BE
ERNKEkEReRRENEEREARN
EEREE -

RENRTE  HEEIEERSES
B - B R TR AT e B E R E
BEHHERMNANREELEUNIRE
EEBAARMIERR - ZEEMKER
AR TIATE A EDE TR B MRS ) BREE SR
BENREERBNE

b BF - FFREFHE

72 FBAREIER RS RIRE L TR -
EXBAHTEANAER EFNREFH
FERE R A THERR - HAlE R
BRI HAR IR ARANR R AT 35 MR B 1
FIfR o

125



126

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E PSR AR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

©

@

Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e it istechnically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

e management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

e there is an ability to use or sell the technology

e it can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.

Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in (c) above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Intangible assets (Continued) BREE(E)
(6)  Amortisation methods and periods @) #iEE R A

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

REERATHRIABAEHHAGRA
ERFHMNETEE

Trademark 10 years iz 104
Software 4-5 years Bt 4T 55
Development costs 4 years %N 45
Patent right 5-10 years B 5Z210%F
Customer relationship 10 years EPEBE 104F
Impairment of non-financial assets FERMEERE
Goodwill, development cost not yet ready for use and intangible assets BEREERAMEAFTHNEE - R BHH
that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation R R B B E j%ﬁﬁ MG FET
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events BEAIE - sim BB R B LR R E ]
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. BEHIRRE « RIS SA S D 8 ﬁ/ﬂdﬁ A, o
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes HivEENAEHXERE B REEE
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be AIRE N AU OB - #E7TRVEDRIE, © JREES

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent

1BIRE ERRE A RS A Y Bl © S 30 5 7
R o A EIREEAE E N FERLERA
E‘@@ﬁﬁfﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%% o BLEHERET
= - BERABABARSRANKE
7}<:F N MBBRESRARE LB
HiEESEEARNNReRAGREE

of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash- HEA) o HIRBEMIESREE(HER
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that M) TR & RS HAR 1T B B A] se B A

suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

ot -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018.

@

(b)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OCI). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

2 FESTHEHME R

2.4 T ESHEER ®)

ERMEE

B=Z

@

U

—NF-A—BERAEFHE

o HEEUATENEERDBEHAL
RGBT B BAE
K

o RIREHERAENSREE -

DEEANEREECHEENRERE
BRI EBIRA -

MURATFEFENEEMS » HUES RE
BREZSEMEERE(HEthEmkEs)
PIBE - MEK T EKREMmMS - HEUARNE
ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁo%ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁ%%%
ATEKREME @ AIFUVARAEEZE
W*EEMTTW%W LR &éu

AFEFEBEZH T ALMEERE
(ARFEFEBEZ ST ALMEERK
w=)AER ©

AEEEREEZFEENEBRALE
B eHESIREETERIE -

a8 R AL I TERR

CRHEENEREEERSAAIFEE
AEBARLEZEELB)ER - 1
CRIEEWEIR &R E/EFN DR H%
Wik MASBEEEHEEENBRIS A
B E RN EeMEEFESK

MR o



BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

129

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E IR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Financial assets (Continued) SMEEE)

©) Measurement © &=
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its TEVIB RN - NEERAFEME(H
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value BWIEA AT EFEBEEEZES T AES

through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains and losses together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

() Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains
and losses and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains and losses in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL
are recognised in other gains and losses in profit or loss as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(@ Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9's expected credit loss (“ECL") model. Please refer to
Note 3 for details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTECR (#)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of
hedged items. The Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in Note 23. Movements in the hedging
reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 23. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

(@@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within other gains and losses.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options as
the hedging instrument. The Group classified foreign currency
options and commodity option as held-for-trading derivatives
and accounted for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change
in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of
the options that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’)
are recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)
24 EESETER (@)
FTETAREHEE(E)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued) @ TR IEENE S REL W (E)

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group generally designates only the change in
fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component
as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in the spot component of the
forward contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve
within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract
that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is
recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points)
as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains or losses
relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory),
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the
deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred
forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of
the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised
in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for
example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the
interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTECR (#)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

TTETAREHES(E)

(@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued) @ FEE TSI EENEE REL P (E)
When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, ER TARE - HESKILE - ETH
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge R ASFTEEIRE  EHREERSTE
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred FRE AR REHEE K S 1R MEE
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until AR AR - EEBETEAR HEE
the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition AEEERIESRMEE(WFE) - NFEET
of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast TERETBARS - NiE=P RRAEF
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain EAER R IES ok B8 MR ERK AN BN =
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in MiofEEER -
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting b) THEHFEEERNITETA

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included in
other gains and losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 30 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note 3 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is
not due 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTECR (#)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the income tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the areas where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from
the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

@

)

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group’s legal or constructive obligation for the plan is limited to
the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEHEK @)

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

®

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

M

©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date

Share-based payment expenses should be recognised over
the period during which the employees provide the relevant
services. This period may commence prior to the grant date. In
this situation, the entity estimates the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments for the purposes of recognising the services
received during the period between service commencement
date and grant date. Once the grant date has been established,
the entity revises the earlier estimate so that the amounts
recognised for services received is ultimately based on the grant
date fair value of the equity instruments.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via
the A share Option Incentive Scheme (the “Employee Option Plan”),
the executive short-term incentive scheme and share appreciation.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in Note 38.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (eg the entity’s
share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (eg profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a specific
period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The Employee Option Plan is administered by Employee Share Trust,
which is consolidated in accordance with the principles in Note 2.4.
When the options are exercised, the trust transfers the appropriate
number of shares to employee. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited directly to equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 2.4 FESFTECR (#)

Provision

Provisions for warranty are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace for
assurance type — warranty. This provision is calculated based on
historical experience of the level of repairs and replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the
balance sheet date if it is announced after that date, even if it is
announced before the financial statements are approved. A sale
or termination of a business might fall under the definition of a
restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assess its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities, as described below.

Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see
Note 34.

Transportation and handling cost

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets. The assets are amortised on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or service to which the assets relate. Due to the short
period of transportation, related assets are not material at the
balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEHEK @)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Significant financing component

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 3 to 5 years.

Rendering of service

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by
the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the
presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a
receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore
reclassified its contract assets and contact liabilities upon adoption of
IFRS 15.

Contract liabilities are recognised as follow:

e  (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received
from customers for non-cancellable contracts;

e (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to R&D reimbursements
— The Group recognises the related reimbursement payment
from customer as contract liabilities and recognises the amount
as revenue over the expected production to customer in future
period. The related R&D costs are capitalised as contract
fulfilment cost are amortised to profit or loss on a systematic
basis consistent with the pattern of the transfer of the products
under production to the customer as part of cost of sales. Any
R&D cost which is not recoverable or when related production
is not proceeded by the customer is written off to profit or loss
directly. There is no cost written off during the year.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in relation
to refund of R&D expenses. Refund of R&D expenses represents the
refund received by the Group from the customers, and the Group has
a right to consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer when the right is conditioned.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.

Government grants

Government grants are obtained free from the government in the
form of monetary assets, including tax refunds and/or financial
subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form
of monetary assets, it is measured by the amount received or
receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEHEK @)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are government grants which
are obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation
of other long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the grants other than those related to assets. Government
grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, equally
recorded in profit or loss of corresponding period over the life of the
relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for
business expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised
as deferred income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses
are recognised; those obtained as compensation for business
expenses or losses that have occurred are recorded directly in current
profit or loss.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.3 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.3.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group, as lessee, had substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases (Note 17).
Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, were included in other short-term and long-term
payables. Each lease payment was allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost was charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases was depreciated
over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Leases (Continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESEHEK @)

Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.4 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 24 FESFTER @)

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
18). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the
new leasing standard.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.
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3

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and joint ventures, other financial assets, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment, trade and other
receivables, derivative instruments, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, borrowings, obligation to acquire non-
controlling interests, transferred trade receivables and liabilities associated
with transferred trade receivables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@ Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
and receivable (collectively “Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-functional currency
items at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
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The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. The rate of 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates but does not consider the effect of derivative
financial instruments. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies change 5% against RMB.

31 December 2019
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If the currency strengthens R EH H A R
against RMB FHE 31,564 (2,208) 2,094 26,071 1,382 2,047

If the currency WEELARE
weakens against RMB B (31,564) 2,208 (2,099  (26,071) (1,382) (2,047)
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see Note 33 for details). Currently,
the Group does not have a specific policy to manage its interest
rate risk, but management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for long-term borrowing
at variable-rate at the end of each reporting period and the
excepted changes in interest rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and being held constant throughout the
reporting period.

If the interest rates on long-term variable-rate borrowings had

been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year
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The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all
other variables were held constant.
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@ Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the balance
sheet either as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) (Note 23) or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) (Note 23). To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

The majority of the Group’s equity investments are publicly
traded and are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The remaining part is unlisted
companies.

With the 10% change of the price of those equity securities
including both listed companies and unlisted companies, the
Group’s other comprehensive income and profit before tax
would increase or decrease by RMB3.0 million and RMBO.1
million respectively (2018: the other comprehensive income and
profit before tax would increase or decrease by RMB3.2 million
and 0.1 million respectively).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative
assets, loans receivable from associates and a joint venture, pledged
bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and
cash equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the
Group placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks with
high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts,
normally a credit period of O to 90 days is granted to its customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREER®

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e Qactual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.

NAFE » REBIAEE MR ILHERE TR
EEMNHAEHEATHERENE S REME
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REEZEREEVRERR RO AR RE
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HEERRIGEELME  AEEKHRER
Him B EE N R R TR B HeE L RER
EITHE - BHEEFEXENBEIE5H
EEFEBIET  UREYETFESEK
IR NN RBEER RS E R R AT E R
TEHTE - B - AEETRE B ESFHNAE
BEARER U TERLEFRMAZ B
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o BT HHIEERRERAENLRE
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R EARD)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 TEERERE@
(o) Credit risk (Continued) b) EERB @

The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors AEBEREBFIERATRATENESPREE

operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio A o B REEEMEIR  BNEFEEE

basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the BAR - Bt - AEEG EREESEID AT

Group classified the above assets into below categories: *ERl

e Category 1: trade receivables — coal mining machinery group o FERN : BEBZEUGIE - BRI EE

e (Category 2: trade receivables — ASIMCO group o ERI2 : EBZEUNGUE - HEIEE

e Category 3: trade receivables — SEG Automotive Germany o XRI3: & 5 FEUIFKIE — SEG Automotive

GmbH (“SEG group”) Germany GmbH5= & ([ SEGE ] |)

e Category 4: notes receivables — commercial notes o fERI4: EINEE -BERR

e Category 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes o fBRI5 : EUERE —RITA LRI

e Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables o K76 : mbEHE EUGRIE K&K HAE YK
18

e Category 7: loans receivable from associates and joint ventures o MERI7T: EWEiEATIR—HEEREE
b

e Category 8: other receivables o fERI8 : EfhpEUEIE

e Category 9: transferred account receivables o fBRI9: BEEAEKRFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREER®

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)
(i) Trade receivables (i) BEZREWFE

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 to 36 month before 31 December
2019 or 31 December 2018 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the China coal price index and GDP to be the most
relevant factors of coal mining machinery group and PPl and
GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods and services
to be the most relevant factors for auto parts group, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
and the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

R e A B R B IS S AR RSB 9SR AL
Ik RBEEFERNERERRETE
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REERBREFHaHA AL A -
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1222 361 A EAf 8 & AU SR IE I e AN HARE
ALRMAREBTEERENE - BAE
BERBEEBAYERTP &SRR
M RBLERAZME R RAEEERELD
FE o REED R EERERESL
BNEEREAREUEBRNSAEEER -
MAEEEE R RREHBEIREEEY
BESEBERNEEAEATESHHESR
REiERE % - WREZERARNTEY
EFEERAREBERIEER -

BIRYGSAERAREENES TR
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RE MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SREREE®
(o) Credit risk (Continued) b) EERB @
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEWFEE)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables of different RZE—NF+ZA=+—HBTREN
categories as at 31 December 2019 are listed as follows: B HRYGRIEIT
Category 1: Coal mining machinery group ZEET - SRR 5

Over Over Over Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2 years
Within ~ butwithin  butwithin  butwithin  but within Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2years 3years Jyears Total

BENX BEI0X HE-F BEWMF
WAR E180XR  E-FA  ERFA  E=FR  BB=F At
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RWMB'000  RWMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETE
Trade receivables gHEKTIE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hE
+ZA=1+-H
Expected loss rate kil spp 0% 2% 5% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding BRI 4R (E (TR IR HE(ER)
receivables assessed individually) S5 RIFENEIE) 761,776 404,172 501,920 101,935 63,519 188,000 2,021,322
Loss allowance provision EEEE - 8,083 25,096 20,387 31,759 188,000 213,325
Individually impaired receivables (AR EREYEE - 487 836 62,206 34028 186281 263,838
Total loss allowance provision i8R EMA%E - 8,570 25,932 82,593 65,787 374,281 557,163
Trade receivables gAEWFE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+ZA=1+-H
Expected loss rate kil =y e 0% 2% 5% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding BRI 4218 (TR E(ER|
receivables assessed individually)  STEEfENFIE) 953,184 237,359 320,388 21478 72,173 288250  2,143432
Loss allowance provision EiBEE - 4747 16,019 54,296 36,225 288,250 399,637
Individually impaired receivables AR EE YA 10,884 19,799 16,737 97,173 30015 238159 412,767

Total loss allowance provision g EARE 10,884 24546 32,756 151,469 66,240 526409 812,304
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREER®
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) BIEWREE)
Category 2: ASIMCO group 2ER2 - BHTFIEE

Over Over Over

90 days 180 days 1 year
Within but within but within but within Over
90 days 180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years

BBOX BBEIBR BB-F
WEA  E1e0kR  B-FA  BRFR  BEWF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables g5 RWE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE
+=A=1+-H
Expected loss rate EHERE 0% 2% 30% 86% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding BRI 42 (& (T A& (AR
receivables assessed individually)  FF{LHEIEIGIE) 797,833 55,421 18,996 5,629 8,181 886,060

Loss allowance provision EERE - 1,108 5,696 4,824 8,181 19,809

Individually impaired receivables  {EIIJjgi (& & U ZUE - - 963 1,099 2,233 4,295

Total loss allowance provision g4 - 1,108 6,659 5,923 10,414 24,104

Trade receivables B 5 RWE

At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\§

+=A=1+-H
Expected loss rate EHEBEX 0% 1% 29% 79% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding BRI 48 (& (A EE AR
recelvables assessed individually)  FF5HEIEIIE) 727,925 124,164 21,603 4572 7463 885,727

Loss allowance provision EEEE - 1,005 6,172 3,599 7463 18,239

Individually impaired receivables 1B ISR E FEU RN IE 280 18 874 1553 679 3,404

Total loss allowance provision 5518 1% /545 280 1,023 7,046 5,152 8,142 21643
Category 3: SEG group and contract related assets 2EFI3 : SEGEE K & AIAAE
The account receivable balance of SEG group and contract SEGEE K& [RIARE & E M B U R AR EE
related assets are mainly related with SEG group’s customers, THSECEEMNEFER  EARIKA
who are the global OEMs in auto industry. The Group assessed BITERNRARGRIER - AEEFRHAS
the credit losses of account receivable balance of SEG b £ EISEGRE W BR SR A RE M (S BB 18 1T
individually using simplified approach. As at 31 December BRIFEE - RZE—AF+_A=1+—
2019, RMB31 million (2018: RMB27 million) has been provided B 3ESEUGHEE T ZETEHNE
as life time loss allowance for account receivables. BREAARBIEEL(ZZE—/N\F :

ARE2IAETT) °
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

3 EREBEZEE

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes receivables
Category 4. notes receivables — commercial notes

The Group assess the credit losses of notes receivables —
commercial notes individually using three-stage approach.
As of 31 December 2019, RMB15 million (2018: RMB6.8
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables — commercial notes.

Category 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
bank accepted notes individually using three-stage approach. As
of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there was no
loss allowance provided.

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customers of coal mining machinery group. The
Group has provided financial leasing or long term payment plan
to certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties with special
credit profile. The Group has granted a relatively long repayment
plan to the customers based on the credit assessment. The
Group assesses the credit losses of finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2019, RMB102 million (2018:
RMB106 million) were provided as life time loss allowance for
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables.

Loans receivable from associates and joint ventures
Category 7: Loans receivable from associates and joint ventures

Loans receivable are due from the Group’s associates and a
joint venture. The Group assess the credit losses of related
balances individually using three-stage approach. As at 31
December 2019, RMB64 million (2018: RMB64 million) were
provided as loss allowance for loans receivable from associate
and joint ventures.

b) EERB @

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FEW R
E R S S

AEERA = EARBEHRARE -—BE
EERNEEERETENFE - BEZT
—NFE+ZA=+—H EHELEE—
BERBIHRI2EABERBEARK15H
BL(ZF—N\F: AR¥6SHET) °

Hfls : B RIE — RIT R FIR

AREB LA = REBCAE R B U E 1S — iR
TEREENEEEBEE HZ_Z2— AN
F+—A=+—BEk=_ZE—NF+=A
—+—8 - WEHREEREE -

BMEHERRRERRIERIEA

256 : A B JEW IR R R EH
B

MERSENGBENERHERZBELIES
JEWHBERREERFE - AREBETEFE
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EHENRIMNFEE - AEBEREE
B mELRHAYRENERTE -
AEBRABCEHMERERKIBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Other receivables
Category 8: Other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to measure
ECL. Other receivables comprise: advances to staff, deposit and
others. Since the credit risk of other receivables are considered
not significantly increase since initial recognition, therefore the
impairment provision is determined as 12 months ECL. As at 31
December 2019, RMB114 million (2018: RMB97 million) were
provided as loss allowance for other receivables.

Transferred account receivables
Category 9: Transferred account receivables

Please refer to Note 35 for the detailed description of transferred
account receivables. The Group assess the credit loss of
transferred account receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
related loss allowance was immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilization of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

3 SRERBREER®

=ER %)
(V) EiEREE
ABRIS : BN I

AN e A B BR B T R 5 HE R S O5R AR E
M =FEEEGTETEREEAE - At
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R E A UGB B R B 7R ER
LR R B AER - FILREREET
B1REAEREERSE -BHE_T—IF
+-A=+—8 EHEMEKZKETR
BEEEARBI4EET(ZT—N\5F
AREITAET) -

(vi) BEZENERER
FEF9 - B BB EI RS

BHECHEZENERERFS - #2080
35 « ANEEEAELAB D B i EUCR
FETENEEBENE - RN
FH+ZA=+—RAEZZE—N\F+=A
=+—H ' BEEERELTEX

() MEEZRKER

REEEEREREREEBRREUBENAEE
BEMBEKFNRS SRS EEY - R
HEReRENPOTE - EEEEERITEER
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TRAVNAKEREWDEERGERNIFTES
BEEHRTARIMA - RRTIRBEERARE
BRI BRI &E AN E ERERE
ERERE - RRBENERASRERE -



BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

3 SREREE®

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

€ mEEERR @

Weighted  On demand Total
average  orless than 3 months 1year 2years  undiscounted Garrying
The Group *£E interest rate 3 months to1 year to2 years to 5 years cashflows amount
mi REXT FERRS
THRE  HWER  3MEREIE 1552% pE}3 REAE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETR ARETRE ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-fF=1-H
Non-derivative financial libilties FiTEeRaE
Trade and other payables 2 S REMENTE - 7174911 830,628 - - 8,005,539 8,005,539
Liabilties associated with tranferred B3R 2R Z 5 EUNGIE
trade receivables BEMER - 30412 119,350 - - 158,762 158,762
Borrowings EE 2.81 427,185 1,063,182 834,342 914,232 3,238,941 3,137,487
Lease liabilities HERE 3n 43,879 127,885 135,730 522,226 829,720 691,848
Redemption iailties (Note 43) RS () 10 720000 - 623,404 - 1343404 1287404
Dervative financial liablties EcRakE
Designated as hedging instruments £ E AR TE - 664 1,925 - - 2,589 2,589
Not designated as hedging instruments e E AL TE - 40 642 - - 1,043 1,043
- 8,406,452 2,143,612 1,593,476 1436458 13579998 13,284,672
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-f=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESREE
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE - 7213790 916,760 - - 8,130,550 8,130,550
Liabiiies associated with transferred  ER BtV E B EUGIE
trade receivables BENER - 242,879 - - - 242,879 242,879
Borrowings fEE 3.09 15,750 1,061,254 763,288 1,167,406 3,007,698 2,867,827
Redemption liabilties (Note 43) BEEE (M) 10 - 720,000 - 705,284 1,425,284 1,177,921
Derivative financial liabties il
Not designated as hedging instruments € E AL TE - 35179 - - - 3,179 B9
7,507,598 2,698,014 763,288 1872690 12841590 12,454,356
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for M) Z BT & B ¥R &5 BAR S TE MO 5T IR B P =

non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed notes receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please refer to Note 42

for details.

2 Al LRaIHTESBAEIDNEIAS
BA T2 -

B EXFTiESN - NEE B & HE QAR
—FIARRBESER  AAKEAEE2E
BRENDSSREEE  WRERERLZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 emEABREZE®
0 eRIAEZA¥EF=

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

UHR A B T BT S RS RAER S
BEBEATEZEN -

REBEEUHRERATVEFEZAEEEHE
ERETRAEZIATE-

TRAGETED IR FEIIFOS BT
B FRBMEEMT :

ER WERTSEESR T AN A A
MAFMEENITTETARBRAES) RIRRE
HIRFTRmEME - AEEFSmMEEMRA
MM ERERNEAE - ZFTAIAS
14

oA WHNARTHEENSRTA(PIN
BIMTETR) R FEDIMBEBETAEE
ZEEDAEENRABREMSBIEL ER
BAHERREMGTOERE - Wit ETARF
ERNMEEABABBRRAIBIREE - A
AT ADIASE24R

EI  H—IARZEEABABBLIFRE
AERTIZEURMIE © AR TA AR
a3k EMRAES) ©

AEEFDEREERERABRSHEHR
BAVERE - TRABEHNSAZEERE
EReBABERFEZEESAN(LEZMA
ZEEDERBARE) -

Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2019 Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input
SEBIA RZZ-NE+ZA=T—AZL2FE ALTESH HEREREEHASE
Financial assets at Listed equity securities in Hong Kong Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
fair value through ~ Coal industry RMB29,934,000 E1R RiERMEMHR . ERE
0Cl, non-current (2018: RMB31,540,000)
NATESEREEH RERMN ETRAE S —ERITE
AR EKEE AERH#29934,0007 (ZF—N\F

SREE  ERE AR #31,540,0007T)
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SREREE®
(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 ERITAEZRFEFSE@
(Continued)
Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2019 Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input
FRIA RZF-NF+-A=+—RZAFE LTEER BEREZLEZERAHE
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract designated  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
instruments as hedging instruments EVIY based on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
fTHESRIA - RMB3,042,000 (2018: RMB3,113,000) exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
BT AL TARZEINE contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
&R - AR3042,0007T the credit risk of the counterparty.
(ZZ-\F : AR¥3,113,000) BARRENE - ARRRERENEEDREEH

EX(RERSHROIERERER) RAFES
ME - BRARRHTINEERBNLEHE -

Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract not Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
instruments designated as hedging instruments Vi on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
TESRMIA - RMB10,904,000 (2018: RMB1,288,000) exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
TETEBH P TERMRRINE contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
&R - ARE10,904,0007C the credit risk of the counterparty.
(ZZ-N\F : AR¥1,288,000) BARRENE - ARRRERENEEDREEH

EX(RERSHROIERERER) RAFES
ME - BRARRHTINEERBNLEHE -

Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
instruments designated as hedging instruments Vi on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
TESRMIA - RMB2,589,000 (2018: Nil) exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
BT AL TARZEINE contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
&R — AR2589,0007T the credit risk of the counterparty.
(Z2-N\F: %) BHBAALTE - KRB RENBEHREES

EX(RERSHROIERERER) REFES
ME - BRARRHTINEERBNLEHRE -

Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract not Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
instruments designated as hedging instruments Vi on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
TESRMIA —RMB1,043,000 exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
(2018: RMB35,179,000) contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
TETEBE R TERMRRINE the credit risk of the counterparty.
AR - ARH1,043,0007C BARRENE - ARRERENEEDREEH
(ZZ-\& : AR35,179,000) EX(REREHRNTERENER) RaREH

ME - BRARRHTINEERBNLEHRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREER®
(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments O ERMTAEZRFEFE@
(Continued)

Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2019 Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input

$HMIA RZF-AF+-A=+—-B2z2AFE ATEEH REREREEGAEE

Financial assets at fair value Structured deposit Level 3 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
through profit or loss - RMB1,393,000,000 ERE on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that

NAFEFERES (2018: RMB354,243,000) reflects the expected return rates ranged from 2.4% to
TAEERSREE BRI — AR1,393,000,0007T 3.9%. The higher the expected return rate, the higher the

(ZZ—NF : AR354,243,000) fair value.

BMRBETE - RRBERENBEANESE
et BT RMIBHEREM L R
(NT24%23.9%) - BEERELS

NEERRD
Financial assets at fair Notes receivables Level 3 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
value through OCl - RMB4,246,819,000 ERE on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate of 3.00%.
NATESEREES (2018: RMB3,955,287,000) The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
STAEM 2 ERE MR — A\ R #64,246,819,0007T BEBRRENE - ARRR2RENREANEE
SREE (ZT—N\F : AR3955,287,000) fhat  BIR300%MEL R - BHREHS -
DNEEBE o
Financial assets at fair value Equity interest in unlisted company with Level 3 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
through profit or loss no open market price quote ERF on expected volatility, discount for lack of marketability
DATEEEES - RMB1,296,000 (2018: RMB1,296,000) (“DLOM"), and discount rate. The higher the expected
TABRNEREE WENFATERENELTAF volatility, the lower the fair value. The higher the DLOM,
AR — AR #1,296,0007T the lower the fair value. The higher the discount rate,
(ZZ—N\F : AR¥1,296,0007T) the lower the fair value.

EHRADRE - ARRSRENREBRARE
Rz mER@tMR (R TS REERE]))
REBEGES - BERBEA - AFEYE -
RzmEnBERLR A TERE -
MREHE  ATEYE -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year. FERNFIREAFE 24 7 I E B -
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of current financial EERE - RNERAUTEHRE AR HEK AT IR
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the ZhEBeMmEERSRBENEREELEELAY

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values BEAEE °
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Estimation of the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the respective fair value of these financial assets.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
balance sheet date. In making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such
as actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
customers, actual or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting date the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

4 BEASHHABRMAFIRERZEZE

BERIR

REMBRRART GEHES  MEFHEFREE
BER HEREFHERERAR - ERERE
AR EE &5 B INRTTE AT -

AR R A SR EETE o W B RBEELLR
REMAZRSY  SEHERAREVBRTERE
BRI MEREREFEMNARREFHTE -

%%&Hﬁ%@ﬂ@@%*?ﬂéﬁ%%%%%&
REBNETREBETMEL - BHMBERE
%ﬁumﬁﬁﬁﬁfiﬁ%;

ERHENEET

TREENMTRE

RNEBRTEEENSRITAMNATEFERMGER

MEEE - AKBERHEEEZERER - WIEHE
ZERNBERPRETNARE - ZFRE LM
VEFHNBREYERTTREENEEATE -

B 5 WS AN E TR E

A B BE G R B M TR IR 18 & (T 3E3) AR
REREELRE - AEBEBFE - RIFHBE
B BETALEERBERANAELER - £
TEHZ SRR MEEREFTENBABRRERH
B o IMEL IR - EREZRTPREEENE
BRABMBEREY EBREPMBEARRNERK
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4 BEAETHERGETTIEERZZE

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2019 was RMB677,221,000 (2018: RMB853,808,000).
Further details are set out in Note 19.

Estimated useful live and impairment of intangible assets

The intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives. The management assesses the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets annually. This estimate is based on the management’s
experience of the actual useful lives of the intangible assets with similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and actions of its competitors.

In addition, the management considers the potential impairment based
on the recoverable amount. The intangible assets with finite useful lives
are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, the significant
change in technology associated with the intangible assets. Determining
whether intangible assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amount of CGUs at the end of the reporting period is based on
the value in use calculation which requires the management of the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property
and plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the management’s experience of the actual useful
lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and actions of its competitors. The management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are less than previously estimated.

ERR®)
EESPRE

ETRERORERMGIESKAENESELSE
N(REELEMNEREE - EREEFES
AEBGARSELBEURRELNRKRDR
B YRFEREEBEZNMREK - HERRK
Reng8PNEH - AIAEESIBEXNRERR - 1
“E-NEFTA=TH BENREEAAR
#677,221,0007T (ZZF — )\F : AR #853,808,000
TT) © #E—HFHITEMNMEE9
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 36.

Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (only assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at balance sheet date
on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations have
exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received, and made
provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated least net
cost of exiting from the contracts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
leasehold land and land use right, right-of-use asset
and development costs

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payment for land, right-of-use assets and
development costs to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payment for lands, right-of-use
assets and development costs are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use of the assets and
the fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation requires
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

4 BEASHHABRMETTIREEZZE
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4 BEAETHERGETTIEERZZE

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing, the applicable tax rates, and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are set out in Note 24.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for under acquisition method.
The determination and allocation of fair values to the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is based on various assumptions and
valuation methodologies requiring considerable management judgement.
The most significant variables in these valuations are discount rates, royalty
rate and attrition rate, as well as the assumptions and estimates used to
determine the cash inflows and outflows. The Group determines discount
rates to be used based on the risk inherent in the related activity’s current
business model and industry comparisons. Terminal values are based on
the expected life of assets and forecasted life cycle and forecasted cash
flows over that period. Although the Group believes that the assumptions
applied in the determination are reasonable based on information available
at the date of acquisition, actual results may differ from the forecasted
amounts and the difference could be material.

ERR®)
IRIEFIB & B
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5 Revenue 5 WA

Year ended 31 December 2019
E-2-hF+-A=t+-ALFE
Manufacture
of coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
BUERTEMW SEREEIHN #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T AR¥T T

Sales of auto parts HEEIBHAEE - 16,041,025 16,041,025
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS ZERSHE 6,269,018 - 6,269,018
Revenue from steel and other materials 848 & E4th KL & 51
trading WA 2,118,017 128,801 2,246,818
Sales of spare parts for coal mining JE TR AR AL R Y
machinery HE 1,002,430 - 1,002,430
Sales of other coal mining equipment — Efh SRR EHHE 86,532 - 86,532
Other revenue EugA 75,594 - 75,594
9,551,591 16,169,826 25,721,417

Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_Z—)\G+ZA=+—HLFE

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIERE,  BUETETEMT HET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARETTT

Sales of auto parts AETEM TS - 17,658,657 17,658,657
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RS BRIt E 5,107,137 - 5,107,137
Revenue from steel and other materials 8 &% B4 R KHEE 5

trading WA 2,052,719 86,294 2,139,013
Sales of spare parts for coal mining JE AR LAY

machinery HE 868,332 - 868,332
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL b LA B RISYE 136,959 - 136,959
Other revenue HUg A 101,632 - 101,632

8,266,779 17,744,951 26,011,730
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6

Segment information

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group’s reportable
segments under IFRS 8 are (i) manufacture of coal mining machinery;
and (i) manufacture of auto parts. No operating segments have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the
performance of operating segments.

7 EPER

REBSREH BEBTIERNAATNSETRAR
(B BRIBREE ) RS E R RIRR R
MERHBBEE - ABNE - REELEMBES
B BeH - ALEM T 2H/H HAOREERE
W RO SETHEE - WREL DA BB
A GEE 2 HHH o

I

LERRETBRERDIFNERT BT

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by EB R A R EEIZ T 25 RS E D ER DT
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepare the segment T o REBERFFERYSHRE - TRF)HE
reporting for net profit excluding the impact of a) impairment of goodwill b) WA - DEREERNERAETHNTE - Z2EEEY
interest expense of redemption liabilities. All of these 2 items are related to BRLERBE T E M FAER o
manufacture of auto parts segment.
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIERE  RESETIM et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETTT AREETTT ARETTT
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-=—hE
+TZA=t+—HLEE
Segment revenue D EPA 9,551,591 16,169,826 25,721,417
Segment net profit/(loss) excluding AEFEFE, (EE)
impairment of goodwill, interest TEERERE -
expense of redemption liabilities BRsENEMEZ 1,659,300 (250,909) 1,408,391
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\F
+T=ZA=+—HLFE
Segment revenue DERUTA 8,266,779 17,744,951 26,011,730
Segment net profit excluding DECEFE - B
impairment of goodwill, interest FEERE - BRI AE
expense of redemption liabilities FERX 893,600 245,254 1,138,854
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6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®E
As at December 31
Rt=A=+—H

2019 2018
Sl ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEmT NS

Segment revenue and consolidated revenue ﬁ%ﬁuﬁz)\&i BUA 25,721,417 26,011,730
Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill, DESERE - IR ERE -
interest expense of redemption liabilities EoaEMNBEY 1,408,391 1,138,854

Impairment of goodwill EERE (174,086) (109,125)

Interest expense on redemption liabilities Eoa &R SRR (94,395) (90,821)

Consolidated profit for the year FEREGEE A 1,139,910 938,908
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEENEERAGERIEMIEED DT
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepared the segment T o AEERBREERBEERESHRE - T
reporting for total assets and liabilities excluding, the impact of a) goodwill, R E Rh)ER R ENFE - 2R YRS
and b) redemption liabilities. The 2 items are related to manufacture of BT IS EIEA -

auto parts segment.

As at 31 December

B+=A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

SEGMENT ASSETS DEEE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery B R 16,637,534 14,518,380
Manufacture of auto parts BE BT ER 12,504,096 12,636,583
Total segment assets BHEPEE 29,141,630 27,154,963
Goodwill R 677,221 853,808
Consolidated assets HEBE 29,818,851 28,008,771
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SEEE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery BT 7,283,768 6,415,742
Manufacture of auto parts B RE T IR 8,105,433 8,124,264
Total segment liabilities excluding redemption liabilites 425 Ef&E - TEEEBLAE 15,389,201 14,540,006
Redemption liabilities Eoafk 1,287,404 1,177,921

Consolidated liabilities meaE 16,676,605 15,717,927
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6 Segment information (Continued) 6 2EER®

Hh 1 &
WARE FIE DT

Geographical information

The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
The PRC =8 15,417,387 14,830,433
Germany = 4,745,898 5,507,551
Other countries HALBIR 5,558,132 5,673,746
25,721,417 26,011,730

PEEEREYHRERN SR E - RFEE
IRIED BE RAEEBSHITHE -

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial
statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the
segment and the physical location of the asset.

2019
—E-NEF
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets
REE AR R "B
PIEE EELENRE FRBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T AR¥T T
Manufacture of coal mining machinery &3 B iR Ak
The PRC =8 14,887,478 284,598 298,820
Germany = 3,611 - -
Other countries HMER 125,122 - 316
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B TR
The PRC =8 7,701,003 72,577 316,638
Germany = 2,926,176 - 440,695
Other countries HABR 3,230,899 - 232,968
Total Segment assets BB E 28,874,289 357,175 1,289,437
Elimination H5H (165,995)
Unallocated: Kohe
Goodwill EES 677,221
Deferred tax assets EETHEEE 419,390
Derivative financial instruments FRIEE R T A 13,946
Total assets as per the financial position — Bf # ik W TR 425 &= 29,818,851
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6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®E
Geographical information (Continued) I &R E)
2018
—ZE—N\F
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets
REEE AR R NE
DHEE AELENKRE ERBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREBFIT AREETTT
Manufacture of coal mining machinery &Y IR AR,
The PRC m 12,706,704 393,472 122,509
Germany =E 4,265 - -
Other countries HABEIR 21,869 - -
Manufacture of auto parts B R E T I
The PRC R 7,028,839 40,006 329,802
Germany == 3,014,033 - 425,273
Other countries EMER 4,065,030 - 409,647
Total Segment assets B ENEE 26,840,740 433,478 1,287,231
Elimination Ekic! (132,500)
Unallocated: KA
Goodwill [EES 853,808
Deferred tax assets EEFTEE E 442,322
Derivative financial instruments B4 TR 4,401
Total assets as per the financial position B #5 4k 0 B /R 488 &= 28,008,771
Information about major customers FERPER

The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

Customer A — manufacture of auto parts segment BPEA- REZEHF

A

ATFIRR B 1 A EE AU AR B10%H) F P4

2019 2018
—z—ns I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%Tr NS
3,389,763 3,348,294
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7 Other income 7 HiA

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E=-)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETFIT

Government grants (Note) TRATHE B (BT EE) 156,959 52,132
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term receivables 877172k - &= BAFEUCEIE K&

and finance lease receivables BhE T & FEWGRIER ) B ULA 68,221 53,928

225,180 106,060

MR - BISWB E2EREEMEETEBERREASE
B RFTERSS M 8t BUSEERE BB - 1
HEFAXELRNAEREERERFEHRNERT

Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the
local government for compensation of research and development expenses
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant, which are

transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses WAE R Z 185 -
incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.
8 Other gains and losses 8 HttW=KEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) PE 32Uk (E518) 41,896 (40,473)
Gain on disposal of associates (Note 21) B E A R M WEs (M EE21) 16,257 -
Dividend from financial assets at fair AT ER = BEEBR A A
value through comprehensive income PERENSEBEENRE 2,897 -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE « BE REEL &
equipment, and intangible assets ERAE(EER), M (2,192) 1,978
Net fair value loss on derivative financial instruments TEER T AN FEEBERFE (55,998) (25,948)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 19) 2R E (Fi7E19) (174,086) (109,125)
Impairment of development costs (Note) FAEE R AR E (Bt EE) (246,731) -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value HENRAFEFEEEEE
through profit or loss FFAEENEREERR = 3,041
Others Hith (447) (3,976)
(418,404) (174,503)
Note: During 2019, the Group upgraded the BRM technology from BRM 1.5 to MIEE : RZZE—NF - ANEBEHBRMBT B BRM 1.5 7 4%
BRM 2.8, an advanced version of the development costs. With the change of ZBRM 2.8 (R AR FHAAR) o FR A B AT A
the components of the technology, all the current customized projects would 5 BRIFMAZEMLIER KEEBRM 2.8 « A&
be transferred to BRM 2.8. The Group made an impairment on capitalized % EBRM 1.5 B B R & AL B ANGTHIRRE
development cost which are directly linked with BRM 1.5 with the amount of ARME2467TEETT ©

RMB246.7 million.
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BE AN F R

9 Finance costs, net

i E IR AR R

—NAFTZRA=t—RLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Interests on bank borrowings IRITIEERE 108,600 113,567
Interests on redemption liabilities BE&EFE 111,054 106,848
Interests on leases HEF B 23,878 -
243,532 220,415
10 Income tax expense 10 FTSHiRExX
2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREETTT
Current income tax BIHAFTIS S 406,201 395,283
Under/(over) provision in prior years — enterprise BREFEBETR (BEREE)
income tax —EEFTEH 9,971 (7,906)
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH (26,006) (37,547)
390,166 349,830
(@) PRC corporate income tax (@ FEPEMSH
The corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on the statutory REAEE([ SN ) /REH BT
profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable EREREN P B AME A RREE
tax rate in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after EANRERT R EAE - ERERHBRERM
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not SHME BANBIT MBS TRZE
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. H -
In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income tax *E?J%EP BIRLE - IREDEEHEA25% o R
rate is 25%. The Company and certain subsidiaries are qualified for —NEMZZ—NF » ARERBOME
new/high-tech technology enterprises status and enjoyed preferential ﬁé%’%ﬂ?ﬂhm%éﬂ ZZ15%HER
income tax rate of 15% during 2019 and 2018. Ffr /=X -
(b) Germany profits tax b) EEFIEH
Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29%. During the year EREANFSHER2%  REEZT—N

ended 31 December 2019, no profit tax has been provided due to
accumulated losses (2018: 0).

F+ZA=+—HLFE HREREFE
B AWAREHRMNEHEB(ZF—/\F :0)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

10 Income tax expense (Continued)
(c) Others

Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are
between 9% and 37.68%, for the years ended 31 December 2019

10 A8 ()
(c) HAb

REBE-Z-NFE_Z-N\F+A=1+—
HIESFE  AEEEAMNME R RERHNFIEH

and 2018. KA F9%%37.68%2 [ ©
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFTT
Profit before tax R B Bl Vs A 1,530,076 1,288,738
Tax at applicable tax rate of respective entities BEPEBENRERAENTHE 268,380 269,454
Tax effect of share of result of associates and joint FE(RESZ QTR A S EEER
ventures R (6,259) 6,560
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  HZEERBIUR A IR 5 5 28 (4,641) (26,893)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for 7~ A] % B sz B B 75
tax purpose SE 60,820 51,697
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences R HE-2%+ 18 E518 N E S =58 89
not recognised M E 141,123 105,589
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences | f3 4¢ B R FERFL B ES 1B %
previously not recognised TRFEEE (11,324) (4,966)
Additional deduction for qualified research and ~ F& BV 3% & A9 EBAN
development expenses Eiy;) (67,904) (53,254)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEREBIR (BEEE) 9,971 (7,906)
Effect of change in tax rate during the year FRARREB) T2 - 9,549
390,166 349,830

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in Note 24.

FRIRERIAF BN K E24 -



expenses)

Raw material costs

Employee benefits expenses (including directors)
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment

Service fee
Freight charges
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Tax and surcharges
Rental
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service
— Audit of overseas subsidiaries
— Other audit related service
— Non-audit services
Depreciation for investment properties
Release of prepaid lease payments
Others

BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

[RFFFRCA
RERNFEX(BRES)
ME - BB RRETE
RIS &
5EE
BV EE#E
EREEENE
BRI INE R
ik
2 Gllien
— BRI
— BN B R BB IRTS
—HE B AR
—IEEEIRTE
REMENE
FRRTRN SRR
Hit

11 Expense by nature (including cost of sales, 1 RUEESSNWAZ(BFEEERE
selling and distribution expenses, administration

HERDHAX - THRAXRIFEER
expenses and research and development %)

2019 2018
= —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT

16,700,050 17,099,619
3,601,971 3,755,210
804,589 796,019
329,420 361,993
315,007 319,416
188,398 175,048
152,494 -
121,306 103,380
21,302 85,786
6,120 6,120
8,536 7,800

= 1,000

2,454 6,100
7,061 1,589

= 12,728
1,695,481 1,705,539

23,954,189 24,437,347
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BETBRAEREEMS
remuneration
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIEERA ETRA R ARG HENFANEE N
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows: EEPET

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-2-NEt-A=+-HLEE

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’ Share

henefits payments  contributions fee options Total
e I% BRE RKEA
REMER  BanRs FTEIER E=HS BRRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%Tn AR¥Tz AR¥TRT AR%Tn AR%Tx

Executive directors: HTEE -
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Notes 1, 2) ERERA (T 2) 539 720 46 - - 1,305
Mr. Jia Hao BERE 2,442 1,782 49 - 35 4,308
Mr. Xiang Jiayu BESina 535 720 4 - - 1,296
Mr. Fu Zugang fEmMEE 549 1,075 61 - 30 1,715
Mr. Wang Xinying (Note 2) THLEE (M) - - = - - -
Mr. Wang Bin TERE 2,362 2,699 27 - - 5,088
Mr. Zhang Haibin REHLE 564 336 49 - 17 966
Sub-total Net 6,991 1,332 273 - 82 14,678
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their FHlHITEEHES IR BEFEH AR RANEEER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company BB IR M IR 80 RIS T S A+ o
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-2-NEt-A=+-HLEE
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’ Share

henefits payments  contributions fee options Total
e I% HRE RIKER
REMGEN  sanRe FTEIHR ok R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR%Tn AR¥Tx AR¥TRT AR%Tn AR%Tx

Independent non-executive directors: B #77EE

Ms. Liu Yao =L+ - - - 161 - 161
Mr. Jiang Hua TERE - - - 140 - 140
Mr. Li Xudong TRk - - - 140 - 140
Mr. Cheng Jinglei BEERE = - - 47 - 47
Sub-total et - - - 488 - 488
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were MBS ERITESRIME DR REREARRNE

paid for their services as directors of the Company. EMmR RIS T -
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12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
remuneration (Continued)

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

12 E  BETBRAEBRESEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BECE-NET-A=T-HLFE

Salary, wages  Performance  Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’ Share
henefits payments  contributions fee options Total
e I% HRE RIKGER
REMER  #anRe SR ok R @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TR AR%Tn AR¥TR AR®TR ARETx
Supenvisors: E£Z:
Mr. Liu Qiang e 555 336 36 - - 921
Mr. Cui Leilei EEERE 412 ] 38 - - 540
Mr. Ni Wei BRI E 1,581 1,170 50 - - 2,801
Mr. Zhou Rong BREE 388 756 35 - - 1,179
Mr. Yuan Shaochong WL 181 294 35 - - 510
Mr. Wang Yue (Note 2) TR A () = = = = = =
Mr. Zhang Yichen RAREE 367 80 30 - - 417
Sub-total et 3,484 2,726 224 - - 6,434
Total @5t 10,475 10,058 497 488 82 21,600
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \&+_A=t-RIFE
Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
e IAK HRA RIKEF
Hibighl  Bn%Ee BHEGEN ek et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT AREFT ARETTT ARETT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Notes 1, 2) EAERA (1 2) 529 685 87 - 1,301
Mr. Jia Hao ks 2,431 1,782 50 - 4,263
Mr. Xiang Jiayu EEGpS 530 685 87 - 1,302
Mr. Fu Zugang AR EE 584 724 141 - 1,449
Mr. Wang Xinying (Note 2) T RE(HE2) - - - - -
Mr. Wang Bin TELE 2,442 1,619 55 - 4116
Mr. Zhang Haibin FEELE 420 500 111 - 1,031
Mr. Guo Haofeng PEBEE(RZT-NF
(resigned in Feb 2018) ZAEE) 78 82 24 - 184
Sub-total Nt 7,014 6,077 555 - 13,646

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

LRATEEME IR B EH AR R LA EEER
BB IE MR A ARTS M A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BETRAEBREEZME )

remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=t—RLEFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  henefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
¢ 1% BRR RINER
REMBF  HSNES HE EEMS st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETTT
Independent non-executive directors: B B 7TEE -
Ms. Liu Yao =y - - - 158 158
Mr. Jiang Hua TELE - - - 140 140
Mr. Li Xudong TR - - - 140 140
Sub-total /et - - - 438 438

LB FRTEENE IR RERELARANE
EMmRHaRBEm AT

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
paid for their services as directors of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HEZZ-\F+-A=+—ALFE
Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  henefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
e 17 HERA RINER
REMER  EMEnRE HE 5 EEHS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Supervisors: 2%
Mr. Liu Qiang Gy 384 482 68 - 934
Mr. Cui Leilei EEELL 307 165 64 - 536
Mr. Ni Wei REEE 1,446 780 55 - 2,281
Mr. Zhang Yichen RHRFEAE 275 154 38 - 467
Mr. Yuan Shaochong GBI E 185 286 55 - 526
Mr. Wang Yue (Note 2) FREE (i) - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Rong S 375 487 52 - 914
Mr. Ni Heping RMFRE(R=Z-\F
(resigned in Feb 2018) ZREE) 53 64 15 - 132
Ms. Xu Mingkai REAIZL(RZT-\F
(resigned in Feb 2018) ZABHE) 28 32 6 - 66
Mr. Zhang Zhigiang REBEERZE-N\E
(resigned in Feb 2018) —AET) 3 18 3 - 24
Mr. Zhang Jun RELE(RZT-N\E
(resigned in Feb 2018) ZREE) 32 36 7 - 75
Mr. Li Chongging FERFERZE-NE
(resigned in Feb 2018) ZREHE) 33 24 19 - 76
Mr. Liu Fuying ARBEERZE-NEF
(resigned in Feb 2018) —AET) 49 72 16 - 137
Sub-total et 3,170 2,600 398 - 6,168
Total @t 10,184 8677 953 438 20,052
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note 1: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emolument for the role as chief executive is also included above.

Note 2: All or partial of these directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 were borne by the parent of the Company.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. None
of the directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

13 Employees’ remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
three (2018: four) were directors or supervisor of the Company whose
remuneration is included in the disclosures in Note 12 above. The
remuneration of the remaining two individuals (2018: one) was as follows:

12

13

BEE  RETHBAEBREEMSH)

EFREFHE PRESHAATRAEBER NS
B R RF T A o

M - BEAEEETMRAARNRSTHRAE « MEE
EREHITRABNHMIFE A LR S A -

Mo : BE-F-AFR-F-N\F+-A=+—AL
FENFELBOEEME MALRRE R AR

=

HRREANES T BRAEERERIAESHIR
HE_Z-NFR_ZF-N\FT_A=T—HILF
[EEVRIBET o

HEZZE-NFRZE-\F+ZA=1+—HIEF
B AEEUERAESRESINEAME - 1EA
EmBEs B AEERNF S EEREE - BE
ZE-NEFRZE-NFtZA=+—HLEFE
WiRESHEERETAMNE -

BEME

AEBREERFALZF  =ZR(ZF-/\F:
M&B)BARRESHES - WENMSFBER L
MPRE12HEE - TR B (ZFE—\F : —B)AL
BT

2019 2018

S8kd ==

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits TERHEMER 3,270 1,724
Performance related incentive payments HRIFEMINES 938 504
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE R BIHE5R 76 51
Share options BE A 35 -
4,319 2,279
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
13 Employees’ Remuneration (ontinued) 13 EEME @)
The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within BeNF Ty EENAEERT ATHENT ¢

the following bands is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
0[RS No. of employees
EE#E EEHE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7. 21,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001,8 70 23,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 3,000,001 7C £5,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 5,000,001 7C £7,000,0007 7T 1 -
5 5

14 Dividends 14 RE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMET T

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FNEREBD EAIIRE

— 2018 Final (RMB0.145 per share) ——ZT— \FRH(FK
ARE0.1457T) 251,208 -
— 2017 Final (RMB0.050 per share) — Bt FRP(ERK
AR #0.0507T) = 86,623
251,208 86,623
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect WERE  AAREFEERBEE=-Z—N
of the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB0.185 per share (2018: final F+-A=+—"HUEFERNTRBEBRESHRAR
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB0.145 018 (ZE—N\F : BIBE=ZZT—N\F+=
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB320,507,203 has been A=+—BLEFERNRBR TR ARE0.145
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the TU) + HEE A AR 320,507,203 7T ¢ ZBEFARER A E

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. [ERRERBFREHE - FAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE—T—h&E+=-A=+—HAILEE
15 BRER
(@) SREARZEF
AR AR SR A BRI TRkt

15 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data: C
2019 2018
—ZE—hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Earning for the purpose of basic earnings STESRERZFNEF

per share (profit for the year attributable to (RRBIRREEFER

owners of the Company) ) 1,040,253 832,344

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 5+ & FAXE AR Z R B L @A

the purpose of basic earnings per share hniEFH 1,732,471,370 1,732,471,370
Earnings per share (RMB cents) HREF(ARES) 60.04 48.04

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) SEREERF

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. The
share options are assumed to have been converted into ordinary

EREERNFE AR D ETEERINETY
FUARRAE AB T a2 LERkEER
EITFE - ARRE—HRAGTHETENY
AR BRE - BEREERRCEBRATLTA
A% o

shares.
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Earnings: EF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company STESREERTIFTAARQR]
used in the diluted earnings A% S PE (G i
per share calculation 1,040,253 832,344
Number of shares: BOEsE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SFEFREREEITEERLN
in issue during the year per share calculation INHEFH 8 1,732,471,370

Add: share options N EERRE

192,913

1,732,471,370

KB SR E TR e
B HTRE
BB T

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue and potential ordinary shares used
as the denominator in calculating diluted
earnings per share

1,732,664,283

1,732,471,370

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) FRREERAN(ARKS)

60.04

48.04
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
16 Property, plant and equipment 16 Y% - BEKRE
Plant and Motor Other  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BT HERESE 4] bR HEIR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARET:R

CoST RA&

At 1 January 2018 WZE-\F—-F-H 1,469,298 1,911,918 44,012 98,008 125,165 3,648,451
Additions NE 29,144 213,832 4440 194,704 433,838 875,958
Transfer B4 15,351 343,755 2,616 119,065 (480,787) -
Disposals HE (24,640) (116,668) (3,849 (62,743) (11,527) (219427)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 45) WEEMB AR (H5Hs) 111,782 1,234,876 - 381,252 452,102 2,180,012
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) E&ZHE M (MH18) (107,976) - - - - (107,976)
Currency exchange Bl R (418) 8,95 - (14,898) 4,907 (1454)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+=A=1—H 1,492,541 3,596,668 47219 715,438 523,698 6,375,564
Accounting Policy Changes (Note 2.3 @3tHBRZE) (MizE2.3) 2730 - 2730
At1 January 2019 RZE-NEF-R—-H 1,492,541 3,596,068 47219 712,701 523,698 6,372,827
Additions NE 104,726 149,979 7,207 165,420 444700 872,032
Transfer 222 29,920 252,617 228 105,479 (388,244) -
Disposals e (2,260) (142,340) (9,269 (33311) (3738) (210918)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) =% 2 2 (It318) (48,898 - - - - (48,898
Currency exchange B 468 (4,031) - (14617) (7.431) (25611)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 1,976,497 3,852,893 45,385 915,672 568,985 6,959,432

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitiE

At1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A-H 249,088 578,676 29,089 77,265 - 934,318
Provided for the year FREE 64,648 462,435 4778 264,158 - 796,019
Efimination on disposals HERBLHE (9976) 99,524) (3.391) (47,877) - (160,768)
Transfer toinvestment property (Note 18) EEEE R &% (Hizt18) (23,612) - - - - (23612
Currency exchange gk 702 (28,073) - (8,335) - (35,706)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+ZA=1—H 281,050 913514 30476 285,211 - 1,510,251
At1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A-H 281,050 913,514 30,476 285,211 - 1,510,251
Provided for the year FRERE 56,195 515,234 2,525 228,63 - 804,589
Elimination on disposals HERBLE (1,049) (113,776) (3893 (44,709) - (163,427)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) &% 8 2 (Iit318) (7,663 - - - - (7,663
Currency exchange Sl 247 (17,837) - (8,548 - (26,138)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NET-A=T—-H 330,780 1,297,135 29,108 460,589 - 2,117,612
CARRYING VALUES IREE

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+-A=1-H 1,211,491 2,683,154 16,743 430,227 523,698 4,865,313

At 31 December 2019 RZZ-N$+-A=1-H 1,245,117 2,905,758 16,277 455,083 568,985 4,841,820




16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% ==

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of RMB55,073,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB81,138,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the relevant property ownership certificates can be

obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of approximately RMB309,815,900 as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB142,942,000) to secure banking facilities granted to

the Group.

17 Leases

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

~ e R AR MY EE

—NE+-—A=+—HIFE
16 V¥ - BMERRE®)

AEBNBEERR-_Z—NEF+-_A=+—8HK

HFEAARES5073,0007T( —Z—N\F : AR
81,138,0007C ) MIEFRBAMENM B #EE - AR AEE
ERAEENISHAEYEREGES  mTEgEL
BARMA o

—hNhE+-A=+—8 Ar&£EEMWRE
EFELH A RBE309,815900T( —E— N\E+_A
=+—H : AR®142,942,0007T) 2% BER
B BAEEERKRITEVE I -

17 HHE
() REEABRERANTE
TXEBRENSEITNTE

31 December 1 January
2019
—E-NEF
—H—H
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Buildings EF 602,633 702,176
Land of use rights 4 b i A RE 487,214 440,964
Machines e 6,062 112
Office and operating equipment WNE RCERANE 1,262 1,929
Others EHih 73,895 79,970
1,171,066 1,225,151

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current BNEA 140,143 155,982
Non-current JERNER 551,705 627,989
691,848 783,971

In the previous year, the Group only recognised lease assets and
lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classified as ‘finance
leases’ under IAS 17 Leases. The assets were presented in property,
plant and equipment and the liabilities as part of the Group’s
borrowings. For adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 on 1

January 2019, please refer to Note 2.3.

The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China

government.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial year
were RMB104,134,000 of which RMB58,995,000 were transferred

from investment properties.

RE—EFE  AEBEERRIEBERSE
AN7TSEHESEAEHMEENHEEERTEE
ﬁ@o&ié?ﬂ%mixﬁ%&%ﬁu&$

EERTHaEHs  c BER-ZE—NF—
ﬁ B R 40 B PR B 75 R 5 2R R 551657 T HERR Y
FE - F2EMFF23 -

AEEBEPEANWERTRT A T EE R
—NFHREENERREERERA

Eﬁ%104,134,0007z ©E AR 58,995,0007T
EERAMRER -
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ARE I IRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—hF+-_A=+—HAIFE
17 Leases (Continued) 17 HE @)
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or (i) RBmRERNEEE
loss
The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: TXBBHEENNSRIIRR T 185 ¢

2019 2018
S ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T 7 NS

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FAREERNERY :

Buildings BF 118,506 -
Land use rights T b fE A 12,744 -
Machines Hees 1,031 -
Office and operating equipment AR R E M AR 1,074 -
Others Hith 19,139
152,494 -

Interest expense (included in finance cost) FEFRZ (FIARERKA) 23,878 -
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 A SRR 2 (A

(included in cost of goods sold and EEKRARITI

administrative expenses) Fs) 4,815 -

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KR XA RS EEE
that are not shown above as short-term leases ~ EEMREMRBRE S (5 ATTHE

(included in administrative expenses) M) 12,536 -
Expense relating to variable lease payments RINAHEBEN A EHE
not included in lease liabilities B (5 ATTER
(included in administrative expenses) M) 3,951 -
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB161,356,000. RZZE-NFHEMNRERLBEREARE

161,356,0007T °
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mEMEmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
18 Investment properties 18 REWEE
leasehold land
and land
Buildings use rights Total
HETHR
B T ith {5 FARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T AREET T
COST R
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—)\F&—HF—H 50,179 - 50,179
Transfer in from property, B - BEMRE
plant and equipment (Note 16) & A (FI7E16) 107,976 - 107,976
Transfer in from leasehold land and B &+ Ko 4 0 {5 F
land use rights LN - 77,200 77,200
At 31 December 2018 NZ_E—-NF+-_A=+—H 158,155 77,200 235,355
Additions NE 6,336 - 6,336
Transfer in from property, B - BENE
plant and equipment (Note 16) A (Mi5E16) 48,898 - 48,898
Transfer out to right of use assets B FHAEEE
(Note 17) (M$5E17) - (69,679) (69,679)
At 31 December 2019 R-_E-NF+-_A=+—H 213,389 7,521 220,910
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—/\F—AF—H 6,170 - 6,170
Transfer in from property, plant and BY%E - BE&E
equipment (Note 16) & A (MI5E16) 23,612 - 23,612
Transfer in from leasehold land and B E £ Ko 4 b P
land use rights EWN - 10,164 10,164
Provided for the year FERNEA 1,589 - 1,589
At 31 December 2018 R-E—)\F+—A=+—H 31,371 10,164 41,535
Transfer in from property, plant and BV - BE KRB
equipment (Note 16) & A (MI5E16) 7,663 - 7,663
Transfer out to right of use assets EHEFERAREE
(Note 17) (F3E17) - (10,684) (10,684)
Provided for the year FRE S 5,774 1,287 7,061
At 31 December 2019 N_E—-NF+-_A=1+—H 44,808 767 45575
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 WR_ZE—-—N\F+-_A=+—H 126,784 67,036 193,820
At 31 December 2019 N_E—-NF+-_A=1+—H 168,581 6,754 175,335
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

18 Investment properties (Continued) 18 REME (&)

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB318,019,000 (2018: RMB218,875,000). The
fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the
management of the Company. The fair value was determined based on
the direct comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are
of the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction
prices or current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

R-E—NF+_A=1+—8 AEBEEPED
NEEBARE318019,000(ZE—N\F : AR
#5218,875,0007T) « ZAFERZREARGIEERE
EHMHERE - ZAFERBREBEEELESAGE
"/l AREEFRARDNEELEREMENHRA
FEMNREIL - EELESARBBUYENSIT
RBEEBUEFHRE - RMEEVENQTER -
ERERsABEESMERERS -

REIB-AF+ZR=+—H TEENKREWE
MEBRNFESFROFBENT

Fair value as at
31 December

F3IW WATE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMT T

Investment properties located in the PRC MR BERIEEME 318,019 318,019
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FAR R A S 34 -

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%
Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised rental
income with the amount of RMB21,936,000 (2018: RMB21,930,000).

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group had not obtained
the relevant property certificates for buildings with a net book value of
RMB31,890,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB4,478,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership
certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

LA EREYE R REFGREERUELEN
& HANFERNOT

T E AR 2%
¥ 2.71%Z=3.17%

HZE2019F12A318ILFE  AEEERHES WK
AN R #21,936,0007T (20184 = A B #21,930,000
JT) °

FTEEFHMARPBERN o NEB M RERR
T-NF+_AZ+ " BEEFEAARE
31,890,000T( = — \4F : AR¥4,478,0007T) &Y
BFIERYERMBIREE - ARRIESERE  AENE
EEEMEEFBRZEM T BBEAKE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

19 Goodwill

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period with a terminal value related to the future cash flows
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is
reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUs:

19 BE

AEEEBBReELBM([ReELEMN]) R
REESHEETFRERENR - BeEE B
B SRIREEREENE - ZEHEEAREE
BEMER R E L F BNV FAES DR
AIRERETRN - MEZARIRTREBANZK
BEAZEATXHMIOFHEEEAEREE
B o ZEMNERE LA SRS AKENENE
EEE - BRIIEHIREFRARRE - BIEEER
TRENSETELR  URBBERRALESY
EBtE R is B ROTREHRE TIRA -

BENEEASEDBRINREELEM - TXR
ERGELENHEOEME

Gurrency
translation

Year ended 31 December 31 2019
BE-Z-NFT-A=1+-HLEE

ARBTR

Opening Addition

Impairment

&4 wE HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARBTR

difference Closing
ERBREER £X
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. SRR EE(LT)
(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi”) BRAR(EHENLFE]) 104,516 - - - 104,516
Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co,, Ltd. BB EAEERERAR
(“Super Electric”) ([#E)) 43,844 - (14,724) - 29,120
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring BUETHHEREIRR
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd. BRAREHRER])
(*ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) 88,283 - - - 88,283
SEG SEG 617,165 - (159,362) (2,501) 455,302
853,808 - (174,086) (25501) 677,221
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

19 Goodwill (Continued) 19 BE )
Currency
translation
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
£9 RE HE ERREEER FX
Year ended 31 December 312018 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE-E-N\E+-A=1-ALEE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. SRR ) B AR
("ASIMCO Camshaft") T ) 22,552 - (22,552) - -
ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. SRR EE(L7)
(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi") BRAF(ZHEILF]) 104,516 - - - 104,516
Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd. W eE AR ERERAR
(*Super Electric”) ([E)) 43,844 - - - 43844
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) — BF RIS RERER
Co., Ltd. (*ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) BERAT SHRER]) 88,283 - - - 88,283
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd. (Anhui) 2o ¥Rl BRiR B REAG ()
(‘ASIMCO NVH') BRAF([ZEHENH]) 86,573 - (86,573) - -
SEG SEG - 613,626 - 3,539 617,165
345,768 613,626 (109,125) 3,539 853,308
Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted EEEN - \FER_ZE-NF+=-A=+—H
by management as at 31 December 2018 and 2019, according to IAS REER SR F 365 EE A HAERmE
36 “Impairment of assets”. For the purposes of impairment review, the EITRERF - BURERFMS  BEMNAKEE
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use BB AEBENEERT - stRE RN FHBM
calculations. The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based BWERSME  FRAEBEFTEEAERNESTE
on business plan for the purpose of impairment reviews covering a 5 or FIRESTETER o LT RSEGR M EME BT HHR
6-year period. After taking into consideration the competition in the market FAEEDBBEARERSREENTHE - i
of the products of SEG and Super Electric, the Group has adjusted down It BERBEZZE - NF+-A=+—HLLFER
the forecast and their cash flow projection. Accordingly, an impairment of EEGHEREARE174,086,000T( —ZF— )\ F -
RMB174,086,000 (2018: RMB109,125,000) has been provided for the AR #109,125,0007T) °

goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2019.



BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

19 Goodwill (Continued)

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU
value-in-use calculations are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

19 & ®)

ERRSELEMEREEETMARRER

BRERET

RZZB-NE+=ZA=+—8H

Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WA R E (%) ERE%) HAIRLR &
ASIMCO Shanxi TETRhLEE 0%-5% 21%-22% 15.88%
Super Electric 18 (3%)-0% 23%-24% 15.51%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan THTEIEER 0%-6% 38%-39% 15.51%
SEG SEG 0%-9% 15%-19% 15.83%
As at 31 December 2018 R=—E-NFE+=A=+—H
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WA 8 R % (%) ERE(%) BATRAR =R
ASIMCO Camshaft TR R 0-3.5% 29%-33% 14.95%
ASIMCO Shanxi DERHLTE (15%)-3% 22%-24% 15.58%
Super Electric 1HE (9%)-0 24%-25% 15.58%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TETRIEIR 0-5% 35%-37% 15.58%
ASIMCO NVH o RINVH 0-15% 19%-20% 14.71%
SEG SEG 2%-9% 15%-17% 16.20%

The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing,
were determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the
Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.

AREEREAANEEENEHEREREBE
KENAEHTSRRNTAEHPRE - BHRAEEEX
REMREBEARBHANEBE S - BRRE KRR

B R EERTERERROT ST -

193



"l 94 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE I IRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
20 Intangible assets 20 BEEE
Development Patent Customer
Trademark Software costs right  relationship Total
[ gH BEEA A EFBE @t
COST A
At1 January 2018 nZE-)\E—-A—-H 77,860 18,800 - 265,504 265,293 627,457
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 45) BB M 22 &1 (FizE45) - 104,157 46,213 337,992 311,327 799,689
Additions hE - 18,568 379,300 12,787 - 410,65
Disposals e - (1,194) - - - (1,194)
Currency exchange Gi3rh - 780 (19,076) 2,048 179% (14452)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+ZA=1+—4 77,860 141,11 406,437 618,331 578,416 1,822,155
Addtions NE - 23,155 341,663 1,13 - 365,931
Disposals HE - (232) - - - (232)
Currency exchange (3080 - 44 1,773 (1.271) (1,269) (326)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+-A=1+—H 77,860 164475 749,873 618,173 577,147 2,187,528
AMORTISATION B
At1 January 2018 RZZ-\¥-A-H 6,187 15477 - 25,186 22,108 68,958
Charge for the year ERk 15,672 31,400 - 72,948 55,028 175,048
Disposals e - (1,170) - - - (1,170)
Currency exchange G308 - 258 - 291 157 706
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-4 21859 45,965 - 98,425 77,293 24354
Charge for the year ERMR 15,672 31472 9,466 71,050 54,738 188,398
Disposals HE - (232 - - - (232
Currency exchange 3Rl - 78 90 216 192 636
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1—H 37,531 83,283 9,556 169,751 132223 432,344
IMPAIRMENT i
At 1 January 2018 and RZE-\E-A—-BRk
31 December 2018 —“E-\F+-A=1+—H - - - - - -
Additions (Note 8) RE (W78 - - 246,731 - - 246,731
Currency exchange EEHR - - 2,552 - - 2,552
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H - - 249,283 - - 249,283
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+ZA=1+-H 56,001 95,146 406,437 519,906 501,123 1,578,613
At 31 December 2019 RZE-nF+-A=+-A 40,329 81,192 491,034 448,422 444,924 1,505,901
Total research and development expense incurred during 2019 was TE-NEFEANRATEREREIYHOAEARK
approximately RMB1,356,689,000 (2018: RMB1,410,072,000), among 1,356,689,0007C ( =& — \4F : A R#1,410,072,000
which, RMB341,663,000 (2018: RMB379,300,000) related to auto parts ) HEhABLEZEIEM4EMERE ARK
technology project have been capitalised as development costs. As at 31 341,663,0007C( —E— N\ 4E : AR#379,300,0007T)
December 2019, the related development projects were in progress and EERERERAN R_E—NF+_A=1+—
were tested for impairment and no impairment was provided for these in H - BEF%ZEE FAETARETRENS - %
progress development projects according to the impairment testing result. S FAEITHR T IE B YW R E R R A 2R
Besides, during 2019, the Group made an impairment on capitalized (B o AN REBR - — NEENLEIZR
development cost with the amount of RMB246.7 million, which belong to AR REARKUTAE T - A EE AL

the manufacture of auto parts segment. B BlE g B B I o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

21 RBEQATWRE

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Cost of investments in unlisted associates RIE T E A RIHIRE KN 213,550 381,972
Share of post-acquisition profits and DAGUEB 1 = B 2 E At
other comprehensive income, 2EkES - HBRE YR

net of dividends received % 2. 71,903 11,500

285,453 393,472

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had interests in the

following associates:

Name of entity
DNAEH

Zhengzhou Suda Industry Machinery Service Co., Ltd.
(Note 1)
NRETERMREROERAF ()

Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund
Co., Ltd. (Note 2)
EH(LE)REREESERAA (5E2)

Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery
Co., Ltd.
BRIYERRENERAT

Yizheng Nahuan Technology Co., Ltd.
BUESRRRBR L

Huainan Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd.
(*Huainan Shun Li") (Note 3)
ERFE M BRE AR (DERMSEL])
(F7E3)

Place of

registration

AR i B

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
o

K- NER-F—/\E+=A=+—H &%
B LA T A T RS

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital
TELE WY
2019 2018
=t Il 2 \F
29.82% 31.48%
19.18% 49.18%
47.50% 47.50%
49.00% N/A
TEA
- 22.60%

Proportion of

voting power held

REREE LA
2019 2018
=t IOl 2 \F
29.82% 31.48%
19.18% 49.18%
47.50% 47.50%
49.00% N/A
TEA
- 22.60%

Principal activities
TEER

Aftermarket services
ERRS

Equity investment and
financial management
BARE REKER

Manufacture of
mining machinery
HERERM

Providing services for
auto spare parts
R ATBET B

R

Manufacture of
mining machinery
HERERM
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21 Investments in associates (continued) 21 REEE QNRINKRE ®)

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
AREH MR FERE Y BERER 2L E
2019 2018 2019 2018
LSk T\ ik —T—/\F
ZMJ Jiangxi Zongji Equipment Co., Ltd. The PRC 38.00% 38.00% 38.00% 38.0%  Manufacture of
BINEROIR) S EERAT F mining machinery
S BRI
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machine Co., Ltd. The PRC 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%  Manufacture of
NER SRR EN RO ERAR F mining machinery
S BRI
ZMJ Tezhong Duanya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Manufacture of
HINERSERREEER AT F mining machinery
S BRI
Shanghai Wangqing Automatic Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 25,00% 25.00% 25,00% 2500%  Manufacture of
PETIEEIRBERAR F mining machinery
BRI

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

In July 2019, Zhengzhou Suda Industry Machinery Service Co., Ltd. issued
1,850,000 ordinary shares to three new shareholders and the shares of
the Company was diluted to 29.82%.

On 22 November 2019, the Company entered into an agreement with
Shanghai Huaruan Investment Management LLP to sell 30% share of
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd with the amount
of RMB183,020,000. The Company recorded a gain of RMB11,307,000
for the disposal of the 30% shares. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company has received RMB118,963,000 and the remaining balance
RMB64,057,000 will be received in 2020.

After the disposal, the Company holds 19.18% share of Hua Xuan
(Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd and still treats the investment
as an associate.

On 20 February 2019, the Company entered into an agreement with
Huainan Licheng Coal Mining Equipment Co., Ltd. to sell 22.60%
share of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. with the amount of
RMB4,549,200. The Company recorded a loss of RMB8,093,000 for the
disposal of the 22.60% shares. As at 31 December 2019, the Company
has received RMB8,093,000.

BaET -

FEE2 -

PIEES

RZZE—NELR - 8N ERE T ERMREID
BRAFM =B EETT1,850,0000% X @A -
DAR BN BEHZE29.82% ©

RZE—NE+—A=Z+=H KAFHELE
EPREERERCEBRER)FI L hE
LAA R #183,020,000 7T ) & FEH ( )& ) IR
BEESBRRFI0%AI A - AN E)HEZ30%
B 8% 18 A R #11,307,000 TR 2 - R F
—AWF+-A=1+—8  ARFEWBARE
118,963,000 * #%8 A FR#64,057,0007TH A —F
ZTEYE -

REER  ARAFAES (LG RBRER
AR ATN18%HIRG « IRZIEE R AR
Ao

RZZE—NF_A=+A8  ARAIEERIK
HRLEER ARG % - LAARY4,549,200
TC B VE SR B B BR & 2 §22.60% K
BEAD o AR B H E % 22.60% KA (58215 AR
#8,093,000 T EE - HE-T—NF+=A
=+—08 ' AREBUREAKRES,093,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE
21 Investments in associates (Continued) 21 REBZE N FINERE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREETF T

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit/(loss) REBDIEHERSE SN

from continuing operations (Bi8) s 38,013 (49,642)
Aggregate amount of the Group'’s share of other AEESGEMEEW S5

comprehensive income - -

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AEE hEEBRAZ B
comprehensive expense 38,013 (49,642)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in -~ RNEBRZFH L A RHEE 2
these associates IR E(EBRE 285,453 393,472
22 Investments in joint ventures 2 REELEZRE

2019 2018
bl ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEnT NSETE

Cost of investments in unlisted joint venture RIELEMAERERE 2R 55,895 27,895
Share of post-acquisition profits and other HMEWEEE R F R EA 2
comprehensive income, net of dividends received Was - MBRERARE 15,827 12,111

71,722 40,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

22 Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interest in the following joint

ventures:

Name of entity
ERAH

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd
BEARDHRM R o @ REFRAF

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face
technology Co., Ltd.
BMERE S TIFEREARAR

2 REELE¥EZRE R

ZRZZE-NETZA=T—H  AEERUTE

EHSS LR
Proportion of

Place of nominal value of Proportion of

registration registered capital voting power held

i HEMELEELA ERERRELD
2019 2018 2019 2018

SO —Z-)\F ik —2-\F

The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

H

The PRC 28.00% N/A 28.00% N/A

F TER TER

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan that was acquired by the Group in March

2017.

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent working face technology Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. that was

incorporated by the Group in June 2019.

Principal activities
TEER

Manufacture of auto-parts
SEAETHHE

Manufacture of
high-tech coal
and mining parts

EERREERER
BT

BALAREHMRN RS REBAR AR EDHFIE
BRNREDhE  REAAKEN-_FT—tF=AK

R e

BHHEREETERMXBRA
SEBRMNERARMELEDRE

Al ZARSEEAKL -

EEIAVES
HEHRZ-ZT-AER

2019 2018
—E2-hE —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit from REBDHIFELEETE
continuing operations Ja M AR R 3,716 5,908
Aggregate amount of the Group's share of other AREBDHEMEEW S
comprehensive income kL] - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AREEDHEHEERY
comprehensive expense 4azE 3,716 5,908
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in =~ NEBRZES S EHERZ
these joint ventures EmREEERE 71,722 40,006
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e R EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 UAPEABAHSEHT ABENE
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE UQFPEFEEESEHTA
comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hih2EKENESREE TESH
instruments TH
Financial assets at fair value through other NHEEHEZESF AREMET
comprehensive income Lléz S ERIE E
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE TR AES 29,934 31,540
Current assets MENVEE
Notes receivable R =% 4,246,819 3,955,287
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ARFEAEEEEHTABRH

2018
—T-N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
Current assets MENVEE
Structured deposits BT 1,393,000 354,243
Unlisted equity securities FEEMRAES 1,296 1,296
1,394,296 355,539
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA
Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as PETEERARGEELFER - TRREEMEER
speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the & o AT - WOTETERFT AL P EFHRE - Bt
hedging accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for EHEEROME I EAIFHEER ] W TR
accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or }EL/{ NEEFEBHEBHABT c AEEHEA T
loss below. The Group has the following derivative financial instruments: HHTHERRITA -
Derivative financial assets TEemEE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFTT
Not designated as hedging instruments TEERLIHPTA 10,904 1,288
Designated as hedging instruments EEREFIA 3,042 3,113

13,946 4,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE
23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 UAFEFEEHEHTABENSE
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE VIR FPEFEEHSEHTA
comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hth2EKENESRMEE TESH
instruments (Continued) ITAuw
Derivative financial liabilities TEERBaE

2019 2018
—z—nr UG
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArwT NS

Not designated as hedging instruments T™MEEREHTA 1,043 35,179
Designated as hedging instruments EEAYHMIA 2,589 -
3,632 35,179
24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities 24 FEERIBEE B&
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial M BmEMS - BEBIEESRSTAT

reporting purposes:

2019 2018
Snsd ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
WCLES  AR%TR

Deferred tax assets to be recovered 15 T U Bl MR E R TR & B

—within 12 months —12( AR 115,671 69,897

— after 12 months —12{@ A& 340,669 387,405
456,340 457,302

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BT EMHEEHREAE

— within 12 months — 128 AR (41,395) (42,083)

— after 12 months —12E A& (288,333) (314,508)
(329,728) (356,591)

Deferred tax assets, net R I AR E 126,612 100,711
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued) 24 EEBBEE BEw
The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised and RN EBRERBEE, AEREESHNOT ¢
movements thereon:
Property,
Trade plant and Revaluation Revaluation
receivable Accruals equipment  Intangible  onprepaid  Revaluation  of Property,
loss ~ Write-down and  Unrealized tax  assels tax lease ofintangible plant and
allowance of inventory  provision profit difference  difference  payments assets  equipment (thers Total
BARY ESY T VES
AR Eiffix AR R}k EWEE EHEE Y HER

B BERE RER fE HEZR HEZR REE( KEE( REER Af it
RBOD  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOD  RMBOO  RWBON

ARETR ARETR ARMTRL ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

The Group TEE
At January 2018 RZZ-\F-A-0 163441 9078 52075 10034 - - (3619 (2089  (36979) 7618 99563
Acquisiton of subsiciaries  UrEEKEAR)

(Note 45) (H3E45) 13,669 8118 51384 17 &0 71387 - (18704 (37776) 5123 (20,954)
(Charge)creditto profitorloss AIBZ (1) /3HA 9.675) (1365  (44812) (1,061 (6433 (21,669 3803 4 19 4092 (3757
Hffectof change intaxrale  HREHT2 (954) 2.256) [7.157) - (1,880) - - 1201 1467 - 9,549
Currency exchange Lk (6,546) 322 531 - N (1433 - U (715) @1 69,198

A3t December 2018 R-F-N\E
TZA=1t-H 157,731 16847 106,867 10,796 37,538 41,380 (19816)  (241224)  (62260) 5912 100,711

(Charge)credit o proft o loss. A& (30%) /& A (44.980) O30 3798 3401 (16639 8% 86 32413 726 10129 26006
Currency exchange ghih 9% (599 (229 - (157) 4] - 891 181 (281) (105)

At 31 December 2019 W_E-nE
T-F=1t-H 112,845 10947 144623 14157 20,746 QA0 (18980  (Q07920) (4836 62760 126612

The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are as RIEMIEEE R BEERREENERFEDT ¢
follows:

2018

—ZT—N\F

Deferred tax assets, net B IBEEEE 419,390 442,322
Deferred tax liabilities, net FEERIE S FFEE (292,778) (341,611)

126,612 100,711
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

24 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued) 24 FEBIBEE BB
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REEHR - AEBEE T FARBERZ ARBATIEE
unrecognised unused tax losses: B

2019 2018
—E-hF =T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT

Unused tax losses RE)RAFIEER 2,621,747 1,619,665
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax Rt i IEE B RRIE R I A E YRR AR
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. HRIOHEFRA ©
The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow: i KRR EEE 2 Em BT

2019 2018
—z—nr G
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArwT NS

31 December 2019 —ZT-hE+=—A=1+—8H - 9,897
31 December 2020 —TTE-ZEFE4+-A=+—H - 24,369
31 December 2021 —TE-—F+=-A=+—H 4,775 19,381
31 December 2022 T F+=-A=+—H 1,317 1,317
31 December 2023 —Em-—=FE+-A=+—f _ _
31 December 2024 —ZE-NF+-A=+—H 2,523 -
No expiry date 2 = m A B 2,613,132 1,564,701
2,621,747 1,619,665
25 Finance lease receivables 25 FiEHERWFIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREFTT
Finance lease receivables due from customers EW R F R AT E EI B 49,432 53,466
Less: Finance lease receivables due within B M FEREISORmERE
1 year FEUS FRIA (26,084) (24,958)
Non-current finance lease receivables IETERNE R E EIIE 23,348 28,508
Certain of the Group’s equipment is leased out under finance leases. Al AEFEETREREREHRELM - FAEHAENUA
the leases are denominated in RMB. The terms of finance leases entered REE - i EHEFH AIELF -

into ranged from 3 to 5 years.



25 Finance lease receivables (Continued)

BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE
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25 REHEERFEG

Minimum lease receivables
B S EWRE

2019 2018
=E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT

Within 1 year 1R 26,870 25,848
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB FEDR2F 23,518 28,706
Less: unearned finance income B ARBREET AU A (956) (1,088)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable HEMAEREWEIBIRE 49,432 53,466

Present value of minimum
lease receivables
BEEEEWRFIERE

2019 2018

S ed =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEnT NS

Within 1 year 1FER 26,084 24,958

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BiB1FBDR2F 23,348 28,508

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable KA EEIIEIRE 49,432 53,466
The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for HEMFTHEERERABAEE  BRAREERE
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is H o pIEFERF R R AH5.26%( =T —\F :
approximately 5.26% (2018: 5.38%) per annum. 5.38%) °
Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the leased storage BhE T S FEWGRIB AR AT L AT SR (EHEIR ©
equipment. The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the collateral in NE B NS EAT AW £ L8 & SR 1R 1
the absence of default by the leasee. an °

Please refer to Note 3 for the loss allowance of finance lease receivables. EHEREHERKNFEMEEEE - B3

203



204 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

26 Long-term receivables 26 REIE S EWIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Long term receivable due from customers RN P Y HAE W ROE 502,744 554,161
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year W TFEREI R R UG E (239,513) (131,926)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year 1F & B AR REREGRIA 263,231 422,235
The amount is expected to be received as follows: IETEEARA LA T RS R YRR
Within 1 year 1R 247,499 135,730
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BIBIFEDR2F 102,204 210,548
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BIB2F B DS 167,230 214,110
Less: unearned finance income B AR BRER AU (14,189) (6,227)
502,744 554,161
Note: The balance represents long-term receivables from customers arising from Mz : ZERERSERHEEMEKRE PO RBEKR
sales of goods. The amount is interest free, unsecured and repayable in 2 He ZREARE - EIEWRER2ESFRNE
to 5 years. Deemed interest income of RMB7,275,165 calculated based B RIFRERAEEFHENFEKAARE
on effective interest method was recognised during the current year (2018: 7,275,1657C( —F— \F : AR¥2,609,3537C) AR
RMB2,609,353). FENER -
As at 31 December 2019, the Company provided loss allowance with the RIZB-NAF+ZR=+—H AATRKIPEK
amount of RMB62,217,000 (31 December 2018: RMB63,494,000) for the FIEHEEE R A REEE62,217,0007T( —Z— N\F

long-term receivables. +=A=+—8 : AR¥63,494,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

27 Contract related assets/Contract liabilities 27 ERMEBEE SRAR

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBETTT

Contract related assets SEEBREE
Customer-related assets, non-current — nomination fee . MEEIEREEE —IRE & - 35,410
Customer-related assets, current — right of exchange BEMHBRENE E — ik
(R&D sales) (WEEsHE) 30,457 -
Contract liabilities ERAE
Contract liabilities, current — advances from customers (@) B & R & E —ZF £ 3 () 1,691,213 1,390,874
Contract liabilities, current — R&D reimbursements REBAERBE-BPER
from customers wHE 8,122 -
1,699,335 1,390,874
Contract liabilities, non-current — R&D reimbursements  3EREISRAE — TP W3
from customers wHE - 39,790
(a): Advances from customers are mainly from coal mining machinery group for @: BFARETERETFHEERAEREEMAER -
non-cancelable contracts, and normally would be recognized as revenue —MBRZ&12EARNERRBEN - RZE—-NF
in next 12 months and RMB131,063,000 (2018: RMB30,430,000) in the + A=+ —B®EH ARK131,063,0007T(=F

balance on 31 December 2019 is carried forward from 2018. —\4E : AR30,430,0007T) A E — T — )\ £k o
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28 Loans receivable from associates and a joint 28 EWBENTR—HeELEER
venture

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Loans receivable from an associate (Note a) e — B L A R B (Fiita) 64,000 64,000
Loans receivable from a joint venture (Note b, ¢) ER—REELErEER(MIEED - o) 16,500 19,750
80,500 83,750
Loss allowance (Note d) B (T sEd) (64,000) (64,000)
16,500 19,750
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: REMEWDTAOT -
Current portion I 10,000 9,750
Non-current portion FERENEL S 6,500 10,000
16,500 19,750
Note (a): The balance represented loans receivable from an associate, Heilongjiang Fiat(e) : % AL BR TR FEUES & A R RE L S0 s R IE A
Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd., which was unsecured and RARMER  ZEXEERR - WIRERE
repayable on demand. The Group provided 100% impairment for the iE o AEEB T — \FLEHRIEH100%m(E ©
balance in 2018.
Note (b): The amount of RMB10,000,000 will be repaid on 30 June 2020, and the o) R _E_FEFNAZFTHEEZEARE
amount of RMB6,500,000 will be repaid on 30 November 2022. 10,000,000t KRR —E=_FF+—HA=1+HE

& AR #6,500,0007T °

Note (c): The balance is unsecured, carrying interest rate of 2.08% — 2.16% per MIEE(C) : "RAEBRMERIEIR - IR F2.08%E2.16%5T 8 ©
annum.
Note (d): Please refer to Note 3 for loss allowance. MizE() - BRAEEREE - BLEMES -
29 Inventories 29 78

2019 2018
Sl ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
WPl AR%TT

Raw materials and consumables A K FE 1,068,750 1,411,969
Work in progress H A8 560,349 679,219
Finished goods EXm 2,174,045 2,018,100

3,803,144 4,109,288
Inventory provision FERE (171,445) (148,444)

3,631,699 3,960,844
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29 FE )

2019
e

RMB’000
AR®T T

At 31 December 2018 W=_ZE—-N\F+=-—A=+—8H 148,444
Additional provision in the year FNFBINEE 38,248
Write off provision TS B (15,364)
Currency exchange B R 117
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+_A=+—H 171,445
30 Trade and other receivables 30 EZRHMEWRIIE

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZT—-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade receivables 2l ERE 5,252,011 5,760,750
Less: loss allowance B SRR (612,367) (853,294)
4,639,644 4,907,456

Prepayments to suppliers A e TR A 372,396 507,566
Deposits HE 70,054 24,197
Other tax recoverable HAth AT U [B] Fi 18 601,272 880,090
Receivable from disposal of an associate (Note 21) & — Bk 4% A =) e Y k1 (Ffg3T21) 64,057 -
Staff advances BE 17,296 7,363
Others Hib 185,464 97,493
Less: loss allowance L ERRME (113,986) (97,168)
1,196,553 1,419,541

Total trade and other receivables B NEMmEKRIBASET 5,836,197 6,326,997
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30 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 30 E3RHEMEWRIES
The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables net of loss LTASREMARZEZEAR27NE S EKGIE
allowance presented based on the invoice date at the end of each MR EEREENRE DT

reporting period:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT

Within 180 days 180K~ 3,837,670 4,255,933
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBiA180KE1FR 589,284 351,338
Over 1 year but within 2 years BiE1FE2FR 177,330 228,364
Over 2 years within 3 years B2 EIF A 35,340 71,821
4,639,644 4,907,456
The trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies, are DSNEAENE S REMEKRZTBEBR - —hE
expressed in RMB as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as T+ A=+ BER-Z—\FF+_A=F+—HUA
follows: RESRIOT :

2019 2018
—E-NF “T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

EUR BT 795,054 809,741
Usb ES 323,806 527,588
INR ENEELL 127,090 156,762
BRL EHEDH 72,336 79,310
MXI BEIHER 20,190 11,070
JPY H 5,313 6,313
ZAF FAIERI R 8,456 5,369
RUB RESER 6,949 2,828
CAD pilibv - 504
Others Ht 14 47

1,359,208 1,599,632
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30 EFREMEWRE )
B 5 I A M SRR A0 B 1B R

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Opening balance FEERR 950,462 1,015,331
Reversed during the year F R (161,873) (58,0006)
Write off i 3 (55,239) (3,724)
Currency exchange Bl H (6,997) (3,139)
Closing balance FEREERR 726,353 950,462

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had litigations against overdue
customers with trade receivable balances of RMB121,956,000. Among
those litigations, for trade receivable balance of RMB32,801,000 had
been reached settlement. Litigations relating to trade receivable of
RMB50,271,000 were on-going. Litigations relating to receivable of

RMB38,884,000 were terminated.

31 Cash and cash equivalents/bank deposits

PR -
121,956,0007C ° 3%

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—8 AEEHHAHE
EHBESRRFEBELEHBRAARE
LHAT - BHRRFIALE
A ARME32,801,0000 2 MER - B Z RGBS
A AR50,271,000 7T 8 57 A IEFE AR Ak IEFE AT
F oo EULEUIE B A R #538,884,000 TR R AA D 42 1E
AT o

3N RERALSEEY RITEFEN

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents RERBRESLEEY
Cash Be 283 358
Bank deposits with original maturity within REEBEA=(EAATH
three months or less RITE 3,863,152 2,745,680
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 3,863,435 2,746,038
Bank deposits RITHER
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRRITIE X 826,871 853,890
Bank deposits with original maturity over FREHAHA=(EA A LA
three months RITE 31,270 30,590
858,141 884,480

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which ranged from 1.55% to 2.94% per annum as at 31 December 2019

(2018: 0.20% to 3.26% per annum).

£ R0 20%E3.26%) °

IR TE AR FIRIT AR T fE =
RRHHORES ARSI EARBEE - BK
PRI ERIEMISAETBE RZE—hF+=
A=+—H SFENT155%Z2.94%(=F—N
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32 Trade and other payables

32 ESNRHMEMSTE

2019 2018
—E-hF =T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT

Notes payable (Note a) FE IR (M 5Ea) 1,621,931 1,882,103
Trade payable (Note a) B 5 FEf 308 (fifita) 4,733,324 4,988,510
6,355,255 6,870,613
Salary and bonus payables ERNIERZES 525,880 612,802
Deposits (Note b) HEA(EED) 60,498 82,134
Deferred income to be recognised
within one year (Note c) —FNTERAELEM A (FisEce) = 5,942
Interest payable FES R 2 15,665 11,719
Other taxes payable HAb e TIE 468,757 222,410
Accruals and other payables (Note d) TEIR M 0 FE A< 517 (P 7Ed) 579,484 324,930
8,005,539 8,130,550

Notes:

@

BIsE
The following is the ageing analysis of notes payable and trade payables @ UTARSRERRREZAHIINENEZER
presented based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period: B SR EIBERR DT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARETT
Within 1 year 1A 6,185,284 6,576,168
Over 1 year HBB1F 169,971 294,445
6,355,255 6,870,613
Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and b) FIEEHEEREAKEER R RGNS o
other services.
Deferred income to be recognised within one year represents the government © —FABRRELEWAERNEE®RS THEREEFT
subsidies received by the Group towards certain research projects. The U ER B BT A B © sZ sk B AR R IE WA BN AE
amount was treated as deferred income and transferred to profit or loss over BEMFAFHNERZER -
the useful lives of the relevant assets.
Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of M FERERREMECGZEXZEEARKEDE @ BE

property, plant and equipment, rental payables, sales rebate and payables for
other services.

RAEIREAHE - AR S - 6 B0 R AR
FpORE (308 -
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33 B

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT

Non-current: JEBNER
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note a, d, e) —RITIEE —-BEM(KisFa - d - e) 1,142,881 1,177,097
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —IRITIEE —EIKH 900,000 816,000
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings W SERNERE EMBNERE (301,000) (144,855)
1,741,881 1,848,242

Current: BNER -
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note b, ¢, d, e) —RITIEE - BEB (I c~de) 999,167 874,730
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —IRITIEE —EIKH 95,439 -
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings n o SERNARE BRI BIEAZE 301,000 144,855
1,395,606 1,019,585
Total borrowings EEBEE 3,137,487 2,867,827
Secured (Note) BER () 2,142,048 2,051,827
Unsecured A3 4R 995,439 816,000
3,137,487 2,867,827
Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 530,439 886,000
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 2,607,048 1,981,827
3,137,487 2,867,827
Notes: I3E
@ The balance of bank borrowings amounting to RMB20,000,000 (2018: @ RZT-NF+ZA=+—0 RITBELEHAR

RMB6,000,000) was secured by the pledged bank deposits as at 31

#20,000,0007T(=Z— \4F : AR¥6,000,0007T) F

211

December 2019; AR TIF AEHIA
RZZTE—AF+-A=+—8  STESLEHEH
AR #45,000,0007C (= ZF— \F : AR %84,000,000
TR THE AR DE - BE RS EEREER
s

(b)  The balance of bank borrowings totally amounting to RMB45,000,000 (2018: (b)
RMB84,000,000) were secured by the pledge of the land use rights and
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2019;

RZT—hFE+_A=+—8 ROIEEARE
120,000,0007t(ZZF—N\F : T) A B HEKFIEE
A o

(©  The bank borrowings of RMB120,000,000 (2018: Nil) was secured by the ©
trade receivables as at 31 December 2019.



212

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

33 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

The balance of RMB1,957,048,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil)
mainly represented:

SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (“SEG”) entered into a facility agreement
of EUR 300 million with the lenders, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore
Branch acted as mandated lead arranger and bookrunner. The Group has
drawn down two loans under the above mentioned facility agreement:

()  EUR 143,674,000 (equivalent to RMB1,122,881,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum, and is repayable from July
2019 to January 2023.

(i) EUR 106,732,000 (equivalent to RMB834,167,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan
and is repayable finally in January 2023.

Both of the loans are guaranteed by the Company and the letter of credit issued
by the Company, SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. and the letter
of credit issued by the Company, EUR 598 million (equivalent to RMB4,670
million), New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG, and are
secured, inter alia, by one or more of the following:

(@ Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding the bank account held with Bank of China Stuttgart in
connection with the Existing Guarantee for the exclusive purpose of
providing cash collateral in respect of that Existing Guarantee, security
transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG Automotive Germany
GmbH;

(o)  Share of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda.,
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC;

(c)  Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kift.;

(d)  The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.;

33 B8w@m

BeE - ()

V)

RZZE-AFE+_A=Z+—B  HBARE
1,957,048,000C( = —N\F : T)EE A

SEG Automotive Germany GmbH([ SEG |) B2 X A FT 32300
BEBRITHRERZE  EPEERRITHMESTT
VEAREEBRRHETREREEEA - AEBERE
LA R RN EEK

() 143,674,000 8 7t (48 & 7 A R #1,122,881,000
JT) » BB EMN R AEuribor+2.40% AR —ZF
—NWE+RAE-_T-_=F—FHREE -

(i) 106,732,000 B 7T ( 18 & R A R % 834,167,000
JL) + BBREFIE AEuribor+2.40% - AREFE
BNERERITN_T-_=F—HEE& -

EFHARAR R AR B AERGH(FR)ER
A A E /{5 AR A K A BINew Neckar Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KGH B £ %8 /598 8 B BT (HHE
MARE46708 BT ) Bfz AARIEER - ik (KA
BIE) AT —IB S I TIRIF

@ ZHRERENEE S RRBERFIENREER
JEUERIE - SRR A AR EE IR - EEAT
BRITIEF (BREER)MIRITIRE @ ETEE
HEBERBAETEBTHEMESTHRIT
RE - HEMRZREEFRREERSETFR -
BLSEG Automotive Germany GmbHEY i AT 8)E
EETRAL IR IR

b EFTHEBARRND(RERSEDGHEAER
/&) ~ Starters E-Components Generators Automotive
Hungary Kft. « REAGTERATFRIEEFR AR -
RERABAPATERAF - RER/AEILE
BRAT

(c)  Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary
Kit. BVERTTAR P - REF R EULRRIE (B 5 e UK
THBRIN) 5

@ ZRBESEABITARIRORITELELN
EERENNE SRR
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

33 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

®

Security agreement relating to bank accounts and insurance and intra-group
receivables of SEG Automotive North America LLC.

As at 31 December 2019, the secured assets in SEG Group were as following:

33 B8®m

st - (8%)

0 HERBRAFEILZERDFRITHRS RRERIAK
KEREESAE BRI

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H SEGEEMNFEREE

BT -
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cash and cash equivalents REREEEEY 223,580
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAREMGRIEA 1,753,956
Property, plant and equipment bE N 171,225
Investment in subsidiaries RHTE R RRIIRE 1,606,790
Intercompany loan NARIBER 126,724
Others HAith 787,745
4,670,020

The balance of RMB1,961,827,000 as at 31 December 2018, which was
repaid in 2019, mainly represented:

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings SARL, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a facility agreement of EUR 300 million with the lenders, of which
Bank Of China Limited, Luxembourg Branch and Bank Of China Limited,
Frankfurt Branch acted as mandated lead arrangers and bookrunners.
The Group has drawn down two loans under the above mentioned facility
agreement:

()  EUR 150,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,177,097,000), with the effective
interest rate of 2.6% per annum, and is repayable from July 2019 to
January 2023.

(i)~ EUR 100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB784,730,000), with the effective
interest rate of 2.5% per annum, and is repayable in January 2021.

Both of term loan and the facility loan are guaranteed by the Company and
the letter of credit issued by the Company, EUR 734 million (equivalent
to RMB5,761 million), and are secured, inter alia, by one or more of the
following:

(@)  Share of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Germany GmbH, SEG
Automotive Components Brazil Ltda., Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A.
de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U, SEG Automotive North America
LLC and SEG Automative Products (China) Co., Ltd.);

(b)  First priority security over the assets, including all land and leaseholds,
plant, equipment, intellectual property rights, receivables, accounts and
other contract rights of certain subsidiaries. The legal procedures of the
assets to be secured is still under processing;

H MR-E-NE+_A=+—HNEHARE
1,961,827,0007CE R —Z— NEFEE - TBEIE

7K S [ Bt B /2 BISMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings
SARLEEFGRARTSZ300E BEUTH A Hha% -
BIERITAR (D AR R BIERED 1T RPBERITRGN A
BRARER B TTIEABRRERRHITRESE
BA - AEBEERE LR E RERIMEER

() 150,000,000 BX 7T ( #HE P A R #1,177,097,000
TL)  BEEMEKRE26%  BR_ZT—h&+t
REZZT-=F—FAHHEE-

(i) 100,000,000 B JT (#2& M A K ¥ 784,730,000
L) BEREMRE25% AR _T-—F—
AEE -

RHERRMEETGHARTRARFHADHE
RIABEETT(HHERARKS 7618 BT HEMMN
TEHEMR - Joeh (B @48 AT — TR 2 TRET TR -

@ & THIE2A T (SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
RERABEHHEAEAER DA - Starters
E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft. + 2
BIRAERAFHEARAT - REKTER
WFBRAR REBABILEGRARIRER
BB (RE)BRATDRD

b HESMBRARAENBLERE  BRIEME
THREE LM BE - RE - ABER R’
WriE - BRB REMA RERN - EREENZE
TERRFADEETT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE
33 Borrowings (Continued) 33
Notes: (Continued)
f  (Continued)
() Assignment and subordination of any shareholder loan made to the SMG
Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings SARL and the SEG Automotive Germany

GmbH.

As at 31 December 2018, the secured assets in SEG Group were as following:

B8 @)

Wizt : (4)

h (&

(0 KRB MSMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings SARL

X2 SEG Automotive Germany GmbH{E i FOERIAXER &K ©

WZE-\E+ZA=+—H  SEGEEMIEERHN
BEWMT

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 486,430
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EA W RIE 1,993,815
Inventories e 845,631
Property, plant and equipment L E 552,953
Investment in subsidiaries RIBRERIRE 1,254,611
Intercompany loan NEIEER 407,390
Others Hth 219,725
5,760,555

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s debt ratio does not meet the
requirement of certain covenant included in the above mentioned facility
agreement. In 2019, the Company entered into an amendment to the facility
agreement which modified the definition of the debt ratio. According to the
amendment, the requirement of the loan covenant has been met.

REZE-N\F+-A=+—H FAEBEHLEREF
BLRERRE TRENRE - R-T—AF AR
AEI B EBRERT NABRT BB L RN ER - RIEZ
BRIA - EEERZHENEL -

At 31 December At 31 December

2018
RZZE—NF
=+—8 +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETT

Carrying amount repayable: AR THIERE SR REE
Within one year —FR 1,395,606 1,019,585
More than one year, but not exceeding two years iR —FE BB 731,288 730,000
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BRI (E T BB AL 1,010,593 1,118,242
3,137,487 2,867,827
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities B ORBABEE TSR 1,395,606 1,019,585
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBBEE TN REE 1,741,881 1,848,242
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REMEIRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
33 Borrowings (Continued) 33 BE )
Notes: (Continued) MisE ()
() (Continued) O (&
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the AEEEEREBEN THINERHE

following currencies:

At 31 December At 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZB—h&F RZE—N\F
+t=RA=+—-H +=—A=+—~

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBFIT
RMB AR 1,180,439 906,000
EUR BT 1,957,048 1,961,827
3,137,487 2,867,827
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEBBENERME(ESKERFX)SHED
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: N

At 31 December At 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—hF RZZ—N\F
+=B=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

Effective interest rate per annum BERER R
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE 3.40%-4.56% 4.10%-5.00%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 1.89%-4.75% 2.31%-4.75%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
34 Provisions 34 815
Onerous Restructuring
Warranty Contract provision Total
®R1& BEaaRE EARE ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETRT ARBTT ARET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—/\F—H—H 113,217 - - 113,217
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 45) U BE BT B A B (BT aE45) 78,818 478,187 637,057 1,194,062
Additional provision in the year FEBINEE 81,904 112,247 - 194,151
Reversal/utilisation of provision BEE B AR (107,932) (222,028) (209,463) (539,423)
Currency Exchange B 473 2,206 2,623 5,302
At 31 December 2018 RZZ2—N\F+=A
=+—H 166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309
Current portion BIEREE 166,480 210,118 361,901 738,499
Non-current portion JERNHAEL > - 160,494 68,316 228,810
166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—hF—A—H 166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309
Additional provision in the year FREBIMNEE 78,173 235,496 19,339 333,008
Reversal/utilisation of provision B AR E (88,295) (188,976) (276,405) (553,676)
Currency exchange Bl H (238) (1,120) (4,402) (5,760)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 156,120 416,012 168,749 740,881
Current portion BIEREE 156,120 242,075 144,946 543,141
Non-current portion JEBNHAEL > - 173,937 23,803 197,740
156,120 416,012 168,749 740,881

The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate of
the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers (who
purchased auto parts), based on prior experience relating to defective
products claims.

REBREREEBRBATRAREERFRAM
Mg HAKERABETETHHNEPET
REHA B BENREM

Onerous contract provision represents management’s best estimate of the BRI ERBEREEEEREEEARMNIBARE -
expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating to the YIBHRA RIEE R &EHET -
contract.

Restructuring provision represents the costs relating to the restructuring
relating to the spin-off of SEG from the former group.

BHRBEIEBHSEGE AT ERB D EAEKA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

35 Transfers of financial assets 3B TREESE

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing
companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated
to be used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing
companies and received the payments from leasing companies;

ii) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof
supports to the end-user customers;

iy~ the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts
due by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the
end user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment
leasing companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-users of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-
users of the equipment and proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies are recorded as financing arrangements.

During the year, the Group has received approximately RMB257,329,000
from the equipment leasing companies (2018: RMB124,445,000). The
transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to the
extent of the settlement by the ultimate end users of the equipment.

RABEETRERE R R M &5m AP 2 R] s
=il

) AKERRBEEERRHEREXRGEER
um AP ER) RAEE R RUER R

iy WREMREAFTHERBIZETFRIEHAFE

i) A A P LARZ B R BR Y 73 SAE R [A1RR 7R
ERFIER  AEBERATENKRAPEN
HERRMARGNHEDH -

%Fx%mﬁg REE LR m AP HAREET
EE%%FEfAW%ﬁE$ﬁ£EW H B
RENLHAP2HBEZSHERE  BAR

ﬁﬁ&“T%HMMﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁ

FR - AEEERBEHERAABROARE
257,329,000 7t ( =& — J\ 4 - }\Eﬁ%124445 000
T0) o BRERMBAEMEEME CERESE
WsE KA B EE D -

36 Employee benefit obligations 36 EERMNESE

Defined benefit pension plan (a) TEFEE TR R EFE@)
Long-term super profit incentive scheme (b) R AT ERE 75 % ()
Other employee benefit provisions HAhiE BEF e

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFT

165,423 123,813
49,950 -
163,057 157,090

378,430 280,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
36 EERANET®
(@) EREREMENREETE

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on January 1, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

REBRKNEEN BRI E B ENE 8 R ERR
MEHE] o ERARA B RS HFRARIR
ERGHARBEEINES o

TRERRE MRARRERRIEZAINBERER
AT o ZEHVEEBRERR(FIMERSE
b FEIREI AR KR EARTISER) o

e

SEG VORSORGE &t # iR &k & 5T %/ ( A7 Bosch
VORSORGEZTEN R =TT F—A—B#E -
BUEBEHRK(BIER S )R ERF - SEG
VORSORGEET 2| AN BBRK S E B IR — 5
B o INBRARESESHNEEBEUERTEA
BNEATENRASETIRE - REBH
AN BEREEHERSMARKSESHNE
EEZEREHRERF LR - BHMIERF LR
TS RERERET - BASHERER
KEESRRIBLI - TBPIEXE BE =]
Bosch VORSORGE&TE! o BEHA 57 /8BRS 8 J15K
BHEERIONBRAMNE @ BEBELHHRET
FERHETHETEHE - RERKHETE
BORIR ol B R - FTBRER BB A LA — IR IS
;o ORRENRERFFEH AR -

ENEE

ENE 8RR EF 8 AR EMREBF AR B2
H—RESIER - HEBERRRARMAIE
EL5F - BHRARERIKLLEARRE IR
BEEAZREZEHHNI5EHH - Wi E e
FAEAR] & iR sk AR AR - SUEE F I S & (K
RIEFMER - M—RUENH SR AT R
BEERZRZEHH30EHH - 50
SHREREANE - AMBRREFEN 2
RIREFN21BHM - &85 LR —B8HE
EL - R~ ANANFRA L RRTERNE
BEREMSWEEN LR
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is

36 EEBFEXw®
(@ TERMEREEE @

ERENETREFENERNTRMAZY)

presented in the following table:

Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of funded of unfunded requirement/
of plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net Value
REHKER/
HEEEL HRER FHRER BELR
ATE RE B % #E
At1 January 2018 RZE-\§-A—H - - - - -
Current Period: ZRHAR - 8,216 (67,064) 269 - (58,579)
Current service cost RERASHA - (51,400) 62) - (51,462)
Interest expense/(income) FMERZ/ (BAN) 11,439 (15,664) (16) - (4,241)
Past service cost and gains and BERBAAUR
losses on settlements HEENRREE (3,223 - 347 - (2,876)
Remeasurements: EEE (29,366) (32,154) (135) - (61,655)
Return on plan assets, excluding HEBEQR(TEHE
amounts included in interestincome ~ EFAFIBIMAZ £58) - - - - -
Loss from change in demographic BAOBRRESEL
assumptions BE - (1527) - - (1527)
Loss from change in financial B BREEZSEL L
assumptions BE - (33,660) (15) - (33,675)
Experience gains e - 3,033 (120) - 2913
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BELREH(TRE
amounts included in interest expense ST AFISFX 24 HE) (29,366) - - - (29,366)
Currency translation differences BRBEER 3,005 (4,436) (5 - (1436)
Contributions: s 9,242 - - - 9,242
Employers Ex 9,242 - - - 9,242
Plan participants HEREE - - _ _ _
Payments from plans: P EREINEE - - - - -
Benefit payments VTN - _ Z _ -
Settlements e - _ _ _ _
Acquired in a business combination  AEFEAHEVE 585,892 (596,256) (1,021) - (11,385)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F+ZA=1+—H 576,989 (699,910) (892) - (123,813)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

36E§Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ)
TEEMRIKEETE
TEENEIAEFENRRINT AR5

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) @ =

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is
presented in the following table:

Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of funded of unfunded requirement/
of plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net Value
REHRER/
HEEEL HREE FHAER BELR
AVE BE RiE poh 7 HE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nF-F—-A 576,989 (699,910) (892) - (123,813)
Current Period: ZRHIR - 11,784 (66,415) (115) - (54,746)
Current service cost RERIEH A - (52,316) (94) - (52,410)
Interest expense/(income) FERZ/ (BA) 1,784 (15,066) (21) - (3.303)
Past service cost and gains and BERBRAARLEE
losses on settlements Wi RER - 967 - - %67
Remeasurements: BHEE: 91,805 (88,038) (379 - 3,388
Return on plan assets, excluding HEBENR (ARG
amounts included in interestincome S AFIEMAHISE) 91,805 - - - 91,805
Loss from change in demographic EAOBRRESELN
assumptions BE - 1,339 U - 1,332
Loss from change in financial BYBBREYELN
assumptions B - (65,312) (291) - (65,603)
Experience gains e - (24,065) (81) - (24,146)
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BEIREH(TEE
amounts included in interest expense 3t AR EHZMS5E) - - - - -
Currency translation differences ERhEEE (1,439) 828 2 - (609)
Contributions: w3 7,295 - - - 7,295
Employers Ex 7,295 - - - 72%
Plan participants HE2EE - - - - -
Payments from plans: REFHEINER (5,453 8,131 13 - 2,691
Benefit payments BRI (5,453) 8,131 13 - 2,691
Settlements Fei - - - - -
Others Hith 6,132 (6,132 3N - 37
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 687,113 (851,536) (1,000) - (165,423)
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REMEIRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —ZT—hE+-A=+—HIFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEBANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@ TEFEEAENRSETE®)
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation HEMEMS - TEEENEERIRME ] EE
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BHERNT -

At 31 December 2019
R-ZB-hAF+=-A=1+—H

Present
value of the Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation  Plan assets Other assets asset Provision
ARBTR BEERE FHEIEE HitEE ABRIAEE BH
Germany = 102,530 - (83,291) - 19,239
India 0NE 4,756 - (4,520) - 236
107,286 - (87,811) - 19,475

At 31 December 2018
R=ZE-N\F+=A=+-—H

Present
value of the Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation  Plan assets  Other assets asset Provision
ARETT BEERE EEE Hth&E AKEIEE B
Germany =B 533,161 (126,616) - - 406,545
India g 33,971 (28,235) - - 5,736

567,132 (154,851) - - 412,281
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEEANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@ TEFEEMERSETE®)
The Plan assets comprised the following components: SHEIEERENTEE ¢

As at 31 December 2019
R=TB-hFE+=-A=+—H

Germany India
=E EE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BOLLEF BALLEF
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY = =
Equity instruments AR T A 48% -
Debt instruments BEEIEA 42% -
Other Hitb 10% 100%
100% 100%
As at 31 December 2018

R=—ZE-N\FE+=-A=+-—H
Germany India
ZE EE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BOLET Epaisd &2
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEEY - 14%
Equity instruments AT A 48% -
Debt instruments EBTE 42% 86%
Other HAth 10% -

100% 100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEBANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@ TEFEEAENRSETE®)
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRENOT

As at 31 December 2019
R=Z-NF+=A=+-8

Germany India

=H EE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

B hEE BoLEE

Discount factor BRI Z= 1.00% 6.90%
Projected salaries growth rate TERISET BN I R R 3.00% 10.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRARESIERE 1.75% N/ATRE B

As at 31 December 2018
R-E—N\F+=-A=+—H

Germany India

=R EE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

AN LEF Epaid &2

Discount factor BEIR A= 2.00% 6.75%
Projected salaries growth rate TERIFT G R & 3.00% 12.00%

Projected pension growth rate TERRRSIG R 1.75% N/AZN 3 R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
36 EERFET®@)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EREEMENREEE @)

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

REENBTENERRE  22E&PH—
BB SAMEMES - WERRE A S
RE&E - FrARMER R RIRIEER &5
R F195R B BRANETE -

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor
was determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

FERF BN AR IR (CELoh B4 BRI S B AR 1
FHHOARKH BN 1R -

Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things.

For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation MESHEMS - EREEMNE(EAIRE ] B

can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BEERNT
Germany =

As at 31 December 2019
R=B-nF+=A=+—H

Change in Increase in

assumption

{R =% 12

Percentage Figures

BOLEF

Decrease in
assumption
BRELD
Percentage Figures
BOLEF

assumption
BREE

Discount factor BRI A% 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 5.2 Increase by 6.1
0.518H 2 2 T#85.2 6.1

Projected salaries growth rate ERIE B R R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.2518H 2 2 701 T#0.1

Projected pension growth rate BARKE I ER 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.2 Decrease by 1.1
0.2518H 2 2 E#1.2 T#

Life expectancy HEHEG One year N/A
_& Increase by 1.9 T

£81.9
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEBANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@ TEFEEAENRSETE®)
India HE

As at 31 December 2019
R-ZE-hE+=-A=+-—-H

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
B2 SRl BRER D
Percentage Figures  Percentage Figures
BALEF BALEF
Discount factor AL R = 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 4.0 Increase by 4.2
05fE B 75 2 T 734.0 +4.2
Projected salaries growth rate TERIEEIE K & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.5 Decrease by 1.5
0.25E B 7 FF#15 T&#1.5
Projected pension growth rate TBRR RS RE 0.25 percentage points
0.25E B 7 = =
Life expectancy ELI S One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—&F £ 7H0.2 FEA
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERIBRT
Germany =

As at 31 December 2018
RZZE-\F+A=1—H

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
BRREE (R R
Percentage Figures Percentage Figures
BOLET Epid: G
Discount factor ALIR R = 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 6.1 Increase by 7.3
0.51E &85 2 T#36.1 373
Projected salaries growth rate TERIEENE R X 0.5 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.51E &85 2 17301 T#30.1
Projected pension growth rate TBRR RS RE 0.5 percentage points
Y EERE - -
Life expectancy e One year Increase by 1.3 N/A

—fF EF#13 oy

Bt
=3
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEEANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@ TEFEEMERSETE®)
India ME

As at 31 December 2018
RZF—\F+=A=+—H

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

(EE'eE) (EEE D

Percentage Figures Percentage Figures

BOLET BOLET

Discount factor ALIR R &= 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 6.1 Increase by 7.3

0.5(EE D2 T#6.1 F#73

Projected salaries growth rate TR HIIE R X 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1

0.25E 8 2 85 F0.1 T#H0.1

Projected pension growth rate JERAER R IR R 0.25 percentage points

0.251E & 7> B4 - -

Life expectancy LT One year Increase by 1.3 N/A

—%&F £33 TEA

(b) Long-term super profit incentive scheme b) REFEFEREGE

In June 2019, the Group issued a mid to long-term super profit RZZE—NFERA  BEZZE-N\FFERRE
incentive scheme (covering 2019 till 2021) to the Group’s top and BERGOREER  FAEERAEESERT
mid-level management according to the resolution of 2018 Annual EBEBAERETRRHABIEZBM A RCRE
General Meeting. The estimated incentive to be paid is based on the ZE-NFEZEZ—F) c BEFEGRE
super net profit attributable to Owners of the Company for 2019 till A ETE TR RE S - NFE
2021 after deducting non-recurring gains and losses in accordance ZE - —FARQREE AEGEFRE (0B
with PRC Accounting Standards. The amount of RMB49,950,000 FEEMWERER)FE - REE=Z—N

were recorded as long-term employee benefits obligation for the year FHZA=+—RILFEHGRIAESENR

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). EARH49,950,0007T( =T —N\F : &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

37 Share capital

Listed A Shares

AR

Number of

share

ROHE

'000

T
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F

31 December 2019 +ZA=+-8k

“E-NE

+-A=+-H 1,489,237

37 A&

Listed H Shares
LHER

Number of

share

RHHE

’000

T

Total

@t

Number of
share
RHHE
'000

T

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARBT T

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARBT T

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARET T

1,489,237 243,234 243,234 1,732,471 1,732,411

38 Share based payments
(@ Employee Option Plan

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was
approved by shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General
Meeting of 2019, The First A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019
and The First H Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 held on 21
October 2019. In accordance with the Share Option Incentive
Scheme, the Company will grant a number of options to the qualified
participants that entitle the participants to purchase A Shares of the
Company. Under the plan, participants are granted options which only
vest if certain performance standards are met. Participation in the
plan is at the board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual
right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of
the Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options

remain exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company provided RMB1,601,000 as expenses in 2019.

38 LR RHEREINK
(a) &8 HIHEETE

BER-_Z—NF+A=-+—BETHN_Z
—NFEZRBERRERE  ZF—NFHF
—RABRERIRR ARG Z T — NFF—IXHER
FERIRR B & b SR ST ARG S 22 B B A
) o BIBRZAEFEEE - ARABEREE
BEBERETZHEEE  ZSHRERER
BEARARARKREARER - RIEZETE - &
TRES ROBREEFA B TRBIRER
FERE - BRGNS AT ETRER
T BEA A EAES S RN A2 EZET
Bl sl W BT (AT R AR FI2S

1 5B M R SR EUA R A R R LA A2 8 &
MERBRME - — KRB - BREHER12(EA B
BRI FITHE

RATRZE—NFHE ARE1,601,00070H)
X -
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e M B HRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
38 Share based payments (Continued) 38 IR AERNARE
(@) Employee Option Plan continued) (@) EBEHIEET S ()
The source of the underlying Shares of the Scheme shall be ordinary ZETEIRANRE IR AR R B EERBEE
A Shares in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the REITOARBAIR L BATIEE -
participants.
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options
BHRRE BHKRE
HARERY HRRERY
T EE HEHE FHITEE RSN E
As at 1 January m—HA—H - - - -
Granted during the year REREH 5.98 16,030,000 - -
Exercised during the year RERTTE - - - -
Forfeited during the year RERLUL - - - -
As at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 5.98 16,030,000 - -
Vested and exercisable BW+—-—A=+—H
at 31 December 2B &A 7T = = - -
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following RERBAITEMNREZHEAFUATEERHA R
expiry dates and exercise prices: 1T1RA(E -

Share options Share options

Exercise 31 December 31 December

Grant Date Expiry date price 2019 2018
REHE REHE

—E-hE ZE-NE

+=A +=A
B H ZHH TEE Sar=[E =+—H
04 November 2019  =—Z—A5F+—AMMA 19 December 2022
—E-—#%+-A+AhH 5.98 5,289,900 -
04 November 2019  =—Z—A5F+—AMMA 19 December 2023
—E-=F+=ZA+NH 5.98 5,289,900 -
04 November 2019  =—Z—A5F+—AMA 19 December 2024
—E-F+=A+NHE 5.98 5,450,200 -
Total Est 16,030,000 -
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 3.52 years

IR M AR TEE R A I A 85 T & R4 5 3.526F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E—F— N4 +=A=+—HILFE
38 LUk BEM R (s
(@) 125 8T E )
ERHBENATE

38 Share based payments (Continued)
(@ Employee Option Plan (Continued)

(i) Fair value of options granted (i)

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB0.49 per share.
The fair value at grant date is independently determined using
an adjusted form of the Black Scholes Model which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution
(where material), the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend
yield, the risk free interest rate for the term of the option and
the correlations and volatilities of the peer group companies.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31

December 2019 included:

(@) options are granted for no consideration and vest based
on Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected
companies over a three year period. Vested options are
exercisable for a period of two years after vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.98 per share

(c) grant date: 4 November 2019

(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023, 19
December 2024

(e) share price at grant date: RMBG6.05 per share

(f)  expected price volatility of the company’s shares:

30.38% First phase
5 —[&E230.38%

29.93% Second phase
% [ E229.93%

REE-Z-NEF+-_A=1+—HItEE
BEMHENE L ASNETHATEE
BB ARE0497T - RIEE B HI
DB T R4S TR M A7 H B A (Black
Scholes) R B BETF « ZEAIKASTHFR
Z& (Monte Carlo)f&#t)% - & et RAERTT
8 FH - BENFEWEEXN) - K
i B HARI AR (B AR R (0 RO TE BRE R
8 - TEHARR B e - B AR SRR
Fl& - R FIFEEE A B BB ROR

&

RBE-—F—NF+=A=t—AILFE
1R AR R RO AL A B 29

(@ HEREDZRTERERL  WREBEARF
FE R 2018 4&5%E R A R R RIFR R B AR
HFER=FHHRRE - CHREMER
B ME R AR T1TE

b) 17{EME - R AREES5.987T

© ®WEHEHH: —ZF—AF+—AWA

@ FHH:=—ZE=_=—F+=A+hAB "
“E=F+ZATNE ZZZl
#+—-/F+NA

() MERLBHHRE  SREROARE
6.057T

0 AEEROEHRERKE

40.83% Third phase
% = [&ER40.83%

(@  expected dividend yield: — Nil (0 FEHRSWES: — &
() risk-free interest rate: ) EEERFE
2.8219% Two years 2.9280% Three years 3.0197% Four years
R 2.8219% =12.9280% P943.0197%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
(based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information.

TEERE R R R T E RN £ 1 08 (IR IR
BB TFHAE)SL - WRBEARA
158 R B ({7 T8 31 R RO 18 1F 1 58

= o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

39 Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have significant non-controlling interests:

39 FFIERER

TRIRAEASHERESN A EEHR2ENEA
LS -

Place of Proportion of
establishment equity interest held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
FERERFEN PRE
RIER RARSEAL FFERER N EF R FERES
HEBARERE TEEENY BET-A=1+-HLEFE BE+t-A=t-HLFE BET-A=+-HLEFE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
bSO T )\F Wbkl — T\ Wbl — T )\F
Super Electric PRC 49.00% 49,00% 26,176 41,106 305,025 278,849
8% HE
ASIMCO Shuanghuan PRC 36.46% 36.46% 28,884 38,322 357,392 348,176
DHRER HE
ASIMCO Camshaft PRC 37.00% 37.00% 7,149 10,294 102,574 99,307
DERN LR H
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with N/A N/A 36,848 16,842 137,524 107,302
non-controlling interests TEA i
AIERERMENTEXRNE AT
99,657 106,564 902,515 833,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE
39 Non-controlling interests (Continued) 39 FFIERER ()
Super Electric 18

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFT

Current assets MEEE 685,086 682,882
Non-current assets SEMBEE 313,413 338,809
Current liabilities mENBE 298,953 372,634
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 39,842 42,922
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PiN/NETD Y S oy 354,679 327,286
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 305,025 278,849
Revenue WA 712,547 854,493
Expenses X 659,586 774,754
Profit and total comprehensive income A R EE WA BRE 52,961 79,739
Profit and total comprehensive income AN E IR SR FE MR R ) &

attributable to owners of the Company 2HEWALREE 26,785 38,633
Profit and total comprehensive income JEPE RS R S FE AR ) &

attributable to the non-controlling interests 2HEWALREE 26,176 41,106
Profit and total comprehensive income A R 2 E WA BRE 52,961 79,739
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEEFHIR SR AFEEE 64,509 90,548
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEEMIR MR (19,260) (19,274)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BB EEAIR M F R - (56,763)

Net cash inflow BERAFERE 45,249 14,511
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39 Non-controlling interests (continued) 39 FEIERER )

ASIMCO Shuanghuan DRI IR
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Current assets MENEE 691,745 664,119
Non-current assets IEMENEE 558,798 561,286
Current liabilities mENaE 171,594 191,862
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 106,460 86,542
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN e 615,097 598,825
Non-controlling interests FEERR R RS 357,392 348,176
Revenue WA 620,185 674,630
Expenses R 540,754 578,093
Profit and total comprehensive income A & 2R A LB 79,431 96,537
Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company AARERE(EF L2 ERALERE 50,547 58,217
Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests JEPE RS RE LS FE (R M R 2 R A 4858 28,884 38,322
Profit and total comprehensive income R R 2R A LB EE 79,431 96,539
Net cash inflow from operating activities RESEEHIR SR AERE 104,846 155,150
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEBHRE SR RE (109,799) (143,547
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEEMIR SR FRE (53,340) (50,755)
Net cash outflow Re i FaE (58,293) (39,152)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+-A=+—HILLFE

39 Non-controlling interests (Continued) 39 FFIERER ()
ASIMCO Camshaft oo TR b

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFT

Current assets mENEE 157,515 140,215
Non-current assets SEMBEE 251,349 245137
Current liabilities mENBE 117,312 100,599
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 14,326 16,355
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN AR R RS 174,652 169,091
Non-controlling interests FEPERRRE RS 102,574 99,307
Revenue WA 199,163 216,974
Expense X 178,221 189,151
Profit and total comprehensive income A R EE WA BRE 20,942 27,823
Profit and total comprehensive income AN E IR SR FE MR R ) &

attributable to owners of the Company 2HEWALREE 13,193 17,529
Profit and total comprehensive income JEPE RS R S FE AR ) &

attributable to the non-controlling interests 2HEWALREE 7,749 10,294
Profit and total comprehensive income A R 2 E WA BRE 20,942 27,823
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEEFHIR SR AFEEE 14,169 19,094
Net cash outflow from investing activities REETHNR S RHFRE (11,420) (4,808)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEFMNIRS R FRE (2,641) (20,122)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WERACRE)FE 108 (5,836)

40 Capital commitments 40 EIEKIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of BRTAMBRIELR A IS RERHR
property, plant and equipment contracted BENEBYEDE -
for not provided in the consolidated financial BE M ERENE AT
statements 350,349 138,108
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE
41 Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that
the Group is subject to the control of the PRC government. In accordance
with IAS 24, entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“PRC government related entities”) are
regarded as related parties of the Group. Due to the complex ownership
structure, the PRC government may hold indirect interests in many
companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when combined
with other indirect interests, be controlling interests which may not be
known to the Group.

(@ The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related
entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

Sales of finished goods HEEKT
Purchase of raw materials e R R

N BEHAERS

RRABESERR - AR BIRAIEST7 AF EBF
Jﬁéléé i AN 55 B 5 rh BB 42 ) - AR
% AHAERIE2455% - X P BIBUTIRS - KRS

FENER ([ PEBAERE E‘%?LJ)?&%EZ%K%
@m% By o ENEMOBEREE  PEBFA
RERRAFEMERD - B THERAETHE
HEHMMRERS G - JHRBARERA
PRI RS

@ AEEMIEEREZL

AEBEHEZEEREREG - ERESISE
%%mgﬁﬂﬁﬁélééﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁ
AR ZERSWFFBHT

2019 2018
—z—ne JESIE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArrmT NS
2,013 2,013

- 14

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan
SASAC related entities are set as follow:

Amount due to Henan SASAC related entities

i ANPEIIR e = e 1=K

BRABARERMIEERERARERY
RMEBEGBHRFITHEHIOT

2019 2018

=t B —= N\

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF ARMF T

0 7 4,598

The amount due to Henan SASAC which was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The amounts due from Henan SASAC
related entities were from trade sales or purchases.

FERARE B AR FUAREERR - 28 NA
RERER - BT E B EZHEERNM
BRIREGREE S HERIRE
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41 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group and other PRC government related

entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits, and
other general banking facilities and the relevant interest income
earned and expenses incurred during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are transacted with entities owned/controlled by the
PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures

~ e R AR MY EE

—NAFTZRA=t—RLEFE

M BEBAERS @)

(b)

AEBEABAERFREER

B EXFE A RmERERARERETNE
AREZGI REERBE_Z-NER-F
—N\F+Z A=+ —RULFEEELBHERA
HRERETHIRSERRBEX - HENE
ECENFRE-N\FT A=t Et
FREOARDEMIAE - WERE - KED
T~ Bfh— &ﬁﬁﬂﬁu&aﬁﬂmﬁﬂ
BWARBEERIGY & ET B T
B/ ERNERETHRS

ARREFRR  ZFETERAEEERE
TTHIRR %E$EIWE%%W BiIEHREE -
WIZ— R AR AT RTSL - MASEEAETT
HER 5 W B AN B % F B R T ERE
MEZHEARKTETE - ARETHEMEE
NYRHRBBR AR - UREERERME
BR - 2 FHAZIR T KB E BORI T EURN R
SHFEEBBTHEBEER -

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

Sales of goods and services SHE B KRS
Associates il /NG| 36,867 51,317
Joint ventures BETE 345 1,673
37,212 52,990
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETTT

Purchase of goods and services HiEEm kRS
Associates il /NG| 153,345 107,589
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=—Z—NEF+-_A=+—HIFE

41 Related party transactions (Continued)

N BEHRAERS @

() The group and its associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates
and joint ventures at the end of each Reporting Period:

() AEBEREE =

(&)

RERERR - AEEEEBPENFREE

FRUTREERR

AINBELR

M

Zl
>

2019 2018
ot —ZT—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Amounts due from: JEMCTRH &5 5/IA
Associates /NG 8,411 8,943
Joint Ventures BRLY = 24
8,411 9,184
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFIT

Amounts due to: BRI T EI &5 F0E
Associates /NG 74,146 58,553
Joint Ventures SETE 7,270 316
81,416 58,869
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Loans to: [ T3 &FREER

Joint Ventures BEE 16,500 19,750

All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are

from trade sales and purchases.

P YR B2 AR R & 2 ENRIEY

KEEDIHERRE -
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41 Related party transactions (Continued)
(d) Remuneration of key management personne

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

M BEBAERS @)

o F2EEAEME

WITEEREMTIEERABHMESMT

2019 2018
—z—ns I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AreT EENUSEE

Short-term benefits PSEEE 25,304 17,284
Post-employment benefits BRIREF 628 797
Share options A AR A 135 -

26,067 18,081

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

42 Contingent liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in
payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed
notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable at the end of each reporting
period is as follows:

ITEERASHEEFRTRENRITEERE
RREREALR - TRERABNMEIRE
BAFKRETILSBHETE °

42 HAREE

RAFE - AEEUSERKEERE TRRER
WA NEEEHBRENE S REMBERNKIE -
RRABEERE  ARFIEEENRKERHEE
RIFE P ERITE L RIRHIER - MR B EME
WEERHRBRTA - NEFREBRER - AEEA R
RIGZESE R FERNBRE R M ARENR
REBIAT :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T

Outstanding endorsed notes receivable BERENMAREEESE
with recourse JEUNE B 1,544,542 824,706

These endorsed and derecognised notes receivable have a maximum
maturity of 1 year, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable, representing the Group’s
maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honour their notes and
guarantees, amounted to RMB1,544,542,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB824,706,000).

=113

%EHE R ERNERRERERNSEERIRS
—F RZF-NAF+-A=+—R0 %F5F
RRIEERNEBERERERASRBE/AR
#1,544,542,0007C(—ZZF — \F « AR #824,706,000
7o) WEITRITRBELRERERER - AIRE
AEENHZ=EERRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—FT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

43 Redemption liabilities 43 BEEE

During the acquisition of SEG, the Group and the sellers, including China
Renaissance Capital Investment Inc., (“CRCI”) and Chizhou Zhongan
Zhaoshang Equity Investment LLP (Limited Partnership) (“Zhongan
Zhaoshang”) set up limited partnership to acquire 100% of SEG. The
Group and the sellers hold 69.11% and 30.89% equity interests of the
partnership, respectively. In the meantime, the Group granted the sellers
a put option to sell their 30.89% interests in the partnership (the “Option
Interest”) to the Group at the highest amount using 3 different calculation
method, including:

—  Scenario a) the aggregate capital contributions made by the sellers
to the Partnership, plus an interest at the rate of 10% per annum
(compounded annually) on sellers’ each capital contributions
calculated on a daily basis for period from the date of such capital
contribution to the date when the sellers issue a notice to the Group
to exercise the put option (“Put Option Notice”), minus the amount of
cash and the value of securities which have been distributed to the
sellers on or before the date of the Put Option Notice;

—  Scenario b) the fair market value of the Option Interest;

—  Scenario c) the value of the Option Interest calculated pursuant to the
formula defined in the agreement.

As at 31 December 2019, the scenario a) represent the highest amount of
3 different scenarios. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities were recorded
at the aggregate capital contributions made by the sellers plus an interest
at the rate of 10% per annum (compound annually) for CRCI and 10% per
annum for Zhongan Zhaoshang.

The put option granted to CRCI with the principle amount of
RMB468,929,000 and interest payable amount of RMB98,475,000 (31
December 2018: RMB47,084,000) is exercisable by sellers at any time
within the period commencing from the third anniversary of the closing
date. The sellers can choose and require the Company to settle the put
option by cash or issuance of new shares, however, the issuance of
new shares are still subject to applicable laws and the approval of the
Company’s board of directors and meetings of shareholders.

The put option granted to Zhongan Zhaoshang with the principle amount
of RMB600,000,000 and interest payable amount of RMB120,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB60,000,000) is exercisable by the seller at any
time within the period commencing from the 18 months of the closing
date. As of 31 December 2019, Zhongan Zhaoshang is eligible to require
the Company to settle the put option by cash or issuance of new shares
subject to applicable laws and the approval of the Company’s board of
directors and meetings of shareholders.

AU FESEGHEIR - A& B & 5 (8 4 China
Renaissance Capital Investment Inc.([ S=2fEE A |) Kt
MNP ZREREREARLE(BRER)([FR
BE )R BREBLE - LAKEESEGHT100%E
@ AREHEEF DA ZE B ENG11% K
30.89%#Em o K - AEERTEH —EREH
1 NRERAAT =BEREEARFEHOES
CRRANEE L E S H N ZA B ER30.89%Em
([HAREREs ) - 8215 ¢

— BRaBEHTMEBEEENNTERR L
RZEEZ AR EE T MAREZERTRE
RUEHIRER B AN ([R5 A |) I BRI B
FEBITERBAEEFEFNR(FEE)R
10%RF 8. - IR SRUE BB A B ik 2 AT E
DIRTETERE LEFEEDRE

— [ERn) MRS A HE

— BRREGHEMMAENRAF EHIEERE
=

RZZ—hF+=-A=+—8 " BRas=ER R
BROESEE - Bt - AEEIRE H1EEHTE
BN ERFFER(FEE0B(HEEERME)
REFEI0% (P LBEME )T ENFE27E
BlIAE -

RITEEELRANRTHE (RSB AARE
468,959,0007T [ FE I H| B2 8E A AR #98,475,000
TI(ZE—NE+-_A=+—8: AR¥
47,084,0007T) AT & H AR EI A Hitg 55 = FFHIAM
B AT - B 5 AR EW ESKA R AR
BRSBTS E LA - A - FITH
BRAMDFZ BT EBERITERAN R ESE KRR
SR

RTITRLZHEANRTHE(RBAARE
600,000,0007T 5 F& 1+ 71 2. %8 & A R 120,000,000
TI(ZE—NE+_A=+—H: ARK
60,000,0007T) F] F3 & 77 i R B B HA1&181E A F A #Y
B AEMEETE - RZE—hF+ZA=+—
A PLBEERERARARARS N ETHR
MEERLEIE - AT - ZFITHRODZE P ER
FERWERNREFE RRRAGHRE o
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44 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 44
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities and equity arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BMEEBEENE YK

TRALMNEENBRE TS ELNA G EDE
B ERREMFReEE  MEERDIEELNR
BEESIBREREBIAARICR S RENAEEGZAR
EREXRPE ORI ERREFDRELNR

ERENZFRE -

Liabilities

associated with
transferred trade Redemption Interests
Borrowings receivables liabilities payable

HEEEEN

B 5 EWE
BE HENEE BEEE BEFRE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARET T AREFT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H 1,009,000 225,297 1,066,617 203
Financing cash flows MERSRE —F8 1,835,589 (124,445) - (103,278)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHTB A A - - - 1,462
Finance costs (Note 9) A A (HI3E9) - - 106,848 113,567
Currency exchange G H % 23,238 - 4,456 (236)
Others (Note) HAd (I 5E) - 142,027 - -

At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF

+=-A=+—H 2,867,827 242,879 1,177,921 11,718
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44 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 44 REZEFIELENEEYE

activities

Liabilities

associated with
transferred trade Redemption Interests
Borrowings receivables liabilities payable

HEEEN

B S ENHE
BE HENEE BEEE EAFIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—A—H 2,867,827 242,879 1,177,921 11,718
Financing cash flows — net MERSRE—FE 269,660 (257,329) - (104,267)
Finance costs (Note 9) PN ) - - 111,054 108,600
Currency exchange B - - (1,571) (386)
Others (Note) HAh (H3E) - 173,212 - -

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+ZA=+—H 3,137,487 158,762 1,287,404 15,665
Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables Mz EEENE S RRFERENAESEEUNES
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated with FERZEREEEENE S ERZERENE
transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the ultimate B UREREAPENEAR -

end user of the equipment.
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45 WIBHE LA
(@) UZBESEG Automotive Germany GmbH

R-ZZE—NE—A=H  KNARTHRIKEESEG
Automotive Germany GmbH([ SEG |) 2 Erfi%#E - X
& A A R¥4,539,973,0007C @ BIER AR
RBAREE3,414,281,0007T & (B 1ESEGRENE 77
B FE - ZRIE A R #51,125,692,0007T o 1tk U BE LA
WS EHEAR - WEEATEE M T AT T EE
S EH) A AR H613,626,0007T © SEGHEHHLE
SIE T o BIBUKEESEG - AEEBHER
SEGER TR ¥ RHEE B B T 5149 EP A 15 R 3K
& o AEBE T EIF AP EOKNERRES
BEAEBISEGIR B AT BN - WEEEEK
% ARRBAENRETIHTISHME o

45 Acquisition of subsidiaries
(@ Acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH

On 2 January 2018, the Company completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
(“SEG”) at a consideration of RMB4,539,973,000, comprising
RMB3,414,281,000 as consideration for the equity interest and
RMB1,125,692,000 as repayment of payables of SEG due to the
seller. This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was approximately RMB613,626,000, which will not be deductible
for tax purpose. SEG is engaged in the manufacture of auto parts.
With the acquisition of SEG, the Group expect to achieve the synergy
between SEG and ASIMCO group in auto parts segment. Also, the
Group has the plan to utilize the cost advantage and customer
relationship in China to help SEG improve the profitability. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Company has enlarged its shares
in auto parts market.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition RUEE B ERERMEEMBBEAFEWDT ¢
are as follows:

RMB’000

AR¥TT

Non-current assets kRBEE 3,314,273
Long-term receivables R ERFE R 119,446
Property, plant, and equipment ME - BENMEE 2,179,989
Intangible assets EmILEE 799,689
Contract related assets AREEEE 12,227
Deferred tax assets BIETRIEEE 202,922
Current assets REEE 5,906,057
Cash and cash equivalent Re MESEEY 688,233
Trade and other receivables 5 R E M pEW A 3,268,159
Tax recoverable AU Bl R TE 566,743
Inventories PN 1,382,922
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE 1,027,429
Other non-current liabilities HEmIEmEasE 608,362
Provisions BE 191,631
Deferred tax liability BEETRIEAE 227,436
Current liabilities REEE 4,266,554
Trade and other payables B 5 MhEMBERFRIE 3,126,459
Provisions BE 1,002,431
Tax liabilities HEaE 137,664
Net assets acquired WBEEFRE 3,926,347
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45 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 45 WEMBE AR
(@) Acquisition of SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (@) YEESEG Automotive Germany GmbH
(Continued) €))
Goodwill arising on acquisition: I BEE AR
RMB’000
ARET T
Consideration for the acquisition: I HE (B
Cash consideration paid BfIReNRE 4,468,189
Cash consideration payable ENRERE 71,784
Total consideration BRE 4,539,973
Less: net assets acquired, provisional B WIEEEFEEE) (3,926,347)
Goodwill arising on acquisition B E AR R 613,626
RMB’000
ARET T
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WIEEENRSRHEFE
Cash consideration paid BfReRE 4,468,189
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances acquired W BB RIReSEYER (688,233)
3,779,956
Cash paid in 2017 R-ZE—+FEMES (3,345,626)
434,330
The acquisition-related cost were RMB202 million, and had been WK AABARK20EEL ERNZS

charged in 2017 financial statements. — B REIOGR
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45 WIBHE QR )
(b) WEERFRIEER AR A A

RZZE—NFEHA—H  ARB TR
MEERAR QR 2 S - AR S
ENI  REBNEREE TETEMT -

45 Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of ASIMCO International, Inc.

On 1 July 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in ASIMCO International, Inc. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The entity is engaged in

the trade of auto parts.

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Non-current assets kRBEE 4,255
Property, plant, and equipment WE - BB REE 23
Deferred tax assets BIETRIEEE 3,560
Other non-current assets B 3EmeiEE 672
Current assets REEE 80,340
Cash and cash equivalent R MESEEY 8,664
Trade and other receivables 5 R E M pEW A 33,428
Inventories PN 37,883
Other current assets HimehEeE 365
Current liabilities REEE 57,312
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAEFRIE 57,224
Other current liabilities HimsaE 88
Net assets acquired KBEERE 27,283
Cash consideration paid ERRERE 1,284
Other gain and loss E bl a5 & B8 25,999
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired BB AT 2R EmE (FBRIKENIRS)
Cash consideration paid BNRERE 1,284
Less: Balances acquired L W s
Cash and cash equivalent e MBS EEY (8,664)
Net inflow of cash — investing activities RERAFE-LETH (7,380)
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45 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 45 WEMBE AR

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 is a loss
of RMB1,475,000 attributable to the additional business generated by
the acquired ASIMCO International, Inc. Revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 includes RMB114,265,000 in respect of the acquired
auto parts entity.

ASIMCO International, Inc. mainly provides the trading service in oversea
countries for ASIMCO entities which were acquired by the Group in 2017 as
well as other 3rd party customers. Considering ASIMCO International, Inc.
was part of the ASIMCO Group, and the customer relationship, branding,
and technology are not owned by ASIMCO International, Inc. The Group
achieved a gain on bargain purchase from the acquisition of ASIMCO
International, Inc.

Had the business combination of acquired ASIMCO International, Inc.
been effected at 1 January 2018, the revenue of the Group would have
been RMB26,125,548,000, and the profit for the year would have
been RMB1,049,947,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

46 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio ((total liabilities netting off cash and cash equivalent)/total
equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
were as follows:

46

REBE-ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HLEFEZFR
i F) B3R AR #51,475,000 T HIES 18 - sZZEFIBR A
BB HRIBIRBR A RFTEE ZFBINETR
REBE_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HLFEZFR
WABEREEKRBZ AESHBHEEZARE
114,265,0007T, °

SHMERBERAREZNBINER SR EEE—
T FURENTHM BRI EMFE =T PREM)
B2 o EEDEHMHBEERERARBEIT S
B —#D  FPEE MR R IEHEHNR
BREERARER - AEERKBETHHBERER
RRMHEEBERGHE -

WEREEMBBEER AR ZEFAHNR T
—NF—A—BBE4LER KEBEZRABAA
R 5 26,125,548,000 7T * T F MW@ F 15 B AR
1,049,947,0007C - HEERHEMRAR S - WH—
EANEEERER -_T—\F—A—B=RNE
T ERRBLE R MR R A E BN IEIR - T
FAYEARREEEMTEA -

EXERER

AEBTRRER - URRAEENHERET M
BB - TRV B T RAE S
RS BAER - AR B 7 RS A T

REENEARBRBEGHEUARERBES AEHG
s BERERRERA - BOEEREMREE

ARNTERESERNEARE - (EAREEM
Hebh— - EBEEEREARARRGEEAE
BoER - REEEENRSE  AEEBEREH
BB BITHA - WIS ERA ST
HERRR -

FEER_Z—NF+ZA=+—BRZZE-NF
ToA=t—BEmaERESLE((AERERE
e RREEEY) HHEB)WT

2018
—ZE-N\F
Gearing ratio BERERIEE 97% 106%
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47

T@MTH
TRMTASE

Due to the outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19 virus)
epidemic in China (the “Epidemic”) starting from early January 2020,
the operation of the Company was temporary stopped. However, under
the containment of the virus in China, the Company quickly restored its
Chinese companies’ production under the guidance of work resumption
policy. We estimate the impact of the Epidemic for the Company is not

material.

2019 2018
—E-hfF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Financial assets: TRUEE
Financial assets at fair value: BATESIRNEREE
Financial assets at fair value through AT ETE B EZEHTA
profit or loss BENEREE 1,394,296 355,539
Financial assets at fair value through other AT ETE B E#ZEHTA
comprehensive income HEtEmEliEn i E 4,276,753 3,986,827
Derivative financial instruments TEeRIA 13,946 4,401
Financial assets at amortised cost; RHHEN AT E Y S REE -
Trade and other receivables (excluding E S REMERGIA(TERE
prepayment, China tax recoverable) TERTFIE K R B AT UL Bl A 18 ) 5,478,574 5,809,945
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRESEEY 3,863,435 2,746,038
Bank deposits RITER 858,141 884,480
Long-term receivables RHIEUEE 502,744 554,161
Transferred trade receivables DEENE S ERE 158,762 242,879
Finance lease receivables BhE T E e e 49,432 53,466
Loans receivable from associates and Y E AR R —HEERE
a joint venture B3 16,500 19,750
Total st 16,612,583 14,657,486
Financial liabilities: SRIBE
Financial liabilities at fair value: BAFEYIENEREE
Derivative financial instruments TEeBMIA 3,632 35,179
Liabilities at amortised cost REHEK AT ENAG
Trade and other payables B 5 N E AR IR
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TRiEFERAans) 7,010,902 7,289,396
Borrowings E3=d 3,137,487 2,867,827
Lease liabilities HEBE 691,848 -
Redemption liabilities EOAE 1,287,404 1,177,921
Total st 12,131,273 11,370,323
48 Events after the reporting period 48 HEHAREIR

MR e =B EE—ANHBET BAEERES

REIE(019ERFER)(EIE]) -

PSIEOE i3

BERFLE - AT - EPEBHIZBESOERT -
ARREBETHRES TRARMERERFE AR
HE - HPEFTRRBHARRNEEL TEKX
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 ARAFEFEMB AR ZFHE

company

R-F-NER-F—\E+-A=+—8 &2
AMBARZFHEMT -

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
are as follows.

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEBAREE TEEK HEMRL DRTRBERE FAEEEEEER
RUEEHE SMEFEE FREBDL
2018
—T-N\E
%
Directly held:
BERE -
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic ~ Manufacture of hydraulic ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. products H AR #100,000,0007T
HINERRBEEFR AT HEREE @
Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery Manufacture of mining The PRC RMB100,000,000 68.89 68.89
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #100,000,0007T
M BT BBR AT HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00 100.00
Material Trading Co., Ltd., and products F AR #10,000,0007T
SNEBRREEMERBEERAT RHRERES
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Manufacture of mining The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21 53.21
Machinery Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007C
M B RERRBR AT HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Manufacture of mining The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007C
SEBERBLTTERMAERAR HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd.  Hotel Management and The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
BNZMEEEBRAR construction service AR #100,000,0007T
BEETE MR ERY
Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd. Manufacture of mining The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
HEREBERREREELA machinery H AR H1,000,000,0007T

HERR
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 AR TEMBARIZHFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HWEAREE TEEK Bl A ERORBERE AEEEEEZR
RYEERE IMERHEE RREADL
2018
—T-N\F
%
Directly held: (continued)
EERE  (8)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Aftermarket service of Russia USD100,000 100.00 100.00
Siberia Co., Ltd. mining machinery AR HY 100,0003 7T
BEKAPFDEREELF RERMEERY
ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong) Sale and purchase of Hong Kong USD7,500,000 100.00 100.00
Co., Ltd. mining machinery BB 7,500,000% 7T
SEBERES (BE)BRATF HE DR RE
WA
ZMJ Germany GmbH Sale and purchase of Germany EUR1,000,000 100.00 100.00
BERERGR AT mining machinery/ (e 1,000,0008% 7T
research and
development of
mining products
HE R R,
ERBEER
ZMJ America, Inc. Sale and purchas of Canada CAD100 100.00 100.00
BE(EMNER AR mining machinery mnex 100507C
THE R RE
W
ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd Sale and purchase of Australia USD200,000 100.00 100.00
HEMORAFE)AERAA mining machinery EAFIE 200,000 7T
THE DR RE
W
ZMJ Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. Commercial factoring The PRC RMB100,000,000.00 100.00 N/A
PREHEEREBRATF HERIE R AR #100,000,000.007T ek
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 XAREEMBARIZFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEBAREE TEEK HEmRL DRTRBERE FAEEREEER
RUEEHE SMEREE RAEBEDL
2018
—T-N\F
%
Directly held: (continuea)
BERE (B)
Zhi Kong Wang Lian Technology Software and IT services ~ The PRC RMBS,000,000 100.00 N/A
Shenzhen Co., Ltd. U REARERSE  + AR H8,000,0007T TER
BIEEHHE ORI BR AR
ASIMCO (Beijing) Limited Sale and purchase of auto ~ The PRC RMB1,200,000,000 100.00 100.00
DRI TERMIER)BR AT parts and components AER#51,200,000,0007T
SHE MR BT
CACG LTD. | (“CACG I)/([CACG1]) Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands RMB418,970 100.00 100.00
HE BT HEMHS ARH#4189707T
Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB2,450,000,000 75.51 75.51
Electrical Equipment Company Limited ~ $5% )58 284 F AE#2,450,000,0007T
(“Zhengzhou Shengji”)
BN EEREREBRAR
(TEMEE])
Indirectly held:
IR A -
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.  Sale of molding and metal ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 51.93 51.93
M B EBERAT material H AR H30,000,0007T
BARSBMHEE
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin Sale of molding and metal ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 55.26 55.26
Material Technology Co., Ltd. material H AR #50,000,0007C
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”) EERSBMREE
SN BRI B R AT
([ EBEAEAE AL )
ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB118,043,007 63.00 63.00
("ASIMCO Camshaft’) HE BT H ARHE118,043,007 7T

SHRORES(FE)ERRF
([EFRI R )
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary Principal activity
HEARBE TEEK

Indirectly held: (Continuea)
EERE - (&)

ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring Sale of auto parts
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd (“ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) 4% /38 Z &+
BIECHNEREERERATA

([TEHRER])
ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. Sale of auto parts
(Shanxi) (“ASIMCO Shanxi") HERET MG
DATRIBREE (LA AR AR
([3ETRILAE])
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd Sale of auto parts
(Anhui) (*ASIMCO NVH") HETBTHT
AR EIREN R (%)
BRAE([ZRHEIN])
Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited Sale of auto parts
AREEERERAF HERBTHH
ASIMCO International, Inc. Sale of auto parts

SHRERERAR HERET R

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

49 KRATEEMB LR ZHER @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
Bl A
R EE R

The PRC
F

The PRC
F

The PRC
F

The PRC
F

The USA
%E

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRBEREK
AMEAHEE

RMB229,703,231
AE#229,703,2317T

RMB420,362,000
AR #420,362,0007T

RMB252,200,000
AR #252,200,0007T

EUR310,000,000
310,000,0008% 7

USD1
1X7T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBRERER
RREADL
2018
—T-)N\F
%
63.54 63.54
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation
HEAREHE TEEK HEMRL
R E B
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE - (E)
SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P. Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands

HEET R HEHS

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings S.a 1.l Sale of auto parts Luxembourg
HERBTHH ERE

New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH Sale of auto parts Germany
HERBTHH (=

New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and Sale of auto parts Germany
Operations GmbH & Co. KG HERBET MY (=
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH Sale of auto parts Germany

REBABERERAR HERBTHH (=
SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda. Sale of auto parts Brazil
REBABHIHERERAR HERBTHH i
Starters E-Components Generators Sale of auto parts Hungary

Automotive Hungary Kft. HERETHMH 9 5 7|

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRBERA
EMEAEE

EUR499,999,905
499,999,905 7T

EUR12,000
12,0008 7T

EUR25,000
25,000B47C

EUR625,000,500
625,000,500 7T

EUR25,000
25,000B47C

EUR50,300,715.57
50,300,715.57 87T

EUR15,050,000
15,050,0004 7T

49 KRB EEMNBLRAIZHEE @

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEEEERER
RAEBDL
2018
—T-N\F
%
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00



company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
HEATEE

Indirectly held: (Continuea)
EERE - (&)

SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd.
RRRAEIE(RE)BRAF

SEG New Energy Automobile Technology
Co., Ltd.
RRRIRERAERITERAE

SEG Automotive India Private Limited
RERABHEERAT

SEG Automotive North America LLC
REKREILERRAOF

SEG Automotive France S.A.S.
RERRELRFRAF

SEG Automotive Japan Corporation
RERABAAKASH

SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing,
SA deClV.
RRRAERATRERRAT

SEG Automotive Mexico Service,
S.deR.L.deCV.
RERRERAFREER AT

49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

TEEH

Sale of auto parts

HERBETHH
R&D of auto parts
e BT
Sale of auto parts
HERBETHH

Sale of auto parts

HERET R

Sale of auto parts

HERET R

Sale of auto parts

HERET I
Sale of auto parts

HERET R

Sale of auto parts

HERET R

BIMEERMEBRMN AR AT 2019551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
Bl A
R EE R

The PRC
PR

The PRC
HE
India

EIE

North America

=M

France
B
Japan

A7

Mexico
=0

Mexico
=0

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BRTRAZRE

HMEFEE

RMB290,400,000.00

AR #290,400,000.007T

RMB22,000,000.00

AR #22,000,000.007T

EUR134,395.95
134,395.95EA 7T

EURO
OB 7T

EUR50,000
50,0008% 7T

EUR736,982.46
736,982.46E4 7T

EUR486,633.91
486,633.91 07T

EUR89,994.28
89,994.28F1 7T

49 KRATEEMB LR ZHER @)

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBRERER
RREADL
2018
—T-)N\F
%
100.00 100.00
100.00 N/A
i
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 XAREEMBARIZFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEAREHE TEEK HEMRL BRTRARKRE FEEEEEER
RUEEHE SMEFEE RREADL
2018
—Z-\F
%
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE - (E)
SEG Automotive Mexico Sales, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR95,008.49 99.99 99.99
S.deRL. deCV. HETETEH T 95,008.4981 7T
REBABEAFHEBRAF
SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda. Sale of auto parts Portugal EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
EREABEETARAH HERBTHH BET 25,0008 7T
SEG Automotive South Africa Sale of auto parts South Africa EURG9,711.7 100.00 100.00
Proprietary Limited HERETHMH EES 59,711 7TBLT
EREAEEFERLA
SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd. Sale of auto parts Korea EUR36,834.26 100.00 100.00
REBABEEERAR HERBTHH E=151 36,834.26B1 7T
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U. Sale of auto parts Spain EUR9,616,000 100.00 100.00
REBABEMTBRAF HERBTHH AT 9,616,0008X 7T
SEG Automotive Italy S.r.l. Sale of auto parts Italy EUR500,000 100.00 100.00
EREABEEANAERAH HERBTHH ERF 500,000 7T

Note: All PRC subsidiaries are invested by PRC enterprises.

MiE : PTARENREA

AHFEMEREE
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NhF+=-A=1+—HIFE

50 BEADRAMBRR KR 2EH

2019 2018
= —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR®ETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 941,525 1,009,045
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE b N+ b A - 150,147
Right of use assets FREEE 38,717 -
Investment properties WEWE 148,635 165,928
Intangible assets ERAE 207,545 2,661
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT ZIRE 5,790,994 5,632,994
Investments in associates REEENE 2R E 244,667 379,173
Investments in a joint venture R—EEELEZRE 28,648 -
Financial assets at fair value through AFETEBEZ ST A

profit or loss BaMerREE 255 255
Deferred tax assets FEEFRTAE E 133,756 159,191
Finance lease receivables BA MRS ERIE 23,348 28,508
Long term receivables REAFEWGRIE 182,051 259,701
Loans receivable from subsidiaries B ARER - 75,495
Total non-current assets FRENEELEE 7,740,141 7,863,098
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =8 1,539,898 1,609,284
Loans receivable from subsidiaries BB ARIER 208,000 183,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 1,538,268 1,836,688
Transferred trade receivables BEEMNE Z ERGIE 158,762 242,879
Finance lease receivables BEHEEWIE 26,084 24,958
Long term receivables REAEUGRIA 236,399 131,926
Financial assets at fair value through other AT EEBE#ESTA

comprehensive income HivrzAWENESmEE 2,878,880 2,705,345
Financial assets at fair value through AT EE B RS A

profit or loss BEnemEE 1,060,000 -
Bank deposits RITHER 727,980 841,746
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEY 2,341,134 1,251,325
Total current assets HEREEE 10,715,405 8,827,151
Total assets BEE 18,445,546 16,690,249
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50 Information about the statement of financial 50 A QAR EMR AR Z2ER &)

position of the Company (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5N E M ENRIE 3,260,098 3,441,026
Contract liabilities ARAaE 1,677,584 1,176,581
Borrowings BE 303,500 86,000
Liabilities associated with transferred WP B8N E SRR
trade receivables E@MNEaE 158,762 242,879
Lease liabilities HEaRE 3,539 -
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 5,403,483 4,946,486
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EnEas 77,351 52,911
Employee benefit obligations EERAMEE 49,950 -
Borrowings [=9=% 600,000 730,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 35,337 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBBERE 762,638 782,911
Total liabilities PG =R 6,166,121 5,729,397
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFHE
Share capital A& X 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium B m (B 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves (Note (a)) (@) 6,357,533 5,028,960
Total equity AT 12,289,425 10,960,852
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEEn 18,455,546 16,690,249
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A M RARMIEE
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50 Information about the statement of financial 50 BREAARLQ R EMRRK 2 ER &)

position of the Company (Continued)

Note (a) M7 ()
Statutory
Surplus Other Retained
Reserve reserves earnings Total
EE
RErEE Hithf# s REZER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARKETT
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—A—B2&# 569,775 97,877 3,807,843 4,475,495
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEREEBALLE
for the year - - 640,088 640,088
Transfer B 64,009 - (64,009) -
Dividends (Note 14) Bs (Mizt14) - - (86,623) (86,623)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+ZA=+—H
ZEERR 633,784 97,877 4,297,299 5,028,960
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—HZ&EH% 633,784 97,877 4,297,299 5,028,960
Profit and total comprehensive income FARNREERALRE
for the year - - 1,572,100 1,572,100
Transfer LEVES 157,210 - (157,210) -
Share-based payment BRAD TR - - 1,601 1,601
Transaction with associates MR N RN S - - 6,080 6,080
Dividends (Note 14) f&2 (fI7E14) - - (251,208) (251,208)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-E—NF+-_A=+—H
ZEE 790,994 97,877 5,468,662 6,357,533
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IFEUBRRE

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss #EEZREE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=1t—-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015

—T-NE Bt ZFTRF —ThF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTRT ARETT ARETR

Revenue WA 25,721,417 26,011,730 7,546,701 3,628,530 4,510,858
Cost of sales HEMR 20,923,902 21,159,849 5,899,296 2,915,417 3,653,833
Profit before tax B T4 B8 1,530,076 1,288,738 423,026 37,384 30,365
Profit for the year FREM 1,139,910 938,908 340,160 36,648 10,609

Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEER

A
Owners of the Company RAFIRE 1,040,253 832,344 284,250 61,997 42,198
Non-controlling interests FEE g RS 99,657 106,564 55,910 (25,349) (31,589)

1,139,910 938,908 340,160 36,648 10,609

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =~ ZRE MR AREBE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-AR
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
i T /\F —FT+tF —T-RF "—T-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INSLARPH ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
Non-current assets FRBEE 9,470,921 9,336,011 8,503,188 2,520,487 3,245,328
Current assets MBEE 20,347,930 18,672,760 10,948,141 9,407,688 8,804,159
Total assets nEE 29,818,851 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175 12,049,487
Non-current liabilities FRBAR 3,854,076 4,013,211 2,071,202 4,750 14,784
Current liabilities REARE 12,822,529 11,704,716 5,804,820 2,164,895 2,412,244
Total liabilities S 16,676,605 15,717,927 7,876,022 2,169,645 2,427,028

Equity attributable to owners of the XA AR BEfE(S

Company s 12,239,731 11,457,210 10,800,206 9,674,173 9,502,572
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 902,515 833,634 775,101 84,357 119,887
Total equity FERBE 13,142,246 12,290,844 11,575,307 9,758,530 9,622,459

Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 29,818,851 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175 12,049,487
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